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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
STRIVE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
(Successor) (Predecessor)
(unaudited) (audited)
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 109,069 6,155
Short-term investments — 16,755
Prepaid expenses 3,533 351
Other current assets 1,601 500
Total current assets 114,203 23,761
Digital assets, at fair value 672,913 —
Property and equipment, net 816 951
Intangible assets, net 361 187
Right-of-use lease assets 4,141 1,786
Other non-current assets 142 1,512
Total assets $ 792,576 28,197
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Compensation and benefits payable $ 357 1,112
Accounts payable and other liabilities 9,186 2,227
Total current liabilities 9,543 3,339
Operating lease liabilities 3,604 1,516
Total liabilities 13,147 4,855
Stockholders’ equity:
Predecessor preferred stock, $0.00001 par value; 0 and 1,161,650 shares authorized, 0 and 1,158,802 shares issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively — 72,488
Predecessor Class A common stock, $0.00001 par value; 0 and 2,000,000 shares authorized, 0 and 2,000,000 shares issued and outstanding
at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively — —
Predecessor Class B common stock, $0.00001 par value; 0 and 2,339,765 shares authorized, 0 and 400,970 shares issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively — —
Successor Class A common stock, $0.001 par value; 444,000,000,000 and 0 shares authorized, 448,817,597 and 0 shares issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively 449 —
Successor Class B common stock, $0.001 par value; 21,000,000,000 and 0 shares authorized, 218,035,473 and 0 shares issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively 218 —
Additional paid-in capital 1,047,185 —
Accumulated deficit (268,423) (49,146)
Total stockholders’ equity 779,429 23,342
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 792,576 28,197

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Revenues:
Investment advisory fees
Other revenue

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration
Employee compensation and benefits
General and administrative expense
Marketing and advertising
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets
Other derivative loss

Net investment gains/(losses)

Net operating loss

Other income/(expense):
Other income

Transaction costs

Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Total other income/(expense)

Net loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit/(expense)

Net loss

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic

Diluted "

Net loss per common share:
Basic ¥

Diluted

STRIVE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)
Successor Predecessor
Period from September 12, Period from July 1, 2025 to Three Months Ended
2025 to September 30, 2025 September 11, 2025 September 30, 2024

$ 246 $ 1,283 $ 950
9 5 34

255 1,288 984

282 1,251 1,272

18,720 3,151 2,182

445 871 4,404

18 68 89

12 43 47

19,477 5,384 7,994

(10,133) — —

(14,731) — —

(24,864) — —

(44,086) (4,096) (7,010)

68 10 208

(7,484) (10,280) -

(140,785) - .

(148,201) (10,270) 208

(192,287) (14,366) (6,802)

$ (192,287) | $ (14,366) $ (6,802)
872,349,183 2,325,783 2,225,816
872,349,183 2,325,783 2,225,816

$ 022) | $ 6.18) $ (3.06)
$ 022) | $ 6.18) $ (3.06)

() Basic and diluted earnings per common share for Class A and Class B common stock are the same.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



Revenues:

Investment advisory fees
Other revenue

Total revenues

Operating expenses:

Fund management and administration
Employee compensation and benefits
General and administrative expense
Marketing and advertising
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets
Other derivative loss

Net investment gains/(losses)

Net operating loss

Other income/(expense):

Other income

Transaction costs

Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Total other income/(expense)

Net loss before income taxes
Income tax benefit/(expense)

Net loss

STRIVE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
(unaudited)

Successor

Predecessor

Period from September 12,

Period from January 1, 2025

Nine Months Ended

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic (V
Diluted

Net loss per common share:
Basic ¥

Diluted ¥

2025 to September 30, 2025 to September 11, 2025 September 30, 2024
$ 246 $ 4,187 2,560
9 35 55
255 4,222 2,615
282 4,250 3,488
18,720 7,222 6,465
445 4,229 10,040
18 231 443
12 149 141
19,477 16,081 20,577
(10,133) — —
(14,731) — —
(24,864) — —
(44,086) (11,859) (17,962)
68 586 500
(7,484) (15,717) -
(140,785) — —
(148,201) (15,131) 500
(192,287) (26,990) (17,462)
$ (192,287) | $ (26,990) (17,462)
872,349,183 2,299,243 2,200,848
872,349,183 2,299,243 2,200,848
$ 022) | $ (11.74) (7.93)
$ 022) | $ (11.74) (7.93)

() Basic and diluted earnings per common share for Class A and Class B common stock are the same.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



STRIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands, except share data)

(unaudited)
Predecessor
Stockholders' Equity
Retained
Predecessor Predecessor Class A Predecessor Class B Successor Class A Successor Class B Additional Earnings/ Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock Paid-in (Accumulated  Stockholders'

Shares Amount Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Capital Deficit) Equity
Balance at December 31, 2023 787,598 $§ 43,624 2,000,000 $ — 400,970 $ — — 3 — — 3 — 8 — 3 (27,566) $ 16,058
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (4,791) (4,791)
Balance at March 31, 2024 787,598 $§ 43,624 2,000,000 $ — 400970 $ — — 3 — — 3 — 3 — 3 (32357) $ 11,267
Net loss (5.869) (5,869)
Balance at June 30, 2024 787,598 $§ 43,624 2,000,000 $ = 400,970 § = — $ = — 3 — 8 — 8 (38226) $ 5,398
Net proceeds from sale of preferred stock 372,257 28,949 28,949
Redemption of preferred stock (1,053) (85) — — — — - — - - — - (85)
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (6,802) (6,802)
Balance at September 30, 2024 1,158,802 § 72,488 2,000,000 $ = 400,970 § = — 3 = — 3 — 8 — 8 (45,028) $ 27,460
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (4,118) (4,118)
Balance at December 31, 2024 1,158,802 § 72,488 2,000,000 $ — 400,970 $ — — 3 — — 3 — S —  $ (49,146) § 23,342
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (3,749) (3,749)
Balance at March 31, 2025 1,158,802 § 72,488 2,000,000 $ = 400,970 § = — = — 3 — 8 — ¢ (52,895) $ 19,593
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (8,875) (8,875)
Balance at June 30, 2025 1,158,802 § 72,488 2,000,000 $ = 400,970 $ = — $ = — $ — 8 — $ (61,770) $ 10,718
Redemption of preferred stock (1,238) (500) — — _ — — — — — — _ (500)
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (14,366) (14,366)
Balance at September 11, 2025 1,157,564 $ 71,988 2,000,000 $ — 400,970 $ — — $ — — $ — 8 — 8 (76,136)  $ (4,148)

Successor
Stockholders' Equity
Retained
Pred Pred Class A Predecessor Class B Successor Class A Successor Class B Additional Earnings/ Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock Paid-in (Accumulated  Stockholders'

Shares Amount Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Capital Deficit) Equity
Balance at September 12, 2025 1,157,564  § 71,988 2,000,000 $ — 400,970 § — — 3 — — 8 — 3 — 3 (76,136)  $ (4,148)
Conversion of Predecessor shares for Strive, Inc. Class B
common stock (1,157,564) (71,988)  (2,000,000) - (400,970) — - — 248,911,564 249 71,739 - —
Business combination with Asset Entities Inc. — — — — — — 16,624,395 17 — — 141,123 — 141,140
Share-based compensation expense — — — — — — — — — — 16,294 — 16,294
Issuance of Class A common stock — — — — — — 359,162,900 359 — — 548,020 — 548,379
Issuance of pre-funded warrants — — — — — — — — — — 283,170 — 283,170
Exercise of warrants — — — — — — 42,154,211 42 — — 12,958 — 13,000
Conversions of Class B common stock to Class A common
stock = = = = = = 30,876,091 31 (30,876,091) (E1Y)] = = =
Share-based transaction costs — — — — — — — — — — 2,936 — 2,936



Issuance costs — — — — — — — — — — (29,055) — (29,055)
Net loss — — — — — — — — — — — (192,287) (192,287)

Balance at September 30, 2025 — 3 — — 3 — — 3 — 448,817,597 § 449 218,035,473 § 218 $1,047,185 $ (268.423) S 779,429

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



STRIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

(unaudited)
Successor Predecessor
Period from September 12, Period from January 1, 2025 Nine Months Ended
2025 to September 30, 2025 to September 11, 2025 September 30, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (192,287) | $ (26,990) $ (17,462)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 12 149 141
Accretion of discount on investments, net — 155 11
Reduction in carrying amount of right-of-use assets 5 91 59
Net unrealized loss on digital assets 10,133 — —
Other derivative loss 14,731 — —
Share-based compensation expense 16,294 — —
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment 140,785 — —
Non-cash transaction expenses 2,936 2,150 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses (2,928) (227) (157)
Other current assets 1,461 (1,589) (388)
Other non-current assets — (723) —
Compensation and benefits payable 263 (1,018) 932
Accounts payable and other liabilities (5,360) 9,793 1,342
Net cash used in operating activities (13,955) (18,209) (15,522)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of digital assets (675,008) — —
Purchases of intangible assets (75) (123) —
Purchases of property and equipment — — (200)
Cash acquired through business combination 400 — —
Purchases of short-term investments — (4,271) (32,202)
Proceeds from short-term investments — 20,871 20,738
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (674,683) 16,477 (11,664)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of Class A common stock 525,610 — —
Proceeds from issuance of pre-funded warrants 283,170 — —
Proceeds from warrant exercises 13,000 — =
Payment of issuance costs (27,996) — —
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock — — 28,949
Redemption of preferred stock — (500) (85)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 793,784 (500) 28,864
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 105,146 (2,232) 1,678
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 3,923 6,155 2,086
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 109,069 $ 3,923 3,764
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Accrued but unpaid financing transaction costs 1,262 770 —
Class A common stock exchanged for digital assets 8,038 — —
Class A common stock issued as part of business combination 141,140 — —



Assets and liabilities resulting from business combination:

Prepaid expenses 27
Goodwill 140,039
Intangible assets 746
Other non-current assets 57
Accounts payable and other liabilities 129

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
7



STRIVE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

(1) Organization

Strive, Inc. (the "Company", "Strive", or the "Successor"), a Nevada corporation, is a bitcoin treasury asset management firm trading on The Nasdaq Stock
Market LLC ("Nasdaq") under the symbol "ASST". The Company earns substantially all of its revenue from investment advisory and other investment
management services, and generates market returns from investments in bitcoin and bitcoin-related products.

The Company operates through wholly-owned subsidiaries, including, among others, Strive Enterprises, Inc. ("SEI") and Strive Asset Management, LLC
("SAM"), a registered investment advisor with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). SAM provides sub-advisory services for the Strive funds
(the "Funds"), a series of exchange traded funds ("ETFs"), and has the discretionary responsibility to select investments in accordance with each fund's
investment objectives, policies, and restrictions. SAM is not responsible for selecting broker-dealers or placing trades for the Funds. Products are offered
through intermediaries in a variety of vehicles, ETFs, separate accounts, and collective investment trust funds.

On May 6, 2025, SEI (the "Predecessor") entered into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 6, 2025, as amended by that certain
Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2025 (the "Asset Entities Merger Agreement") with Asset Entities Inc. ("Asset
Entities"). On September 12, 2025, pursuant to the Asset Entities Merger Agreement, Alpha Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asset Entities Inc.,
merged with and into SEI, with SEI surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Asset Entities Inc. Concurrent with the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Asset Entities Merger Agreement, Asset Entities Inc. was renamed Strive, Inc. (the "Asset Entities Merger").

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of presentation

The Company prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP") and applicable rules and regulations of the SEC for interim financial reporting. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary
for a fair statement of financial position and results of operations have been included. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature, unless otherwise
disclosed. The results of operations for the interim periods shown in this report are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any future
period, including the full year.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Since the merger between Strive Enterprises, Inc. and Asset Entities has been determined to be a reverse acquisition, with SEI being the accounting acquirer,
the Company determined that SEI is the Predecessor and Strive, Inc. is the Successor. The financial information as of December 31, 2024 and for the periods
ending September 30, 2024, the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, and the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025 reflect the
historical financial information of the Predecessor and are referred to as the "Predecessor Periods". The financial information as of September 30, 2025 and for
the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 reflect the financial information of Strive, Inc. and are referred to as the "Successor Periods".

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Digital assets, at fair value

The Company accounts for its digital assets, which consist solely of bitcoin, in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 350, Intangibles -
Goodwill and Other. The Company has ownership of and control over its bitcoin and is engaged with multiple geographically dispersed third-party custodial
services to store its bitcoin. The Company initially records its digital assets at cost, inclusive of transaction costs and fees. The Company subsequently
remeasures its digital assets to fair value at the end of each reporting period in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, based



on quoted (unadjusted) prices on the Coinbase exchange. Any changes in fair value are recognized in net income within net unrealized gain (loss) on digital
assets. Realized gains or losses are recorded upon the sale of digital assets based upon the difference between the sales price and the carrying value of the
specific bitcoin sold.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis. Fair value is defined as the price that is expected to be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company uses a three-
level hierarchy that prioritizes fair value measurements based on the types of inputs used for the various valuation techniques. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are either directly or indirectly observable, such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or
liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities.

Level 3: Inputs that are generally observable, supported by little or no market activity, and typically reflect management's estimates of assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

The categorization of an asset or liability within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
The valuation techniques used by the Company when measuring the fair value prioritize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs.

As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities not held at fair value on the consolidated
statements of financial condition equaled the related carrying value given the Level 1 nature and short-term maturities of all.

Earnings per share ("EPS")

Basic net income (loss) per common share is determined by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of Class A and Class B
common stock outstanding and assumed outstanding common stock during the period. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is determined by dividing
the net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of Class A and Class B common stock and potential shares of common stock outstanding
during the period. The impact from potential shares of common stock on the diluted earnings per share calculation are included when dilutive. Potential shares
of Class A common stock consisting of shares underlying employee share awards and outstanding warrants are computed using the treasury stock method.
Potentially dilutive shares are only included in the amount of dilutive shares if their impact results in dilution to net income (loss) per share.

The Company's common stock consists of two classes of common stock, Class A and Class B. Holders of Class A common stock generally have the same
rights, including rights to dividends, as holders of Class B common stock, except that holders of Class A common stock have one vote per share while holders
of Class B common stock have ten votes per share. Each share of Class B common stock is convertible at any time, at the option of the holder, into one share of
Class A common stock. As such, basic and fully diluted earnings per share for Class A common stock and for Class B common stock are the same. The
Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on either Class A or Class B common stock.

Share-based compensation

Share-based compensation expense is measured based on the grant-date fair value of the share-based awards. The Company recognizes share-based
compensation expense for the portion of each stock award that is expected to vest over the estimated period of service and vesting. For awards that contain a
performance condition, share-based compensation expense is not recorded until the achievement of the related performance condition is determined to be
probable. Forfeitures are recognized as incurred. Share-based compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of
the grant.

Accounting standards adopted in 2024

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-07, Improvements to Reportable
Segment Disclosures (“ASU 2023-07"), which requires incremental disclosures about reportable segments but does not change the definition of a segment or
the guidance for determining reportable segments. The new guidance requires disclosure of significant segment expenses that are (1) regularly provided to (or



casily computed from information regularly provided to) the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") and (2) included in the reported measure of segment
profit or loss. The new standard also requires companies to disclose the title and position of the individual (or the name of the committee) identified as the
CODM, allows companies to disclose multiple measures of segment profit or loss if those measures are used to assess performance and allocate resources, and
is applicable to companies with a single reportable segment. The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of ASU 2023-07 during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

Accounting standards not yet adopted

In December 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (“ASU
2023-09). ASU 2023-09 requires enhanced disclosures surrounding income taxes, particularly related to rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information.
In particular, on an annual basis, companies will be required to disclose specific categories in the rate reconciliation and provide additional information for
reconciling items that meet a quantitative threshold. Companies will also be required to disclose, on an annual basis, the amount of income taxes paid,
disaggregated by federal, state, and foreign taxes, and also disaggregated by individual jurisdictions above a quantitative threshold. The standard is effective for
the Company for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024 on a prospective basis, with retrospective application permitted for all prior periods
presented. The Company does not expect the additional disclosure requirements under ASU 2023-09 to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses ("ASU 2024-03"), which requires entities to disaggregate in
a tabular presentation disclosures about specific types of expenses included in the expense captions presented on the face of the income statement, as well as
disclosures about selling expenses. Specifically, ASU 2024-03 requires disaggregation of expense captions that include any of the following natural expenses:
(1) purchases of inventory, (2) employee compensation, (3) depreciation, (4) intangible asset amortization, and (5) depreciation, depletion, and amortization
recognized as part of oil- and gas-producing activities or other types of depletion expenses. The requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2026, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2027 and are required to be applied prospectively with the option for
retrospective application. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the additional disclosure requirements under ASU 2024-03 to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(3) Digital Assets

The Company accounts for its digital assets, which are comprised solely of bitcoin, in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other. The
Company’s digital assets are initially recorded at cost, inclusive of transaction costs and fees. The Company subsequently remeasures its digital assets to fair
value at the end of each reporting period in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, based on quoted (unadjusted) prices on the Coinbase
exchange, resulting in their classification as Level 1 instruments. Any changes in fair value are recognized in net income within net unrealized gain (loss) on
digital assets. As of September 30, 2025, there are no contractual restrictions on the Company's holdings of digital assets.

The following table provides a summary of the changes in the Company's digital assets, at fair value for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30,
2025 (in thousands):

Period from September 12,
2025 to September 30, 2025

Balance, beginning of period $ —
Acquisitions 683,046
Sales —
Aggregate cost basis 683,046
Change in fair value (10,133)
Balance, end of period $ 672,913

10



The Company's investments in digital assets are summarized below. The Company did not hold any investments in digital assets prior to September 12, 2025.

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Approximate number of bitcoin held 5,886 —
Weighted average acquisition cost 116,053 —
Fair value per bitcoin 114,332 —

(4) Business Combination
Acquisition of Asset Entities, Inc.

On May 6, 2025, the Predecessor entered into the Asset Entities Merger Agreement. On September 12, 2025, pursuant to the Asset Entities Merger Agreement,
Alpha Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asset Entities Inc., merged with and into SEI, with SEI surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Asset
Entities Inc. Concurrent with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Asset Entities Merger Agreement, Asset Entities Inc. was renamed
Strive, Inc.

The Company accounted for the transaction as a reverse acquisition under ASC 805, Business Combinations, with SEI being the accounting acquirer based on
existing Strive stockholders retaining the majority of the voting interests, as well as the senior management and directors representing the majority of senior
management and directors, respectively, following the close of the transaction. As a result, the Company recognized the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
at their acquisition date fair value, with goodwill recognized based on the excess of the consideration transferred and the net assets acquired. None of the
goodwill acquired was deductible for tax purposes. The initial accounting for the acquisition is provisional because the fair values of certain assets acquired and
liabilities assumed have not yet been finalized. The Company expects to finalize the valuation and accounting within the measurement period, which will not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.

As part of the Asset Entities acquisition, the Predecessor incurred transaction costs of $10.3 million and $15.7 million during the period from July 1, 2025 to
September 11, 2025 and the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, respectively, and the Successor incurred transaction costs of $5.6 million
during the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025.

During the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, based on the Company's determination to suspend subscriptions on certain legacy Discord
servers acquired as part of the acquisition of Asset Entities and a decline in the price of the Company's Class A common stock, the Company performed a
goodwill and intangible asset impairment test. Based on this assessment, the Company recognized a goodwill and intangible asset impairment charge totaling
$140.8 million during the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025. As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company had no
goodwill. As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company had $0.4 million and $0.2 million of intangible assets, respectively.

The following table summarizes the consideration transferred and the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair value (in thousands):

Consideration transferred:

Strive, Inc. Class A common stock $ 141,140
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Cash and cash equivalents 400
Prepaid expenses 27

Intangible assets 746
Other non-current assets 57

Accounts payable and other liabilities (129)
Total identifiable net assets $ 1,101

Goodwill 140,039
Total $ 141,140




Acquisition of Semler Scientific, Inc.

On September 22, 2025, Strive, Inc. entered into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Semler Merger Agreement") with Semler Scientific, Inc.
("Semler") (the "Semler Merger"). Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Semler Merger Agreement, Semler is expected to become a wholly
owned subsidiary of Strive. Entry into the Semler Merger Agreement was unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of each of Strive and Semler.
Pursuant to the Semler Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Semler Merger, each share of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of Semler
issued and outstanding immediately before the effective time (other than treasury shares held by Semler and certain shares held by Strive) will be converted
into the right to receive 21.05 shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of Strive. The transaction is subject to customary closing conditions
and approval by Semler shareholders. No assurances can be made that the transaction will close at the currently disclosed terms. During the period from
September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the Company incurred transaction costs of $1.8 million related to Semler Merger.

(5) Short-term investments

Short-term investments consist of U.S. Treasury Bills that have maturities exceeding three months and less than twelve months at the time of purchase and are
stated at amortized cost. The Company classifies short-term investments as held-to-maturity based on the Company's intent to hold the short-term investment to
maturity. The Company does not hold any short-term investments as of September 30, 2025. The Company's short-term investments are summarized below (in
thousands):

December 31, 2024
Expiration Amortized Cost Cost Basis Accumulated Accretion Fair Value
1/31/2025 $ 4243  § 4,177 $ 66 $ 4,243
2/28/2025 4,163 4,149 14 4,163
3/31/2025 4,202 4,167 35 4,202
4/15/2025 4,147 4,128 19 4,147
Total $ 16,755 $ 16,621 $ IRZ 16,755

(6) Revenue

The Company earns a substantial portion of its revenue from investment advisory, consulting services, and subscription revenue. The table below summarizes
the Company's investment advisory fees and other revenue (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Period from September Period from July 1, Period from September Period from January 1,
12, 2025 to September 2025 to September 11, Three Months Ended 12, 2025 to September 2025 to September 11, Nine Months Ended
30, 2025 2025 September 30, 2024 30, 2025 2025 September 30, 2024
Investment advisory fees $ 246 $ 1,283 § 950 $ 246 $ 4,187 $ 2,560
Other revenue 9 5 34 9 35 55
Total revenue $ 255 $ 1,288  $ 984 § 255 $ 4222 § 2,615

No individual customer accounted for 10% or greater of revenue for any period.
(7) Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies

The Company may be subject to various legal proceedings, claims, and governmental inspections or investigations arising during the ordinary course of
business. The outcome of these matters and claims is subject to significant uncertainty, and the Company often cannot predict what the eventual outcome of
pending matters will be or the timing of the ultimate resolution of these matters. Fees, expenses, fines, penalties, judgments, or settlement costs which might be
incurred by the Company in connection with the various proceedings could adversely affect its results of operations and financial condition. When a loss for a
legal claim is determined to be probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
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estimated, the Company establishes an accrued liability. Once established, accruals are adjusted from time to time, as appropriate, in light of additional
information. The amount of any loss ultimately incurred in relation to matters for which an accrual has been established may be higher or lower than the
amounts accrued for such matters. Legal fees associated with litigation and similar proceedings are expensed as incurred. In the event there is at least a
reasonable possibility that a loss may be incurred but the Company is unable to estimate the specific or range of amounts of such loss, the Company would
disclose such contingencies. The Company recognizes gain contingencies when the gain becomes realized or realizable.

During 2025, the Predecessor determined its intent to settle existing litigation matters for a settlement amount of $0.9 million, of which $0.5 million was
recovered from insurance, which was recorded as part of employee compensation and benefits for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Further, during
the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, the Predecessor repurchased outstanding preferred stock held by the employee.

(8) Share-based Compensation

Pursuant to the Strive 2022 Equity Incentive Plan, adopted on April 12, 2022, and as amended from time to time (together, the "2022 Plan"), the Company may,
subject to the terms and limitations of the 2022 Plan, grant compensatory awards, including restricted stock ("RSAs"), stock appreciation rights, restricted stock
units ("RSUs"), incentive stock options, and non-statutory stock options.

Incentive Stock Options

Pursuant to the 2022 Plan, options to purchase shares of the Company's common stock may be granted at an exercise price not less than 100% of the fair value
of the common stock subject to the option on the date the option is granted. A maximum of 166.0 million shares of common stock were authorized for issuance
under the 2022 Plan. Of this amount, 166.0 million shares remain available for future awards as of September 30, 2025.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

Pursuant to the 2022 Plan, RSAs and RSUs may be granted to certain employees, directors, and consultants. Substantially all RSAs and RSUs vest over periods
ranging from one to four years, pro-rata over the requisite service period, with the first vesting event occurring at the first anniversary of the award's grant date,
with subsequent pro-rata vesting events quarterly thereafter. The RSU grants also contain a performance condition requiring a Liquidity Event or IPO, as
defined in the 2022 Plan, to occur for the vesting of the RSUs. Compensation cost is recognized using the straight-line method over the requisite service period,
to the extent such performance condition is deemed probable, which occurred during the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025.

The 2022 Plan permits the grant of 58.9 million shares of common stock, of which 14.0 million remain available for future awards as of September 30, 2025.

During the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the Company granted 4.6 million RSU awards with a grant date fair value of $39.3 million.
The RSU awards were valued using the market price of our Class A common stock at the grant date.

During the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, the Predecessor granted 16 thousand RSU awards (which, after giving effect to the Exchange Ratio
as a result of the Asset Entities Merger, equaled 1.2 million RSU awards) with a grant date fair value of $0.8 million.

During the three months ended September 30, 2024, the Predecessor granted 319 thousand RSU awards (which, after giving effect to the Exchange Ratio as a
result of the Asset Entities Merger, equaled 22.6 million RSU awards) with a grant date fair value of $12.0 million.

During the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, the Predecessor granted 43 thousand RSU awards (which, after giving effect to the Exchange
Ratio as a result of the Asset Entities Merger, equaled 3.0 million RSU awards) with a grant date fair value of $2.1 million.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Predecessor granted 334 thousand RSU awards (which, after giving effect to the Exchange Ratio as a
result of the Asset Entities Merger, equaled 23.7 million RSU awards) with a grant date fair value of $12.7 million.

The Company recorded $16.3 million of share-based compensation expense for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, which is included
in employee compensation and benefits. No such share-based compensation expense was recorded for previous periods.
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At September 30, 2025, aggregate unrecognized compensation expense for unvested equity awards was $42.4 million, which is expected to be recognized over
a remaining weighted-average period of 2.7 years.

At December 31, 2024, aggregate unrecognized compensation expense for unvested equity awards was $21.0 million, which is expected to be recognized over
a remaining weighted-average period of 3.0 years.

(9) Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stock:
Authorized Capital

The Company has 21,000,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock, which have a designated par value of $0.001 per share. As of September 30, 2025, there
are no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

Common Stock:
Authorized Capital

The Company has 444,000,000,000 and 21,000,000,000 authorized shares of Class A and Class B common stock, respectively, all of which have a designated
par value of $0.001 per share. Each holder of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per Class A common share held, while each holder of Class B
common stock is entitled to ten votes per Class B common share held.

PIPE Financing

On May 26, 2025, Asset Entities Inc. and Strive Enterprises, Inc., entered into subscription agreements with certain accredited investors (the "PIPE
Subscribers" and the transactions collectively, the "PIPE Transactions"), pursuant to which the PIPE Subscribers agreed to purchase, and the Company agreed
to sell, the Company's Class A common stock at a price of $1.35 per share, with certain PIPE Subscribers agreeing to purchase pre-funded warrants (the "PIPE
Pre-Funded Warrants") to purchase shares of Class A common stock at a price of $1.3499 in lieu of Class A common shares. Each PIPE Pre-Funded Warrant
gives the holder the right to purchase a share of Class A common stock at an exercise price of $0.0001 per share. For each share of Class A common stock and
PIPE Pre-Funded Warrant purchased, the holder received a traditional warrant (the "PIPE Traditional Warrants"), which gives the holder the right to purchase a
share of Class A common stock at an exercise price of $1.35 per share.

On September 12, 2025, the Company consummated the PIPE Transactions, pursuant to which it issued 345.5 million shares of Class A common stock, 209.8
million PIPE Pre-Funded Warrants, and 555.3 million PIPE Traditional Warrants, and received gross proceeds of $749.6 million, with the ability to raise $749.6
million in additional gross proceeds upon the exercise of such warrants. Each PIPE Pre-Funded Warrant became immediately exercisable, and will be
exercisable until each PIPE Pre-Funded Warrant is exercised in full. Each PIPE Traditional Warrant became immediately exercisable, and will expire on the
first anniversary of the effectiveness date of the registration statement covering the resale of the PIPE securities.

Certain of the Company's officers and directors participated in the PIPE Transactions at equivalent terms as third-party participants. Certain members of
management, or entities controlled by members of management, purchased 0.3 million shares of Class A common stock and received 0.3 million PIPE
Traditional Warrants through their participation in the PIPE Transactions. Certain investment funds that are managed by one of the Company's board members,
and in which the director has a limited partner and general partner interest in the funds, participated in the PIPE Transactions, purchasing 1.1 million shares of
Class A common stock and 1.1 million Traditional Warrants.

The table below summarizes activity related to the Company's PIPE Traditional Warrants and PIPE Pre-Funded Warrants for the period from September 12,
2025 to September 30, 2025:

Period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025

PIPE Traditional Warrants PIPE Pre-Funded Warrants
PIPE warrants outstanding, beginning of period — —
Issued 555,259,256 209,771,462
Exercised (9,629,629) (32,525,000)
Expired — —
PIPE warrants outstanding, end of period 545,629,627 177,246,462
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351 Exchange

On August 22, 2025, Asset Entities Inc. and Strive Enterprises, Inc., entered into exchange agreements with certain accredited investors (the "351 Investors"
and the transactions collectively, the "351 Exchange"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and exchange 2.7 million shares of the Company's Class
A common stock in exchange for an aggregate amount of 69 bitcoin. The exchange ratio was determined based on the price of bitcoin on August 22, 2025 and
an assumed price of $3.00 per share of Class A common stock. The 351 Exchange was completed on September 12, 2025, at which time the Company issued
2.7 million shares of Class A common stock in exchange for 69 bitcoin. For the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the Company recorded
a realized loss of $14.7 million based on the difference between the fair value of the Company's Class A common stock at the exchange date and the agreed-
upon exchange price, which is recorded in other derivative loss on the Company's consolidated statements of operations.

At-the-Market Common Equity Program

On September 15, 2025, the Company entered into a Controlled Equity Offering®M Sales Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (the
“Agent”), pursuant to which the Company, from time to time, at its option, may offer and sell shares of its Class A common stock to or through the Agent,
acting as the principal and/or the sole agent, having an aggregate sales price of up to $450.0 million. During the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025, the Company issued 11.0 million shares of Class A common stock for aggregate gross proceeds of $59.2 million. As of September 30, 2025, the
Company has the availability to raise approximately $390.8 million through the issuance and sale of its Class A common stock pursuant to the Sales
Agreement.

Share Repurchase Program

On September 15, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to $500.0 million of its Class A common stock through a share
repurchase program. Repurchases may be made from time-to-time, subject to general business and market conditions, other investment opportunities, and
applicable legal requirements. Repurchases may be made through open market purchases or privately negotiated transactions, including through Rule 10b5-1
plans. During the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the Company has not repurchased any Class A common stock. As of September 30,
2025, $500.0 million of Class A common stock remains available for repurchase through the share repurchase program.

(10) Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Common Share

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average common stock outstanding during the respective
period. The impact from potential shares of common stock on the diluted earnings per common share calculation are included only when dilutive.

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share are calculated as follows (in thousands, except for share and per share data):

Numerator:
Net loss

Denominator:

Basic and diluted weighted average shares of common stock outstanding

Income (loss) per common share:
Basic income (loss) per common share

Diluted income (loss) per common share

Successor

Predecessor

Period from September
12, 2025 to September

Period from July 1,
2025 to September 11, Three months ended

30, 2025 2025 September 30, 2024
$ (192,287) | $ (14,366)  $ (6,802)

872,349,183 2,325,783 2,225,816
$ 0.22) 6.18) (3.06)
$ 0.22) 6.18) (3.06)
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Successor Predecessor
Period from September Period from January 1,
12, 2025 to September 2025 to September 11, Nine Months Ended
30, 2025 2025 September 30, 2024
Numerator:
Net loss $ (192,287) | $ (26,990) $ (17,462)
Denominator:
Basic and diluted weighted average shares of common stock outstanding 872,349,183 2,299,243 2,200,848
Income (loss) per common share:
Basic income (loss) per common share $ 022) | $ (11.74) $ (7.93)
Diluted income (loss) per common share $ 022) | $ (11.74) $ (7.93)

During the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, 329.4 million weighted-average shares of potential common stock related to outstanding
warrants and stock awards were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per common share as their impact would have been anti-dilutive.

During the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, 1.2 million weighted-average shares of potential common stock were excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings (loss) per common share as their impact would have been anti-dilutive and certain performance-contingent RSUs were
excluded from the diluted EPS calculation because the contractual contingencies were not met.

During the three months ended September 30, 2024, 1.3 million weighted-average shares of potential common stock were excluded from the computation of
diluted earnings (loss) per common share as their impact would have been anti-dilutive and certain performance-contingent RSUs were excluded from the
diluted EPS calculation because the contractual contingencies were not met.

During the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, 1.2 million weighted-average shares of potential common stock were excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings (loss) per common share as their impact would have been anti-dilutive and certain performance-contingent RSUs were
excluded from the diluted EPS calculation because the contractual contingencies were not met.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, 1.0 million weighted-average shares of potential common stock were excluded from the computation of
diluted earnings (loss) per common share as their impact would have been anti-dilutive and certain performance-contingent RSUs were excluded from the
diluted EPS calculation because the contractual contingencies were not met.

(11) Income Taxes

The Company had no income tax benefit or expense during the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the period from July 1, 2025 to
September 11, 2025, the three months ended September 30, 2024, the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, and the nine months ended
September 30, 2024, which resulted in an effective tax rate of zero for each period. The Company's effective tax rate differs from the U.S. federal corporate
statutory rate of 21.0% primarily due to Company's net loss from operations, which resulted in a net taxable loss for each period. The Company had no net
deferred tax asset as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 due to the establishment of a full valuation allowance.

Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") Section 382 addresses company ownership changes and specifically limits the utilization of certain deduction and tax attributes
on an annual basis. As a result of the Asset Entities Merger and the pending Semler Merger, the Company's tax attributes, including net operating losses, may
be subject to IRC Section 382 limitations.

(12) Segment Information

Beginning in 2025, the Company's management directs operations as two reportable operating segments, the “Asset Management” segment, which provides
investment advisory services and the "Corporate and Other" segment, which includes the Company's bitcoin treasury operations. Prior to 2025, the Company's
management evaluated performance and
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allocated resources in consideration of only one operating segment, the Asset Management segment, as the Company's sole operations were related to its asset
management business, with no consideration of a potential bitcoin treasury strategy. As a result, prior to 2025, all revenues and expenses were related to the
Company's Asset Management segment. Beginning in 2025, costs that are not directly allocable to a specific operating segment, including, but not limited to,
employee-related costs, general and administrative expenses, such as rent expense, and depreciation and amortization, are allocated using a reasonable
allocation methodology, which is primarily represented by the relative percentage of resources used by each segment.

The Company's CODM is its Chief Executive Officer, who utilizes key financial metrics, including net income (loss), to assess performance and make
decisions regarding allocation of resources, such as capital allocation, determining compensation, and managing costs. The CODM also evaluates significant
revenues and expenses by reportable segment to evaluate key operating decisions.

The following summarizes the information reviewed by the CODM to evaluate the Company's Asset Management and Corporate and Other net income (loss)
for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, and the three months ended September 30,
2024 (amounts in thousands):

Period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 (Successor)

Asset Management Corporate & Other Total Consolidated
Revenues:
Investment advisory fees $ 246§ — 8 246
Other revenue — 9 9
Total revenues 246 9 255
Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration 282 — 282
Employee compensation and benefits 3,129 15,591 18,720
General and administrative expense 91 354 445
Marketing and advertising 3 15 18
Depreciation and amortization — 12 12
Total operating expenses 3,505 15,972 19,477
Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets — (10,133) (10,133)
Other derivative loss — (14,731) (14,731)
Net investment gains/(losses) — (24,864) (24,864)
Net operating loss (3,259) (40,827) (44,086)
Other income/(expense):
Other income 3 65 68
Transaction costs — (7.,484) (7,484)
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment — (140,785) (140,785)
Total other income/(expense) 3 (148,204) (148,201)
Net loss before income taxes (3,256) (189,031) (192,287)
Income tax benefit/(expense) — — —
Net loss $ (3,256) $ (189,031) $ (192,287)
Period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025 (Predecessor)
Asset Management Corporate & Other Total Consolidated

Revenues:
Investment advisory fees $ 1,283  § — 3 1,283
Other revenue = S S
Total revenues 1,283 5 1,288
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Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration
Employee compensation and benefits
General and administrative expense
Marketing and advertising
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets
Other derivative loss

Net investment gains/(losses)

Net operating loss

Other income/(expense):
Other income/(expense)
Transaction costs
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Total other income/(expense)

Net loss before income taxes
Income tax benefit/(expense)

Net loss

Revenues:
Investment advisory fees
Other revenue

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration
Employee compensation and benefits
General and administrative expense
Marketing and advertising
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets
Other derivative loss

Net investment gains/(losses)

Net operating loss

Other income/(expense):
Other income
Transaction costs
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Total other income/(expense)

Net loss before income taxes

1,251 — 1,251
1,550 1,601 3,151
252 619 871

10 58 68

— 43 43
3,063 2,321 5,384

(1,780) (2,316) (4,096)
15 ®) 10

— (10,280) (10,280)

15 (10,285) (10,270)

(1,765) (12,601) (14,366)

(1,765) $ (12,601) $ (14,366)

Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 (Predecessor)
Asset Management Corporate & Other Total Consolidated

950 $ — 3 950
34 — 34
984 — 984
1,272 — 1,272
2,182 — 2,182
4,404 — 4,404
89 — 89
47 — 47
7,994 — 7,994
(7,010) — (7,010)
208 — 208
208 — 208
(6,802) — (6,802)



Income tax benefit/(expense) — — _
Net loss $ (6,802) $ — 3 (6,802)

The following summarizes the information reviewed by the CODM to evaluate the Company's Asset Management and Corporate and Other net income (loss)
for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, and the nine months ended September
30, 2024 (amounts in thousands):

Period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 (Successor)

Asset Management Corporate & Other Total Consolidated
Revenues:
Investment advisory fees $ 246 $ — S 246
Other revenue — 9 9
Total revenues 246 9 255
Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration 282 — 282
Employee compensation and benefits 3,129 15,591 18,720
General and administrative expense 91 354 445
Marketing and advertising 3 15 18
Depreciation and amortization = 12 12
Total operating expenses 3,505 15,972 19,477
Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets — (10,133) (10,133)
Other derivative loss — (14,731) (14,731)
Net investment gains/(losses) — (24,864) (24,864)
Net operating loss (3,259) (40,827) (44,086)
Other income/(expense):
Other income 3 65 68
Transaction costs — (7,484) (7,484)
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment — (140,785) (140,785)
Total other income/(expense) 3 (148,204) (148,201)
Net loss before income taxes (3,256) (189,031) (192,287)
Income tax benefit/(expense) — — —
Net loss $ (3,256) $ (189,031) § (192,287)
Period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025 (Predecessor)
Asset Management Corporate & Other Total Consolidated
Revenues:
Investment advisory fees $ 4,187 — $ 4,187
Other revenue 7 28 35
Total revenues 4,194 28 4,222
Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration 4,250 — 4,250
Employee compensation and benefits 4,861 2,361 7,222
General and administrative expense 2,672 1,557 4,229
Marketing and advertising 88 143 231
Depreciation and amortization 52 97 149
Total operating expenses 11,923 4,158 16,081
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Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets
Other derivative loss

Net investment gains/(losses)

Net operating loss

Other income/(expense):
Other income
Transaction costs
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Total other income/(expense)

Net loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit/(expense)

Net loss

Revenues:
Investment advisory fees
Other revenue

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration
Employee compensation and benefits
General and administrative expense
Marketing and advertising
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets
Other derivative loss

Net investment gains/(losses)

Net operating loss

Other income/(expense):
Other income
Transaction costs
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Total other income/(expense)

Net loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit/(expense)

Net loss

(7,729) (4,130) (11,859)
360 226 586
— (15,717) (15,717)
360 (15,491) (15,131)
(7,369) (19,621) (26,990)
$ (7,369) $ (19,621) $ (26,990)
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 (Predecessor)
Asset Management Corporate & Other Total Consolidated

$ 2,560 $ — 8 2,560
55 — 55

2,615 — 2,615

3,488 — 3,488

6,465 — 6,465

10,040 — 10,040

443 — 443

141 — 141

20,577 — 20,577

(17,962) — (17,962)

500 — 500

500 — 500

(17,462) — (17,462)

$ (17,462) $ — 3 (17,462)
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The total assets of the Company's operating segments are summarized as follows (in thousands):

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
(Successor) (Predecessor)
Asset Management $ 1,471  $ 28,197
Corporate & Other 791,105 —
Total $ 792,576 $ 28,197

(13) Subsequent Events
Digital asset update

During the period from October 1, 2025 to November 7, 2025, the Company purchased approximately 1,639.4 bitcoin at an average price of approximately
$103,799.81 per bitcoin, for a total purchase amount of $170.2 million, inclusive of fees and expenses.

Capital stock update

As of November 7, 2025, the Company had 592,579,510 and 222,904,100 shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock outstanding,
respectively.

Exercise of PIPE Pre-Funded Warrants

During the period from October 1, 2025 to November 7, 2025, 113,072,210 PIPE Pre-Funded Warrants were exercised for shares of Class A common stock. As
of November 7, 2025, 64,174,252 PIPE Pre-Funded Warrants remain outstanding.

Exercise of PIPE Traditional Warrants

During the period from October 1, 2025 to November 7, 2025, the Company received gross proceeds of $14.9 million through the exercise of 11,073,518 PIPE
Traditional Warrants. As of November 7, 2025, 534,556,109 PIPE Traditional Warrants remain outstanding.

At-the-market offering

During the period from October 1, 2025 to November 7, 2025, the Company issued an aggregate of 2,375,138 shares of its Class A common stock under the
Sales Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of $6.2 million. As of November 7, 2025, the Company has the availability to raise approximately $384.6
million through the issuance and sale of its Class A common stock pursuant to the Sales Agreement.

Initial public offering of SATA Stock

On November 10, 2025, the Company completed a registered public offering of 2,000,000 shares of its Variable Rate Series A Perpetual Preferred Stock
(“SATA Stock”), at a price to the public of $80.00 per share, for net proceeds of approximately $149.3 million, after deducting the underwriting discounts and
commissions and the Company’s estimated offering expenses. The Company filed a certificate of designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada
designating and establishing the terms of the SATA Stock. The SATA Stock is listed for trading on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “SATA.”

The SATA Stock accumulates cumulative dividends ("regular dividends") at a variable rate (as described below) per annum on the stated amount of $100 per
share thereof. Regular dividends on the SATA Stock will be payable when, as and if declared by the Company’s board of directors or any duly authorized
committee thereof, out of funds legally available for their payment, monthly in arrears on the 15th calendar day of each calendar month, beginning on
December 15, 2025. The initial monthly regular dividend rate per annum is 12.00%. However, the Company has the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to
adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum applicable to subsequent regular dividend periods. The Company’s right to adjust the monthly regular
dividend rate per annum is subject to certain restrictions. For example, the Company is not permitted to reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum
that will apply to any regular dividend period (i) by more than the following amount from the monthly regular dividend rate per annum applicable to the prior
regular dividend period: the sum of (1) 25 basis points; and (2) the excess, if any, of (x) the one-month term secured overnight financing rate (“SOFR”) rate on
the first business day of such prior regular dividend period, over (y) the minimum of the one-month term SOFR rates that occur on the business days during the
period from, and including, the first business day of such prior regular dividend period to, and including, the last business day of such prior regular dividend
period; or (ii) to a rate per annum that is less than the one-month term SOFR rate in effect on the business day before the Company provides notice of the next
monthly regular dividend rate per annum. In addition, the Company is not entitled to elect to reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum unless and
until (x) three (3) months following the initial issue date, or such earlier time as the arithmetic average of the last reported sale prices per share of SATA Stock
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for each trading day of twenty (20) consecutive trading days at any time during the three (3) months following the initial issuance date exceeds $100, (y) all
accumulated regular dividends, if any, on the SATA Stock then outstanding for all prior completed regular dividend periods, if any, have been paid in full, and
(z) the arithmetic average of the last reported sale prices per share of SATA Stock for each trading day during the immediately preceding regular dividend
period is not less than $99 per share. The Company’s current intention (which is subject to change in the Company’s sole and absolute discretion) is to adjust
the monthly regular dividend rate per annum in such manner as the Company believes will maintain SATA Stock’s trading price within its stated long-term
range of $95 and $105 per share. Declared regular dividends on the SATA Stock will be payable solely in cash. In the event that any accumulated regular
dividend on the SATA Stock is not paid on the applicable regular dividend payment date, then additional regular dividends (“SATA compounded dividends™)
will accumulate on the amount of such unpaid regular dividend, compounded monthly. The compounded dividend rate applicable to any unpaid regular
dividend that was due on a regular dividend payment date (or, if such regular dividend payment date is not a business day, the next business day) will initially
be a rate per annum equal to 12.00% plus 25 basis points; provided, however, that, until such regular dividend, together with compounded dividends thereon, is
paid in full, such compounded dividend rate will increase by 25 basis points per month for each subsequent regular dividend period, up to a maximum dividend
rate of 20% per annum. The SATA Stock also has certain redemption and repurchase rights, in the manner, and subject to the terms, set forth in the SATA Stock
certificate of designation.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and determined that, except as disclosed within these
consolidated financial statements, there have been no other events that have occurred that would require accrual or additional disclosure.

22



Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
nn

to those consolidated financial statements included in Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. References to "we", "us", "our", or "the Company" refer
to Strive, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries unless specifically stated otherwise.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this “Quarterly Report”) contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Rule 175 promulgated thereunder, and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and Rule 3b-6 promulgated thereunder, which statements involve inherent risks and

uncertainties. Such statements are often characterized by the use of qualified words (and their derivatives) such as “may,” “will,” “anticipate,” “could,”
“should,” “would,” “believe,” “contemplate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “continue,” “plan,” “project,” “predict,” “potential,” “assume,” “forecast,” “target,”
“budget,” “outlook,” “trend,” “guidance,” “objective,” “goal,” “strategy,” “opportunity,” and “intend,” as well as words of similar meaning or other statements

concerning opinions or judgment of the Company or its management about future events. Forward-looking statements are based on assumptions as of the time
they are made and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors that are difficult to predict with regard to timing, extent, likelihood and degree of
occurrence, which could cause actual results to differ materially from anticipated results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

Although Company believes that its expectations with respect to forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions within the bounds of its
existing knowledge of its business and operations, there can be no assurance that actual results of Company will not differ materially from any projected future
results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Additional factors that could cause results to differ materially from those described above can
be found under the “Risk Factors” heading in Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, under the “Risk Factors” heading in Company’s Form S-4 filed on
August 6, 2025 and October 10, 2025, under the “Supplementary Risk Factors” filed as an exhibit to Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 24, 2025, and the risks that can be found in Company’s other documents filed with the SEC. The actual results anticipated may not be realized or,
even if substantially realized, they may not have the expected consequences to or effects on Company. Investors are cautioned not to rely too heavily on any
such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report speak only as of the date hereof, and Company undertakes no
obligation to update or clarify these forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent
required by applicable law.

Overview

Strive was founded with a mission to maximize long-term value for shareholders through the unapologetic embrace of capitalism, meritocracy and innovation.
Following the completion of Strive Enterprises, Inc.'s reverse acquisition of Asset Entities Inc. in September 2025, Strive began operating as a publicly traded
company and began deploying capital to execute on its bitcoin treasury strategy, becoming the first publicly traded bitcoin treasury asset management firm.

As of September 30, 2025, the Company manages over $2.0 billion in assets under management ("AUM") across 13 exchange, collective investment trusts, and
a direct indexing platform. These activities provide recurring, fee-based revenue streams which increase with AUM. Beginning in fiscal year 2026, we plan to
operate our asset-management segment within a single-digit-million dollar operating loss to single-digit-million dollar operating profit range.

Our Bitcoin Strategy

Our bitcoin strategy generally involves, from time to time, subject to market conditions and the need for cash and cash equivalents to meet short-term working
capital requirements, (i) acquiring bitcoin using open market purchases using available cash, which may be raised from our operating activities as well as
capital raising initiatives, such as issuing equity and fixed income offerings, among other capital raise strategies (collectively, "beta" initiatives) and (ii)
acquiring bitcoin through alpha strategies, such as acquiring bitcoin through strategic M&A activity or other transactions, resulting in the acquisition of bitcoin
at a discount relative to market value, which are intended to deliver returns above and beyond what beta initiatives may deliver alone.

As of September 30, 2025, the Company held approximately 5,886 bitcoin, with a total cost of $683.0 million, and a fair value of $672.9 million, which were
acquired at an average price of $116,053, including fees and expenses.
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Available Information

Our website is located at www.strive.com. We make available free of charge, on or through the Investor Relations section of our website
(https://investors.strive.com), our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing or furnishing such
reports with the SEC. Information found on our website is not part of this Quarterly Report or any other report filed with the SEC. The SEC maintains an
Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers, including us, that file or furnish electronically
with the SEC at www.sec.gov. We also maintain a dashboard on our website (https://treasury.strive.com/) as a disclosure channel for providing broad, non-
exclusionary distribution of information regarding the Company to the public, including information regarding market prices of our outstanding securities,
bitcoin purchases and holdings, certain KPI metrics and other supplemental information, and as one means of disclosing non-public information in compliance
with our disclosure obligations under Regulation FD. Investors and others are encouraged to regularly review the information that we make public via the
website dashboard.

Recent Developments
Third quarter highlights

On May 6, 2025, Strive Enterprises, Inc. entered into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 6, 2025, as amended by that certain Amended
and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2025 (the "Asset Entities Merger Agreement"), with Asset Entities Inc. On September 12,
2025, pursuant to the Asset Entities Merger Agreement, Alpha Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asset Entities, merged with and into Strive
Enterprises, Inc., with Strive Enterprises, Inc. surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Asset Entities. Concurrent with the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Asset Entities Merger Agreement, Asset Entities Inc. was renamed Strive, Inc. and became the first bitcoin treasury asset management
firm.

Concurrent with the consummation of the Asset Entities Merger, the Company closed its previously announced PIPE financing transaction, issuing Class A
common stock and pre-funded warrants to raise $749.6 million in gross proceeds, with the ability to raise $749.6 million in additional gross proceeds upon the
exercise of traditional warrants issued to PIPE participants. In addition, the Company completed an exchange pursuant to Section 351 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, with certain accredited investors, in which the Company exchanged 2.7 million shares of Class A common stock for 69 bitcoin (the
"351 Exchange"). The bitcoin acquired through the 351 Exchange, along with open market purchases of 5,817 bitcoin by the Company, resulted in the
Company acquiring an aggregate of 5,886 bitcoin during the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025.

On September 15, 2025, the Company entered into a Controlled Equity Offering™ Sales Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (the
“Agent”), pursuant to which the Company, from time to time, at its option, may offer and sell shares of its Class A common stock to or through the Agent,
acting as the principal and/or the sole agent, having an aggregate sales price of up to $450.0 million. During the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025, the Company issued 11.0 million shares of Class A common stock for aggregate gross proceeds of $59.2 million. As of September 30, 2025, the
Company has the availability to raise approximately $390.8 million through the issuance and sale of its Class A common stock pursuant to the Sales
Agreement.

On September 22, 2025, the Company entered into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Semler Merger Agreement") with Semler Scientific, Inc.
("Semler" and the transaction, the "Semler Merger"). Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Semler Merger Agreement, Semler is expected to
become a wholly owned subsidiary of Strive. Entry into the Semler Merger Agreement was unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of each of Strive
and Semler. Pursuant to the Semler Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Semler Merger, each share of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of
Semler issued and outstanding immediately before the effective time (other than treasury shares held by Semler and certain shares held by Strive) will be
converted into the right to receive 21.05 shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of Strive. The transaction is subject to customary closing
conditions and approval by Semler sharecholders. No assurances can be made that the transaction will close at the currently disclosed terms.

On November 10, 2025, the Company completed a registered public offering of 2,000,000 shares of its Variable Rate Series A Perpetual Preferred Stock
(“SATA Stock”), at a price to the public of $80.00 per share, for net proceeds of approximately $149.3 million, after deducting the underwriting discounts and
commissions and the Company’s estimated offering expenses. The Company filed a certificate of designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada
designating and establishing the terms of the SATA Stock. The SATA Stock is listed for trading on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “SATA.” All
net proceeds from the offering were used for general corporate purposes, including the acquisition of bitcoin and for working capital.
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Results of Operations

The comparability of our operating results for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 (Successor), for the period from July 1, 2025 to
September 11, 2025 (Predecessor), and for the three months ended September 30, 2024 (Predecessor) as well as the comparability of our operating results for
the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 (Successor), for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025 (Predecessor), and for the
nine months ended September 30, 2024 (Predecessor) was impacted by our Asset Entities Merger and may not be comparable. For the purposes of the
comparison of the results of operations below, we have compared the relevant Predecessor three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 to the respective
combined Predecessor and Successor periods of 2025.

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2025 and the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024
The following table presents information regarding the consolidated results of operations for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025

(Successor) and for the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025 (Predecessor) compared to the three months ended September 30, 2024 (Predecessor)
(amounts in thousands, other than percentages):

Successor Predecessor Increase (Decrease)
Period from
September 12, 2025 Period from July 1,
to September 30, 2025 to September  Three Months Ended
2025 11, 2025 September 30, 2024 $ %
Revenues:
Investment advisory fees $ 246 $ 1,283  § 950 $ 579 60.9 %
Other revenue 9 5 34 (20) (58.8)%
Total revenues 255 1,288 984 559 56.8 %
Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration 282 1,251 1,272 261 20.5 %
Employee compensation and benefits 18,720 3,151 2,182 19,689 902.3 %
General and administrative expense 445 871 4,404 (3,088) (70.1)%
Marketing and advertising 18 68 89 3) 3.4)%
Depreciation and amortization 12 43 47 8 17.0 %
Total operating expenses 19,477 5,384 7,994 16,867 211.0 %
Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets (10,133) — — (10,133) (100.0)%
Other derivative loss (14,731) — — (14,731) (100.0)%
Net investment gains/(losses) (24,864) - - (24,864) (100.0)%
Net operating loss (44,086) (4,096) (7,010) (41,172) 587.3%
Other income/(expense):
Other income 68 10 208 (130) (62.5)%
Transaction costs (7,484) (10,280) — (17,764) (100.0)%
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment (140,785) — — (140,785) (100.0)%
Total other income/(expense) (148,201) (10,270) 208 (158,679) (76,288.0)%
Net loss before income taxes (192,287) (14,366) (6,802) (199,851) 2,938.1 %
Income tax benefit/(expense) — — — —%
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Net loss $ (192,287) | $ (14,366) $ (6,802) $ (199,851) 2,938.1 %

Investment advisory fees

Investment advisory fees increased by $0.6 million, or 60.9%, to $1.5 million ($0.2 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 and
$1.3 million for the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $1.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024. This increase was
driven by an increase in assets under management of Strive offerings.

Other revenue
Other revenue remained at less than $0.1 million during all periods.
Fund management and administration

Fund management and administration expense increased by $0.3 million, or 20.5%, to $1.5 million ($0.3 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to
September 30, 2025 and $1.3 million for the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $1.3 million for the three months ended September 30,
2024. This increase was primarily due to an expansion in AUM held within previously launched Strive funds.

Employee compensation and benefits

Employee compensation and benefits expense increased by $19.7 million, or 902.3%, to $21.9 million ($18.7 million for the period from September 12, 2025
to September 30, 2025 and $3.2 million for the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $2.2 million for the three months ended September 30,
2024. This increase was primarily a result of stock compensation expense recorded during the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 as a
result of the achievement of the liquidity event performance condition, which resulted in an increase of $16.3 million, largely due to the one-time catch up of
previously time-vested awards. This was paired with an increase in the average headcount in 2025 compared to 2024.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense decreased by $3.1 million, or (70.1)%, to $1.3 million ($0.4 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025 and $0.9 million for the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $4.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024. This
decrease was primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting expenses of $3.0 million related to the launch of the wealth management business line in late
2024, regulatory compliance consultations, general counsel representation and various legal matters throughout 2024.

Marketing and advertising

Marketing and advertising remained at less than $0.1 million during all periods.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization remained at less than $0.1 million during all periods presented.
Net unrealized loss on digital assets

Net unrealized loss on digital assets increased by $10.1 million, or (100.0)%, to $10.1 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025.
The Company did not hold any digital assets throughout periods prior to September 12, 2025.

Other derivative loss

Other derivative loss increased by $14.7 million, or (100.0)%, to $14.7 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, which was
driven by the market price of the Company's Class A common stock being higher than the price agreed-upon as part of the exchange of bitcoin for Class A
common shares at the exchange date.

Other income

Other income decreased by $0.1 million, or (62.5)%, to $0.1 million ($68 thousand for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 and $10
thousand for the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024. This decrease was due to
decreases in market interest rates as well as a non-recurring expense incurred during the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025.

Transaction costs
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Transaction costs increased by $17.8 million, or (100.0)%, to $17.8 million ($7.5 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 and
$10.3 million for the period from July 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from no transaction costs for the three months ended September 30, 2024. This increase
was primarily due to accounting and legal costs incurred related to the Asset Entities Merger and the pending Semler Merger, which did not occur during the
three months ended September 30, 2024.

Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Goodwill and intangible asset impairment increased by $140.8 million, or (100.0)%, to $140.8 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025. The Company performed an impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets acquired as part of the Asset Entities Merger and determined
that these assets were impaired. No such impairments occurred during the three months ended September 30, 2024.

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2025 and the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024
The following table presents information regarding the consolidated results of operations for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025

(Successor) and for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025 (Predecessor) compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024
(Predecessor) (amounts in thousands, other than percentages):

Successor Predecessor Increase (Decrease)
Period from
September 12, 2025 Period from
to September 30, January 1, 2025 to Nine Months Ended
2025 September 11, 2025 September 30, 2024 $ %
Revenues:
Investment advisory fees $ 246 $ 4,187 $ 2,560 $ 1,873 73.2%
Other revenue 9 35 55 (11) (20.0)%
Total revenues 255 4222 2,615 1,862 71.2%
Operating expenses:
Fund management and administration 282 4,250 3,488 1,044 29.9 %
Employee compensation and benefits 18,720 7,222 6,465 19,477 301.3 %
General and administrative expense 445 4,229 10,040 (5,366) (53.4)%
Marketing and advertising 18 231 443 (194) (43.8)%
Depreciation and amortization 12 149 141 20 14.2 %
Total operating expenses 19,477 16,081 20,577 14,981 72.8 %
Investment gains/(losses):
Net unrealized loss on digital assets (10,133) — — (10,133) (100.0)%
Other derivative loss (14,731) — — (14,731) (100.0)%
Net investment gains/(losses) (24,864) — — (24,864) (100.0)%
Net operating loss (44,086) (11,859) (17,962) (37,983) 211.5%
Other income/(expense):
Other income 68 586 500 154 30.8 %
Transaction costs (7,484) (15,717) — (23,201) (100.0)%
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment (140,785) — — (140,785) (100.0)%
Total other income/(expense) (148,201) (15,131) 500 (163,832) (32,766.4)%
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Net loss before income taxes (192,287) (26,990) (17,462) (201,815) 1,155.7 %

Income tax benefit/(expense) — — — _ 9
Net loss $ (192,287) | $ (26,990) $ (17,462) § (201,815) 1,155.7 %

Investment advisory fees

Investment advisory fees increased by $1.9 million, or 73.2%, to $4.4 million ($0.2 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 and
$4.2 million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $2.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. This increase was
driven by an increase in assets under management of existing Strive offerings, leading to an increase in investment advisory fees of $1.8 million, coupled with
additional Strive fund offerings launched in 2024 and 2025.

Other revenue
Other revenue remained at less than $0.1 million during all periods.
Fund management and administration

Fund management and administration expense increased by $1.0 million, or 29.9%, to $4.5 million ($0.3 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to
September 30, 2025 and $4.3 million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $3.5 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2024. This increase was primarily due to expansion in AUM held within previously launched Strive funds, which led to a $0.8 million increase, as well as
additional Strive fund offerings launched

Employee compensation and benefits

Employee compensation and benefits expense increased by $19.5 million, or 301.3%, to $25.9 million ($18.7 million for the period from September 12, 2025
to September 30, 2025 and $7.2 million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $6.5 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2024. This increase was primarily a result of stock compensation expense recorded during the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 as a
result of the achievement of the liquidity event performance condition, which resulted in an increase of $16.3 million, largely due to the one-time catch up of
previously time-vested awards. This was paired with an increase in the average headcount in 2025 compared to 2024.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense decreased by $5.4 million, or (53.4)%, to $4.7 million ($0.4 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025 and $4.2 million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $10.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. This
decrease was primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting expenses of $5.1 million related to the launch of the wealth management business line in late
2024, regulatory compliance consultations, general counsel representation and various legal matters throughout 2024.

Marketing and advertising

Marketing and advertising decreased by less than $0.2 million, or (43.8)%, to $0.2 million ($18 thousand for the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025 and $0.2 million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. This
decrease was primarily due to additional marketing consulting and advertising services as a result of additional public relations efforts throughout 2024.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by less than $0.1 million, or 14.2%, to $0.2 million ($12 thousand for the period from September 12, 2025 to
September 30, 2025 and $0.1 million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $0.1 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2024. This increase was due to purchases of property, plant, and equipment during 2024.

Net unrealized loss on digital assets

Net unrealized loss on digital assets increased by $10.1 million, or (100.0)%, to $10.1 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025.
The Company did not hold any digital assets during periods prior to September 12, 2025.

Other derivative loss
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Other derivative loss increased by $14.7 million, or (100.0)%, to $14.7 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, which was
driven by the market price of the Company's Class A common stock being higher than the price agreed-upon as part of the exchange of bitcoin for Class A
common shares at the exchange date.

Other income

Other income increased by $0.2 million, or 30.8%, to $0.7 million ($68 thousand for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 and $0.6
million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from $0.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. This increase was due to
an increase in the average level of holdings of interest-bearing assets during 2025 as compared to 2024.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs increased by $23.2 million, or (100.0)%, to $23.2 million ($7.5 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025 and
$15.7 million for the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025) from no transaction costs for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. This
increase was primarily due to accounting and legal costs incurred related to the Asset Entities Merger and the pending Semler Merger, which did not occur
during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.

Goodwill and intangible asset impairment

Goodwill and intangible asset impairment increased by $140.8 million, or (100.0)%, to $140.8 million for the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025. The Company performed an impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets acquired as part of the Asset Entities Merger and determined
that these assets were impaired. No such impairments occurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

The following table summarizes Strive's available liquidity (in thousands):

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
(Successor) (Predecessor)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 109,069 $ 6,155
Short-term investments — 16,755
Digital assets, at fair value 672,913 —
Total liquidity $ 781,982 § 22,910

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. Cash and cash equivalents may include holdings in bank demand
deposits, money market investments, and certificates of deposit. Strive considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents. Short-term investments consist of U.S. Treasury Bills that have a maturity exceeding three months and less than 12
months at the time of purchase. Strive classifies short-term investments as held-to-maturity based on Strive’s intent and ability to hold these investments until
maturity. The Company decreased holdings of short-term investments period-over-period, instead holding in cash and cash equivalents, to meet commitments
from recent transactions and to opportunistically invest in bitcoin and bitcoin-related product investments.

Although the Company holds significant investments in bitcoin, all of which are unencumbered, the Company's intention is to hold these assets and not
liquidate any such investments for working capital needs.

Management believes that Strive's liquidity position puts the Company in a position of strategic advantage to execute on strategic initiatives and meet working
capital needs for at least the next twelve months.

Capital resources

On September 12, 2025, the Company consummated a private offering of Class A common stock, Pre-Funded Warrants, and Traditional Warrants, pursuant to
which it issued 345.5 million shares of Class A common stock, 209.8 million PIPE Pre-Funded Warrants, and 555.3 million PIPE Traditional Warrants, and
received gross proceeds of $749.6 million, with the ability to raise $749.6 million in additional gross proceeds upon the exercise of such warrants. Each PIPE
Pre-Funded Warrant became immediately exercisable, and will be exercisable until each PIPE Pre-Funded Warrant is exercised in full.
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Each PIPE Traditional Warrant became immediately exercisable, and will expire on the first anniversary of the effectiveness date of the registration statement
covering the resale of the PIPE securities.

On September 15, 2025, the Company entered into a Controlled Equity Offering®™ Sales Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (the
“Agent”), pursuant to which the Company, from time to time, at its option, may offer and sell shares of its Class A common stock to or through the Agent,
acting as the principal and/or the sole agent, having an aggregate sales price of up to $450.0 million. During the period from September 12, 2025 to September
30, 2025, the Company issued 11.0 million shares of Class A common stock for aggregate gross proceeds of $59.2 million. As of September 30, 2025, the
Company has the availability to raise approximately $390.8 million through the issuance and sale of its Class A common stock pursuant to the Sales
Agreement.

On September 15, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to $500.0 million of its Class A common stock through a share
repurchase program. Repurchases may be made from time-to-time, subject to general business and market conditions, other investment opportunities, and
applicable legal requirements. Repurchases may be made through open market purchases or privately negotiated transactions, including through Rule 10b5-1
plans. During the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, the Company has not repurchased any Class A common stock. As of September 30,
2025, $500.0 million of our Class A common stock remains available through the share repurchase program.

On November 10, 2025, we issued 2,000,000 shares of SATA Stock in a public offering registered under the Securities Act. In connection with such issuance,
we filed the certificate of designation for the SATA Stock with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada designating an aggregate of 2,000,000 shares of,
and establishing the terms of, the SATA Stock. We received approximately $149.3 million of net proceeds, after deducting the underwriting discounts and
commissions and our offering expenses, from the issuance of our SATA Stock in the initial public offering of SATA Stock. All net proceeds from the offering
were used for general corporate purposes, including the acquisition of bitcoin and for working capital.

Contractual and Other Obligations

As of September 30, 2025, our material contractual obligations and commitments primarily include operating leases and employee compensation agreements.
Strive did not have any long-term debt or other long-term liabilities as of September 30, 2025.

Strive maintains operating leases for its office locations in Dallas, Texas and Dublin, Ohio. In May 2025, Strive entered into an agreement to sub-lease the
Dublin, Ohio office location to a third-party for substantially the same terms as Strive’s lease. At September 30, 2025, Strive had operating lease payment
obligations of approximately $5.6 million, of which $0.7 million is payable within 12 months. Of these amounts, $2.4 million of the future lease obligations,
$0.3 million of which is due within 12 months, relate to amounts that will be recovered through lease payments from our sub-tenant for the Dublin, Ohio lease.

The following table summarizes Strive's cash flow activities (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor
Period from September 12, Period from January 1, 2025 Nine Months Ended
2025 to September 30, 2025 to September 11, 2025 September 30, 2024
Net cash used in operating activities $ (13,955) | $ (18,209) $ (15,522)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (674,683) 16,477 (11,664)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 793,784 (500) 28,864
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 105,146 $ (2,232) 8 1,678

Net cash used in operating activities

The primary sources of our cash and cash equivalents from operating activities are collections from customers related to investment advisory services and
interest collections from our short-term investments and holdings of cash and cash equivalents. Our primary uses of cash and cash equivalents are from general
and administrative expenses and employee-related expenditures. Non-cash items to reconcile net loss to net cash and cash equivalents used in operating
activities include depreciation and amortization, accretion of discount on short-term investments, amortization of right-of-use assets
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and liabilities, unrealized gain (loss) on digital assets, other derivative loss, share-based compensation expense, goodwill and intangible asset impairments, and
non-cash transaction expenses.

For the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities was $14.0 million. This was
primarily driven by a $192.3 million net loss generated by Strive, which in turn was driven by a goodwill and intangible asset impairment of $140.8 million,
net investment losses of $24.9 million, operating expenses of $19.5 million, and transaction costs of $7.5 million, partially offset by total revenues of $0.3
million. Strive’s net loss was adjusted for non-cash items totaling $184.9 million. Further, Strive had a net change in operating assets and liabilities of $6.6
million, driven by a decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities of $5.4 million and an increase in prepaid expenses of $2.9 million, which were partially
offset by a decrease in other current assets of $1.5 million and an increase in compensation and benefits payable of $0.3 million.

For the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities was $18.2 million. This was primarily
driven by a $27.0 million net loss generated by Strive, which in turn was driven by operating expenses of $16.1 million, and transaction costs of $15.7 million,
partially offset by total revenues of $4.2 million and net other income of $0.6 million. Strive’s net loss was adjusted for non-cash items totaling $2.5 million.
Further, Strive had a net change in operating assets and liabilities of $6.2 million, driven by an increase in accounts payable and other liabilities of $9.8 million,
which was partially offset by a decrease compensation and benefits payable of $1.0 million, an increase in prepaid expenses of $0.2 million, an increase in
other current assets of $1.6 million, and an increase in other non-current assets of $0.7 million.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities was $15.5 million. This was primarily driven by a
$17.5 million net loss generated by Strive, which in turn was driven by operating expenses of $20.6 million, partially offset by total revenues of $2.6 million
and net other income of $0.5 million. Strive’s net loss was adjusted for non-cash items totaling $0.2 million. Further, Strive had a net change in operating assets
and liabilities of $1.7 million, driven by an increase in accounts payable and other liabilities of $1.3 million and an increase in compensation and benefits
payable of $0.9 million, which were partially offset by an increase in prepaid expenses of $0.2 million and an increase in other current assets of $0.4 million.

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

For the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities was $674.7 million, primarily due to
purchases of digital asset investments of $675.0 million and purchases of intangible assets of $0.1 million, partially offset by cash acquired through the Asset
Entities Merger of $0.4 million.

For the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, net cash and cash equivalents provided by investing activities was $16.5 million, primarily due to
net proceeds from short-term investments of $16.6 million, partially offset purchases of intangible assets of $0.1 million.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities was $11.7 million, primarily due to net purchases of
short-term investments of $11.5 million and purchases of property, plant, and equipment of $0.2 million.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

For the period from September 12, 2025 to September 30, 2025, net cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activities was $793.8 million, primarily
due to proceeds from the issuance of Class A common stock of $525.6 million, proceeds from the issuance of pre-funded warrants of $283.2 million, proceeds
from the exercise of warrants of $13.0 million, which were partially offset by the payment of financing issuance costs of $28.0 million.

For the period from January 1, 2025 to September 11, 2025, net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities was $0.5 million, primarily due to
repurchases of preferred stock of $0.5 million.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, net cash and cash equivalents provided by investing activities was $28.9 million, primarily due to net proceeds
from the issuance of preferred stock of $28.9 million, partially offset by repurchases of preferred stock of $0.1 million.
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This Quarterly Report contains certain non-GAAP financial measures, consisting of non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) and non-GAAP adjusted net income
(loss) per diluted common share. Non-GAAP financial measures are subject to material limitations as they are not measurements prepared in accordance with
GAAP and are not a substitute for such measurements. Our non-GAAP financial measures are not meant to be considered in isolation and should be read only
in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. We rely
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primarily on such consolidated financial statements to understand, manage, and evaluate our business performance and use the non-GAAP financial measures
as supplemental information. Reconciliations of reported GAAP historic measures to adjusted non-GAAP measures are included in the financial schedules
contained in this Quarterly Report.

Non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss)

Non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) and the related non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) per diluted common share excludes the impact of (i) share-based
compensation expense, (ii) depreciation and amortization, (iii) other derivative loss, (iv) transaction costs, and (v) goodwill and intangible asset impairments.
We believe these measures offer management and investors insight as they exclude significant non-cash and/or non-recurring items. The following provides
GAAP measures of net loss and net loss per diluted common share and the details with respect to reconciling the line items to non-GAAP adjusted net income
(loss) and non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) per diluted common share (all amounts in thousands, other than share and per share information):

Successor Predecessor

Period from
September 12, 2025 Period from July 1,

to September 30, 2025 to September  Three Months Ended
2025 11, 2025 September 30, 2024
Net loss $ (192,287) | $ (14,366) $ (6,802)
Share-based compensation expense 16,294 — —
Depreciation and amortization 12 43 47
Other derivative loss 14,731 — —
Transaction costs 7,484 10,280 —
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment 140,785 — —
Non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) $ (12,981) | 8§ (4,043) 8 (6,755)
Weighted average number of diluted common shares outstanding 872,349,183 2,325,783 2,225,816
Net loss per diluted common share $ 022) | 8 (6.18) $ (3.06)
Non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) per diluted common share $ 0.01) | 8 (1.74) $ (3.03)
Successor Predecessor

Period from
September 12, 2025 Period from January

to September 30, 1, 2025 to September  Nine Months Ended
2025 11, 2025 September 30, 2024
Net loss $ (192,287) | $ (26,990) $ (17,462)
Share-based compensation expense 16,294 — —
Depreciation and amortization 12 149 141
Other derivative loss 14,731 — —
Transaction costs 7,484 15,717 —
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment 140,785 — —
Non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) $ (12,981) | § (11,124) § (17,321)
Weighted average number of diluted common shares outstanding 872,349,183 2,299,243 2,200,848
Net loss per diluted common share $ 022) | $ (11.74) $ (7.93)
Non-GAAP adjusted net income (loss) per diluted common share $ 0.01) | $ 4.84) $ (7.87)
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Critical Accounting Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP, which requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and equity, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results and outcomes could differ from these estimates and assumptions. Critical accounting estimates involve a significant level of estimation uncertainty and
are estimates that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The following discussion about our market risk exposures involves forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in
the forward-looking statements.

We are exposed to the impact of market price changes in bitcoin and interest rate risk.
Bitcoin Market Price Risk

We have invested, and plan to continue to invest, a significant amount of our capital into bitcoin and bitcoin-related products. Our investments in bitcoin are
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis using observed prices from active exchanges, with changes in fair value recorded in net income. The market price of
bitcoin may fluctuate significantly, and declines in market price of bitcoin could result in a material adverse effect on our financial results in future periods. As
of September 30, 2025, the Company held approximately 5,886 bitcoin with a fair value of $672.9 million.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily via our SATA Stock, which accumulates cumulative dividends, which we refer to in this Item 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk as “regular dividends”, at a variable dividend rate, which has been initially set at 12.00% per
annum. However, we have the right, in our sole and absolute discretion, to adjust the regular dividend rate applicable to subsequent regular dividend periods,
subject to certain restrictions, including restrictions on the maximum reduction of the dividend rate and a requirement to declare a dividend equal to at least the
monthly SOFR per annum rate. Our current intention (which is subject to change in our sole and absolute discretion) is to adjust the monthly regular dividend
rate per annum in such manner as we believe is designed to cause the SATA Stock to trade at prices at or close to its stated amount of $100 per share.

As of November 10, 2025, if we determined to increase the regular dividend rate on our SATA Stock by 0.50%, the SATA Stock’s monthly dividend accrual
would increase by approximately less than $0.1 million. We do not believe our interest rate risk exposure via the SATA Stock is material as of November 10,
2025.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's senior
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation, the Company's management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period
covered by this report.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

As required by Rule 13a-15(d) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer, has evaluated the Company's internal control over financial reporting to determine whether any changes occurred during the period covered
by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Based on that evaluation,
there have been no such changes, during the third quarter of 2025.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

For information regarding material pending legal proceedings in which we are involved, see "Commitments and Contingencies" in Note 7 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements contained in Part I. Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference.

We are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. Although the outcomes of these legal proceedings are inherently difficult
to predict, we do not expect the resolution of these legal proceedings to have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Any investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider these risks described in Part I, Item 1A in “Risk Factors” of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, under the “Risk Factors” heading in our
Form S-4 filed on August 6, 2025 and October 10, 2025, under the “Supplementary Risk Factors” filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on September 24, 2025 and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission before deciding whether to purchase our securities.

Risks Related to Our Preferred Stock

Our SATA Stock is senior to our Class A common stock and Class B common stock, junior to our existing and future indebtedness, structurally
junior to the liabilities of our subsidiaries and subject to the rights and preferences of any other class or series of preferred stock that we may issue in the
future.

If we liquidate, dissolve or wind up, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, then our assets will be available to distribute to our equity holders, including
holders of our Class A common stock, our Class B common stock and our SATA Stock, only if all of our then-outstanding indebtedness is first paid in full. The
remaining assets, if any, would then be allocated among the holders of our equity securities in accordance with their respective liquidation rights. If we issue
any class or series of preferred stock senior to our SATA Stock, which we refer to as “liquidation senior stock,” in the future, then the amounts due upon that
liquidation senior stock must be paid in full before any payments can be made on the SATA Stock or common stock. If any assets remain after any liquidation
senior stock is paid in full, those assets will be distributed pro rata among holders of the SATA Stock and any series of preferred stock with liquidation parity
with our SATA Stock, which we refer to as “liquidation parity stock,” with any remaining assets distributed to holders of our common stock. There may be
insufficient remaining assets available to pay the liquidation preference and unpaid accumulated dividends on our SATA Stock in which case holders of our
common stock would not receive any value for their shares. If we issue any dividend senior stock in the future, such dividend senior stock could contain
provisions that prohibit us from paying accumulated dividends on our SATA Stock, or from purchasing, redeeming or acquiring our SATA Stock until and
unless we first pay accumulated dividends in full on such dividend senior stock.

In addition, our subsidiaries have no obligation to pay any amounts on the SATA Stock. If any of our subsidiaries liquidates, dissolves or winds up,
whether voluntarily or involuntarily, then we, as a direct or indirect common equity owner of that subsidiary, will be subject to the prior claims of that
subsidiary’s creditors, including trade creditors and preferred equity holders, if any. We may never receive any amounts from that subsidiary, and, accordingly,
the assets of that subsidiary may never be available to make payments on the SATA Stock.

We may not have sufficient funds to pay dividends in cash on our SATA Stock, or we may choose not to pay dividends on our SATA Stock, and
regulatory and contractual restrictions may prevent us from declaring or paying dividends on our SATA Stock.

Concurrent with the closing of our registered public offering of our SATA Stock, we established a dividend reserve in an amount equal to the first 12
months of dividend payments (assuming dividend payments are made at a rate of 12.00% per annum) calculated as of the date of the offering of our SATA
Stock (the “Dividend Reserve”) by depositing $12.00 per share of SATA Stock into a separate account (the “Dividend Payment Account”) funded by us with
existing cash on hand. Subject to compliance with Nevada law and any other applicable requirements, we may make dividend distributions from the Dividend
Payment Account or from any other account maintained by us to the holders of the then-outstanding SATA Stock on a monthly basis following the closing of
our registered public offering of our SATA Stock. Following the 12-month period after such closing, we expect to fund any dividends paid in cash on the SATA
Stock primarily through additional capital raising activities, including, but not limited to, at-the-market offerings of our Class A common stock. Our ability to
declare and pay cash dividends on our SATA Stock will depend on many factors, including the following:

* our financial condition, including the amount of cash we have on hand;
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* the amount of cash, if any, generated by our operations and financing activities (including our ability to raise additional capital from the equity
capital markets on favorable terms or at all);

* our anticipated financing needs, including the amounts needed to service our indebtedness or other obligations, which may be impacted by our
ability to sell equity which is reliant on maintaining effective registration statements, certain market conditions, such as sufficient liquid trading volume for our
stock, the market price of our securities, the value of our bitcoin holdings, investor sentiment and the general public perception of bitcoin, our strategy and our
value proposition;

« the degree to which we decide to reinvest any cash generated by our operations or financing activities to fund our future operations;
« the ability of our subsidiaries to distribute funds to us;

« regulatory restrictions on our ability to pay dividends, including under the Nevada Revised Statutes;

* our ability to sell equity securities under existing or new at-the-market offering programs; and

* contractual restrictions on our ability to pay dividends.

In addition, our board of directors or any duly authorized committee thereof may choose not to pay accumulated dividends on our SATA Stock for any
reason. Accordingly, we may pay less than the full amount of accumulated dividends on our SATA Stock. If we fail to declare and pay accumulated dividends
on our SATA Stock in full, then the value of our SATA Stock, as well as our Class A common stock, will likely decline.

Provisions contained in the instruments governing our future indebtedness may restrict or prohibit us from paying cash dividends on our SATA Stock.
If the terms of our indebtedness restrict or prohibit us from paying dividends, then we may seek to refinance that indebtedness or seek a waiver that would
permit the payment of dividends. However, we may be unable or may choose not to refinance the indebtedness or obtain a waiver.

Under the Nevada Revised Statutes, we may declare dividends on our SATA Stock if, after giving each dividend effect, we are able to pay our debts as
they become due in the usual course of business and our total assets would be more than the sum of our total liabilities plus the amount that would be needed, if
we were to be dissolved immediately after the time of the dividend, to satisfy the preferential rights upon such dissolution of holders of shares of any class or
series of our capital stock having preferential rights superior to those receiving the dividend.

If we fail to declare and pay full dividends on our SATA Stock, then we will be prohibited from paying dividends on our Class A common stock and
any other junior securities, subject to limited exceptions. Although we do not currently pay dividends on our Class A common stock, if we decide to do so in
the future, a reduction or elimination of dividends on our Class A common stock may cause the trading price of our Class A common stock to decline, which, in
turn, will likely depress the value of our SATA Stock.

We have not engaged an escrow or independent third-party agent to manage the distribution of dividends of our SATA Stock, including dividends
from the Dividend Payment Account, nor entered into an escrow agreement or other similar arrangement.

We have not engaged, and do not intend to engage, an escrow or independent third-party agent to manage the distribution of dividends of our SATA
Stock, including dividends from the Dividend Payment Account, nor entered into, and do not intend to enter into, an escrow agreement or other similar
arrangement. While we intend to manage the distribution of dividends in good faith, there will not be independent custodianship of the funds allocated for
distribution to the holders of our SATA Stock as dividends, which may result in the mismanagement or misallocation of such funds. In addition, the absence of
an escrow or independent third-party agent imposes additional operational and administrative burdens on senior management, and holders of our SATA Stock
may experience delayed or incorrect distributions of their dividends.

Our SATA Stock has only limited voting rights.

Our SATA Stock confers no voting rights except with respect to certain dividend arrearages, certain amendments to the terms of our SATA Stock, and
certain other limited circumstances, and except as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes. Holding our SATA Stock will not confer the right to vote together
with holders of our Class A common stock on matters on which our holders of Class A common stock are entitled to vote. For example, holders of our SATA
Stock, as such, do not have the right to vote in the general election of our directors, although those holders will have a limited right, voting together with
holders of any voting parity stock, if any, with similar voting rights regarding the election of directors upon a failure to pay dividends, which similar voting
rights are then exercisable, to elect one director upon the occurrence of a regular dividend non-payment event. For the full terms of our SATA Stock, see Item 1
to the Form 8-A we filed with the SEC on November 7, 2025. However, because certain existing holders of Strive, including Vivek Ramaswamy, by virtue of
our dual-class structure, control a majority of the voting power of our common stock, the impact of any such election may be limited. Accordingly, the voting
provisions of our SATA Stock may not afford meaningful protections.
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Without the consent of any holder of our SATA Stock or Class A common stock, we may issue preferred stock in the future that ranks equally with
our SATA Stock with respect to dividends and liquidation rights, which may adversely affect the rights of holders of our SATA Stock and our Class A
common stock.

Without the consent of any holder of SATA Stock or Class A common stock, we may authorize and issue preferred stock (including additional SATA
Stock) that ranks equally with our SATA Stock with respect to the payment of dividends and other distributions or the distribution of assets upon our
liquidation, dissolution or winding up. If we issue any such equally ranked preferred stock in the future, the rights of holders of our SATA Stock and our Class
A common stock will be diluted and the value of our SATA Stock and Class A common stock may decline. For example, if we issue any dividend parity stock
in the future, no dividends may be declared or paid on the SATA Stock unless regular dividends are simultaneously declared on any dividend parity preferred
stock on a pro rata basis. The issuance of any preferred stock in the future would also have the effect of further subordinating our Class A common stock.

The terms of our SATA Stock will not impose any contractual restrictions on our use of the Dividend Payment Account and the Dividend Payment
Account could be subject to the claims of creditors.

We have established a Dividend Payment Account to hold the Dividend Reserve for dividend distributions payable to the holders of our then-
outstanding SATA Stock. However, the terms of our SATA Stock do not impose any contractual restrictions or limit our discretion on how we may use the
funds in the Dividend Payment Account, nor grant any liens or contractual rights in favor of the holders of our SATA Stock over such funds. For example, we
are permitted to invest the proceeds of the Dividend Payment Account in various capital preservation instruments, including short-term investment grade,
interest-bearing securities, and money-market funds. We expect that any investment income earned from the Dividend Payment Account will be remitted to us
to use for working capital or general corporate purposes, including the acquisition of additional bitcoin. In addition, we are not contractually required to
increase our contributions to the Dividend Payment Account if the dividend rate increases above 12.00% or if we issue additional SATA Stock following the
Closing. In the event we experience any insolvency issues and/or file for bankruptcy, the proceeds held in the Dividend Payment Account could be subject to
the claims of creditors.

Future sales, or the perception of future sales, of our Class A common stock, our debt instruments, our SATA Stock, or other classes or series of
preferred stock could depress the price of our listed securities.

We may issue and sell additional shares of Class A common stock, shares of SATA Stock, notes, or other securities in subsequent offerings to raise
capital or issue such securities for other purposes, including in connection with the acquisition of additional bitcoin. For example:

. between September 12, 2025 and September 30, 2025, we issued and sold $59.2 million of shares of Class A common stock through our
existing at-the-market equity offering program; and
. on November 10, 2025, we issued and sold $160 million of shares of our SATA Stock.

On September 15, 2025, we filed a prospectus for a new at-the-market equity offering program pursuant to which we may sell Class A common stock
having an aggregate offering price of up to $450 million from time to time, through Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., as agent, under a Controlled Equity OfferingSM
Sales Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”). As of September 30, 2025, we may issue and sell additional Class A common stock having an aggregate offering
price of up to $390.8 million from time to time under the Sales Agreement. We cannot predict:

. the size and terms of future issuances of equity securities; or
. the effect, if any, that future issuances and sales of our securities will have on the market price of our listed securities.

Transactions involving newly issued Class A common stock, SATA Stock, debt, other series of preferred stock could result in possibly substantial
dilution of or decrease in the market price of our Class A common stock and our SATA Stock.

Our right to unilaterally reduce the regular dividend rate of the SATA Stock could cause the SATA Stock to accumulate dividends at rates that are
below those of otherwise comparable instruments, could cause the trading price or value of the SATA Stock to decrease, and could otherwise significantly
harm investors.

The SATA Stock will accumulate cumulative regular dividends on the stated amount thereof at a variable rate per annum equal to the monthly regular
dividend rate per annum. The monthly regular dividend rate per annum has been initially set at 12.00%. However, we will have the right, in our sole and
absolute discretion, to adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum that applies to each regular dividend period that begins after the first regular
dividend period. Our right to adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum will be subject to certain restrictions. For example, we will not be permitted to
reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum that will apply to any regular dividend period (i) by more than the following amount from the monthly
regular dividend rate per annum applicable to the prior regular dividend period: the sum of (1) 25 basis points; and (2) the excess, if any, of (x) the monthly
SOEFR per annum on the first business day of such prior regular dividend period, over (y) the minimum of the monthly SOFR per annum rates that occur on the
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business days during the period from, and including, the first business day of such prior regular dividend period to, and including, the last business day of such
prior regular dividend period; or (ii) to a rate per annum that is less than the monthly SOFR per annum in effect on the business day before we provide notice of
the next regular dividend rate. In addition, we will not be entitled to reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum of the SATA Stock unless, at the time
we provide the related notice of the adjustment, all accumulated regular dividends, if any, on the SATA Stock then outstanding for all prior completed regular
dividend periods, if any, have been paid in full (or have been declared in full and consideration in kind and amount that is sufficient, in accordance with the
certificate of designation, to pay such accumulated regular dividends, is set aside for the benefit of the preferred stockholders entitled thereto). For the full
terms of our SATA Stock, see Item 1 to the Form 8-A we filed with the SEC on November 7, 2025.

Our current intention, which is subject to change in our sole and absolute discretion, is to adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum in such a
manner as we believe will maintain SATA Stock’s trading price within its stated long-term range of $95 and $105 per share. We may, at any time in our sole
and absolute discretion, and without the consent of any holder of SATA Stock, choose to reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum to the maximum
extent permitted by the terms of the SATA Stock, without regard to the impact that reduction may have on the trading price or value of the SATA Stock.

If we reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum, then the trading price or value of the SATA Stock could decrease significantly. If you hold
SATA Stock at the time of such a decrease, the value of your investment could materially depreciate, and you may not be able to resell your SATA Stock at
favorable prices, if at all. Moreover, the mere existence of our right to unilaterally reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum could, in itself and
without any actual reduction in the monthly regular dividend rate per annum, cause the SATA Stock to trade at prices below those that may otherwise be
expected.

Notwithstanding the limitations on our ability to reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum, the trading price of SATA Stock could decline
significantly if, for example, we reduce the dividend rate in successive regular dividend periods, or there is a market expectation that we do so. Further,
consecutive monthly reductions of the regular dividends rate on the SATA Stock may cause the regular dividend rate on SATA Stock to be viewed as
reasonably expected to decline, which could result in adverse consequences to holders of SATA Stock. See “—The tax rules applicable to “fast-pay stock”
could result in adverse consequences to holders of SATA Stock™” above. If we reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum to the minimum dividend
rate of the monthly SOFR per annum, and the monthly SOFR per annum thereafter increases, we will have no obligation to increase the monthly regular
dividend rate per annum to the new monthly SOFR per annum. Moreover, SOFR has a limited history, and its future performance cannot be predicted.

Despite our current intention, which is to adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum in such a manner as we believe will maintain SATA
Stock’s trading price within its stated long-term range of $95 and $105 per share, since we are permitted to exercise our right to adjust the monthly regular
dividend rate per annum for any reason, the trading price of the SATA Stock could be significantly volatile. For example, we could choose to adjust the
monthly regular dividend rate per annum for reasons not directly related to the market value of our bitcoin holdings, the credit spreads on our other debt and
preferred stock instruments, or the interest rate environment. Accordingly, the trading profile of our SATA Stock could be significantly different than that of our
other securities. Increased volatility could harm investors by, for example, causing wide fluctuations in the implied yield of the SATA Stock and otherwise
increasing the uncertainty regarding the price at which investors may resell their SATA Stock, if at all.

Certain provisions of the SATA Stock are intended to protect investors in the event we fail to declare and pay regular dividends on the SATA Stock.
These provisions include restrictions on our ability to make payments on, or engage in certain other transactions relating to, other classes of our capital stock
that rank junior to, or on parity with, the SATA Stock. For the full terms of our SATA Stock, see Item 1 to the Form 8-A we filed with the SEC on November 7,
2025. Our ability to reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum could cause these provisions to be inadequate to protect investors. For example, we
could reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum to a sufficiently low rate that permits us to pay all accumulated regular dividends and avoid invoking
the protective measures of these provisions.

We may be unsuccessful in achieving, or may abandon, our current intention of adjusting the regular dividend rate on our SATA Stock in such a
manner as we believe (in our sole and absolute judgment) would be designed to cause the SATA Stock to trade at prices, or otherwise have a value, within
its targeted long-term trading range of 395 and $105 per share.

Our current intention, which is subject to change in our sole and absolute discretion, is to adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum on our
SATA Stock in such a manner as we believe will maintain SATA Stock’s trading price within its stated long-term range of $95 and $105 per share. However, we
have no obligation to do so, and even if we attempt to achieve our current stated intent, any adjustments we make to the monthly regular dividend rate per
annum, or any other actions we take, may fail to achieve or maintain a long-term trading level for the SATA Stock between $95 and $105 per share. For
example, if the SATA Stock is trading at a price per share above $105 and we reduce the monthly regular dividend rate per annum with the goal of decreasing
the trading price per share of the SATA Stock, such reduction may cause the trading price of the SATA Stock to decrease by a greater amount than we
anticipate. Similarly, if the SATA Stock is trading at a price per share below $95 and we increase the monthly regular dividend rate per annum with the goal
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of increasing the trading price per share of the SATA Stock, such increase may cause the trading price of the SATA Stock to increase by a lesser amount than
we anticipate. Further, for any additional shares of SATA Stock that we issue (whether in an “at-the-market” or similar offering or otherwise following the
listing of SATA Stock on The Nasdaq Global Market), our current intention (which is subject to change in our sole and absolute discretion) is to issue any such
shares of SATA Stock at a price per share not less than $95 or more than $110. However, we may issue any additional shares of SATA Stock (whether in an “at-
the-market” or similar offering or otherwise following the listing of SATA Stock on The Nasdaq Global Market) at any price we choose. Like any other
security, the trading price or value of the SATA Stock will depend on a wide range of factors, including those described elsewhere in this “Risk Factors”
section, many of which are beyond our control. While we expect that the dividend rate on the SATA Stock will directly impact its trading price or value, there
are many other factors that could have equal or more significant impacts. Any adjustment we make to the monthly regular dividend rate per annum on the
SATA Stock that is designed to achieve a specified trading price or value will, necessarily, be based on assumptions regarding those other factors. These
assumptions will always be inaccurate or incomplete to some degree, and potentially to a material extent. Moreover, even if such an adjustment initially
achieves a specified trading price or value, the trading price or value may fluctuate significantly throughout the relevant regular dividend period before we have
an opportunity to adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum for the next regular dividend period. Importantly, the mere existence of our right to
unilaterally adjust the monthly regular dividend rate per annum will impact the trading price and value of the SATA Stock. Specifically, we expect the trading
price of the SATA Stock at any time to reflect the market’s expectations at that time regarding how we will exercise this right in the foreseeable future.
Comments we make regarding our intentions regarding the adjustment of the monthly regular dividend rate per annum could also impact the trading price and
value of the SATA Stock. Modeling the impact of market expectations on the trading price of the SATA Stock may be impossible. For example, if we increase,
or announce an intention to increase, the monthly regular dividend rate per annum, then the trading price of the SATA Stock may in fact decrease if the market
expected us to make a larger increase. From time to time, we may publicly disclose our expected policies regarding adjustments to the monthly regular
dividend rate per annum of the SATA Stock. These disclosures may include specific numerical frameworks setting forth the amount of any change to the
monthly regular dividend rate per annum that we intend to make based on the trading price of the SATA Stock or other metrics. In all cases, these disclosures
refer only to our current intent as of the time of the applicable disclosure; they are neither a guarantee that the SATA Stock will trade at a specified price in
response to any changes to the monthly regular dividend rate per annum, nor a guarantee that we will make any specific adjustment to the monthly regular
dividend rate per annum. Moreover, we are free to abandon our stated intent, as described above, or any policies or frameworks that we may subsequently
disclose publicly, at any time in our sole and, at any time in our sole and absolute discretion and without the consent of any preferred stockholder. See “—Our
right to unilaterally reduce the regular dividend rate of the SATA Stock could cause the SATA Stock to accumulate dividends at rates that are below those of
otherwise comparable instruments, could cause the trading price or value of the SATA Stock to decrease, and could otherwise significantly harm investors”
above.

Holders of our SATA Stock may be treated as receiving deemed distributions, and consequently may be subject to tax with respect to our SATA
Stock under certain circumstances, even though no corresponding distribution of cash has been made.

Under Section 305 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), holders of our SATA Stock may be treated as receiving a deemed
distribution on our SATA Stock under certain circumstances, including (i) an increase in the liquidation preference of our SATA Stock, (ii) if our SATA Stock is
issued at a discount or (iii) if we can call the SATA Stock at a price above its issue price. The liquidation preference of the SATA Stock is subject to adjustment
in the manner described in Item 1 to the Form 8-A we filed with the SEC on November 7, 2025, which adjustment may result in an increase in the liquidation
preference. In addition, if our board of directors does not declare a dividend on our SATA Stock in respect of any dividend period before the related dividend
payment date, the deferred dividend may be treated as an increase in the liquidation preference of our SATA Stock. In either case, any increase in the
liquidation preference could give rise to a deemed dividend to holders of our SATA Stock. Although the matter is not entirely clear, we believe any such
adjustment of liquidation preference in the manner described in Item 1 to the Form 8-A we filed with the SEC on November 7, 2025, deferred dividend,
discount or call premium should not be treated as giving rise to a deemed distribution on our SATA Stock. However, there is no assurance that the Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”) or an applicable withholding agent will not take a contrary position. It is also possible you may be treated as receiving a deemed
distribution under Section 305 of the Code if we elect to increase the price at which we exercise our optional redemption right, with the likelihood of such
treatment depending on the circumstances existing at the time the redemption price is adjusted. Any deemed distribution will generally be taxable to the same
extent as a cash distribution. In addition, for any holder of our SATA Stock that is a non-U.S. holder, any deemed distribution could be subject to U.S. federal
withholding tax at a 30% rate, or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable treaty. Because deemed distributions received by a holder of our SATA
Stock would not give rise to any cash from which any applicable withholding tax could be satisfied, if we (or an applicable withholding agent) pay withholding
(including backup withholding) on behalf of a holder of our SATA Stock, we (or an applicable withholding agent) may set off any such payment against, or
withhold such taxes from, payments of cash to such holder of our SATA Stock or sales proceeds received by, or other funds or assets of, such holder of our
SATA Stock, or require alternative arrangements with respect to such withholding taxes. The application of the rules
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under Section 305 of the Code to our SATA Stock is uncertain, and holders of our SATA Stock should consult their tax advisors about the impact of these rules
in their particular situations.

Holders of our SATA Stock may not be entitled to the dividends-received deduction or preferential tax rates applicable to qualified dividend
income.

Distributions paid to corporate U.S. holders of our SATA Stock may be eligible for the dividends-received deduction and distributions paid to non-
corporate U.S. holders of our SATA Stock may be subject to tax at the preferential tax rates applicable to “qualified dividend income” if we have current or
accumulated earnings and profits, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes and certain holding period and other requirements are met. We may not
have sufficient current or accumulated earnings and profits during any fiscal year for the distributions on our SATA Stock to qualify as dividends for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. If any distributions on our SATA Stock with respect to any fiscal year are not eligible for the dividends-received deduction or for
the preferential tax rates applicable to “qualified dividend income” because of insufficient current or accumulated earnings and profits, the market value of the
SATA Stock may decline.

The tax rules applicable to “fast-pay stock” could result in adverse consequences to holders of our SATA Stock.

Under Treasury Regulations promulgated under Section 7701(1) of the Code (the “Fast-Pay Stock Regulations”), if stock of a corporation is structured
such that dividends paid with respect to the stock are economically (in whole or in part) a return of the stockholder’s investment (rather than a return on the
stockholder’s investment), then the stock is characterized as “fast-pay stock™ and is subject to adverse tax reporting requirements and potentially penalties, as
described below. In addition, under the Fast-Pay Stock Regulations, unless clearly demonstrated otherwise, stock is presumed to be fast-pay stock if it is
structured to have a dividend that is reasonably expected to decline (as opposed to a dividend rate that is reasonably expected to fluctuate or remain constant)
(for such purpose, the dividend rate may be viewed as reasonably expected to decline if we are reasonably expected to stop paying regular dividends on our
SATA Stock or if we are reasonably expected to reduce the monthly regular dividend rate over a meaningful time period) or is issued for an amount that
exceeds (by more than a de minimis amount, as determined under applicable Treasury Regulations) the amount at which the stockholder can be compelled to
dispose of the stock. It is not clear what amount would constitute “de minimis” in the case of stock with a perpetual term. The determination of whether stock is
fast-pay stock is based on all the facts and circumstances. To determine whether it is fast-pay stock, stock is examined when issued, and, for stock that is not
fast-pay stock when issued, when there is a significant modification in the terms of the stock or the related agreements or a significant change in the relevant
facts and circumstances. The relevant tax regulations do not indicate the types of significant changes in facts and circumstances that are intended to give rise to
such a determination, and therefore it is possible that such a change could arise when, for example, there is a change to the terms of optional redemption or a
compounded dividend rate comes into effect. We do not believe that our SATA Stock is fast-pay stock. We may issue additional shares of our SATA Stock (or
resell any shares that we or any of our subsidiaries have purchased or otherwise acquired) (such additional or resold shares, the “Additional Shares). We do
not intend to issue any Additional Shares that would be treated as fast-pay stock. Moreover, we intend to obtain advice of counsel in connection with future
offerings of Additional Shares for the purpose of analyzing the consequences of issuing such Additional Shares in light of any legal developments regarding the
definition of fast-pay stock. As the liquidation preference of the SATA Stock is subject to adjustment in the manner described in Item 1 to the Form 8-A we
filed with the SEC on November 7, 2025 and our current intention is to issue any Additional Shares at a price per share not more than $110 plus accrued and
unpaid dividends that may apply to such instrument at the time of its issuance, it is generally not expected that the Additional Shares would be issued at such a
level of premium above their liquidation preference or optional redemption price at the time of sale of the Additional Shares so as to implicate the fast-pay
stock rules. In addition, we do not intend to adjust the regular dividend rate in a manner that would cause the SATA Stock to be treated as fast-pay stock. Any
adjustment to the regular dividend rate is expected to be consistent with our current intention to maintain a long-term trading level for the SATA Stock between
$95 and $105 per share, and therefore the SATA Stock’s dividend rate is generally expected to fluctuate over time. Nonetheless, there may be increased risk
that the IRS could assert that such Additional Shares constitute fast-pay stock. Transactions involving fast-pay stock arrangements are treated as “listed
transactions” for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Issuers and holders of any shares of fast-pay stock would be required to report their participation in the
transaction on IRS Form 8886 on an annual basis with their U.S. federal income tax returns and would also be required to mail a copy of that form to the IRS
Office of Tax Shelter Analysis. Failure to comply with those disclosure requirements could result in the assessment by the IRS of interest, additions to tax and
onerous penalties. In addition, an accuracy-related penalty applies under the Code to any reportable transaction understatement attributable to a listed
transaction if a significant purpose of the transaction is the avoidance or evasion of U.S. federal income tax. Furthermore, certain material advisors would also
be required to file a disclosure statement with the IRS. If we determine that we are required to file an IRS Form 8886 (including a protective filing) in
connection with the potential issuance of fast-pay stock with respect to our previously issued SATA Stock or Additional Shares, we intend to provide public
notice to the holders of our previously issued SATA Stock or Additional Shares, as applicable, which notice may be by a press release, by publication on our
investor relations website, or by filing a current report on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Notwithstanding our intent not to issue
Additional Shares that would be fast-pay stock, the rules regarding the definition of
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fast-pay stock are unclear in certain respects and, therefore, the IRS could disagree with our determination and treat such Additional Shares as fast-pay stock. In
addition, even though we believe that our previously issued SATA Stock is not fast-pay stock, treatment of the Additional Shares as fast-pay stock could result
in adverse consequences to holders of our previously issued SATA Stock because such Additional Shares may be indistinguishable from our previously issued
SATA Stock. See “—A future issuance of Additional Shares could have an adverse tax profile, which could subject holders of our previously issued SATA
Stock to adverse consequences” below. Accordingly, holders of our SATA Stock are strongly urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the Fast-Pay Stock
Regulations and their potential consequences to an investment in our SATA Stock.

A future issuance of Additional Shares could have an adverse tax profile, which could subject holders of our previously issued SATA Stock to
adverse consequences.

If we issue Additional Shares that have a different, and potentially adverse, tax profile or treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes from our
previously issued SATA Stock, since such Additional Shares would trade under the same CUSIP or other identifying number as that of our previously issued
SATA Stock, our previously issued SATA Stock may be treated by subsequent purchasers, withholding agents and potentially the IRS as having the same
profile or treatment as such Additional Shares if our previously issued SATA Stock is not otherwise distinguishable from the Additional Shares. For example,
notwithstanding our intent not to issue any Additional Shares that are fast-pay stock, the IRS could assert that such Additional Shares constitute fast-pay stock.
See “—The tax rules applicable to “fast-pay stock” could result in adverse consequences to holders of our SATA Stock.” above. Furthermore, if any Additional
Shares are issued at a price that exceeds their liquidation preference, such Additional Shares would constitute “disqualified preferred stock” within the meaning
of Section 1059(f)(2) of the Code and any corporate U.S. holder generally will be required to reduce its tax basis (but not below zero) in our SATA Stock by the
amount of any dividends-received deduction it receives. The liquidation preference of the SATA Stock is subject to adjustment in the manner described in Item
1 to the Form 8-A we filed with the SEC on November 7, 2025, which adjustment may be taken into account for purposes of disqualified preferred stock
determination. If Additional Shares issued are considered disqualified preferred stock, our previously issued SATA Stock could also be subject to same
treatment as a practical matter due to fungible trading. If any Additional Shares are sold at a discount (or at a discount that exceeds the discount that applies to
our previously issued SATA Stock), such Additional Shares may be subject to rules that require the accrual of such discount (or such greater discount) currently
over the deemed term of the Additional Shares as deemed distributions under U.S. tax rules similar to those governing original issue discount for debt
instruments. In that event, the IRS or a withholding agent may treat any such discount as resulting in deemed taxable distributions with respect to our
previously issued SATA Stock as well as such Additional Shares. Because the IRS or other parties (such as withholding agents) may not be able to distinguish
between our SATA Stock and the Additional Shares, a holder of our SATA Stock might be subject to adverse tax consequences or might be required to
demonstrate to the IRS (or such other parties) that the holder purchased our SATA Stock as opposed to such Additional Shares. Moreover, any adverse tax
consequences as described above in connection with the future issuance of Additional Shares may adversely affect the market value of our SATA Stock.

Provisions of our SATA Stock could delay or prevent an otherwise beneficial takeover of us.

Certain provisions in our SATA Stock could make a third-party attempt to acquire us more difficult or expensive. For example, if a takeover
constitutes a fundamental change, then, subject to certain exceptions, holders of our SATA Stock will have the right to require us to repurchase their SATA
Stock for cash. For the full terms of our SATA Stock, see Item 1 to the Form 8-A we filed with the SEC on November 7, 2025. These fundamental change
provisions could increase the cost of acquiring us or otherwise discourage a third party from acquiring us or removing incumbent management, including in a
transaction that holders of our SATA Stock or holders of our Class A common stock may view as favorable.

Your investment in the SATA Stock may be harmed if we redeem the SATA Stock.

We will have the right to redeem the SATA Stock in certain circumstances. For the full terms of our SATA Stock, see Item 1 to the Form 8-A we filed
with the SEC on November 7, 2025. If we redeem your SATA Stock, then you may be unable to reinvest any proceeds from the redemption in comparable
investments at favorable dividend or interest rates. Furthermore, if we elect to redeem the SATA Stock, the redemption price per share of SATA Stock that we
redeem may be less than the price per share of SATA Stock that you may receive upon a sale of your SATA Stock in the open market. In addition, a redemption
of less than all of the outstanding SATA Stock may harm the liquidity of the market for the unredeemed SATA Stock following the redemption. Accordingly, if
your SATA Stock is not redeemed in a partial redemption, then you may be unable to sell your SATA Stock at the times you desire or at favorable prices, if at
all, and the trading price of your SATA Stock may decline.

The accounting method for our SATA Stock may result in lower reported net earnings attributable to common stockholders and lower reported
diluted earnings per share.

The accounting method for reflecting the provisions of our SATA Stock in our financial statements may adversely affect our reported earnings.
Applicable accounting standards require us to separately account for certain redemption features associated with our SATA Stock as embedded derivatives.
Under this treatment, any embedded derivatives are measured at its fair value and accounted for separately as liabilities that are marked-to-market at the end of
each reporting
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period. For each financial statement period after the issuance of the SATA Stock, a gain or loss would be reported in our statement of operations to the extent
the valuation of any of the embedded derivatives changes from the previous period. This accounting treatment may subject our reported net income (loss) to
significant non-cash volatility. In addition, accounting standards may change in the future. Accordingly, we may account for our SATA Stock in a manner that
is significantly different than described above.

Future sales or other dilution of our Class A common stock, including other equity-related securities, could dilute our existing stockholders or
otherwise depress the market price of our Class A common stock and the value of our SATA Stock.

Future sales of our Class A common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales could occur, could negatively impact the market price
of our Class A common stock, and, accordingly, the value of our SATA Stock. The terms of our SATA Stock do not restrict our ability to issue additional SATA
Stock, Class A common stock or other equity-related securities in the future. Future sales or issuances of Class A common stock, SATA Stock or other equity-
related securities could be dilutive to holders of our Class A common stock and SATA Stock and could adversely affect their voting and other rights and
economic interests. If we issue additional shares of our SATA Stock, shares of Class A common stock (including as payment for regular dividends on our SATA
Stock), or other equity-related securities, the price of our Class A common stock and the value of our SATA Stock may decline. We cannot predict the size of
future issuances of our Class A common stock or other securities or the effect, if any, that the issuance of our SATA Stock, and future sales and issuances of our
Class A common stock and other securities would have on the market price of our Class A common stock and the value of our SATA Stock. The sale or the
availability for sale of a large number of shares of Class A common stock in the public market could cause the market price of our Class A common stock to
decline.

Holding SATA Stock does not, in itself, confer any rights with respect to our Class A common stock.

Holding SATA Stock does not confer any rights with respect to our Class A common stock (including the voting rights of, and rights to receive any
dividends or other distributions on, our Class A common stock). However, holders of our SATA Stock are subject to all changes affecting our Class A common
stock to the extent the value of our SATA Stock depends on the market price of our Class A common stock. For example, if we propose an amendment to our
charter documents that requires the approval of our Class A common stockholders but not the approval of the preferred stockholders, then holders of any SATA
Stock will not, as such, be entitled to vote on the amendment, although those holders will be subject to any changes implemented by that amendment in the
powers, preferences or special rights of our Class A common stock.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities, Use of Proceeds, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

During the three months ended September 30, 2025, we did not sell any equity securities that were not registered under the Securities Act and that were not
previously disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K.

Purchases of Equity Securities

No repurchases of Class A common stock by the Company occurred during the three months ended September 30, 2025.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information
Rule 10b5-1 Information

None of our directors or officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act) adopted or terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement
or a non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (each as defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K) during the quarterly period covered by this report.
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Item 6. Exhibits

INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number Description
2.1%* Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 22, 2025, by and between Strive, Inc. and Semler Scientific, Inc. (incorporated by
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32

33

34

35

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

10.3

reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2025).

on September 12, 2025).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Strive, Inc. (effective December 31, 2025) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 14, 2025).

Certificate of Designation of Variable Rate Series A Perpetual Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 10, 2025).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of September 12, 2025, by and among Strive, Inc. and the persons listed on Schedule A thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2025).

First Amendment to the First Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated as of September 12, 2025 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2025).

Form of Pre-Funded Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12
2025).

Form of Certificate of Variable Rate Series A Perpetual Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on November 10, 2025).

Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated August 18, 2025, by and among Asset Entities Inc., Hybrid Assets LLC and Jeff Blue

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 20, 2025).

Form of Exchange Agreement, dated August 22, 2025, by and among Asset Entities Inc., Strive Enterprises, Inc. and the investors party
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10.14%

10.15¢

10.16F
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10.18+*
10.19¢*

10.207*
10.217*

31.1%*

Notice of Termination between Asset Entities Inc. and A.G.P./Alliance Global Partners, dated as of September 8, 2025 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2025).

September 12, 2025).

Separation Agreement and Release of Claims between Asset Entities Inc. and Matthew Krueger, dated as of September 10, 2025
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2025).

by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2025).

Form of Amendment No. 1 to the Sale and Subscription Agreements, dated as of September 15, 2025, by and between Strive, Inc. and the
subscribers party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 15
2025).

to the Form S-4 filed on August 5, 2025 (File No. 333-289280)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Amended and Restated 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Form S-4 filed on August 5, 2025 (File No. 333-289280)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Asset Entities Inc. 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.16 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 2, 2022 (File No.: 333-267258)).

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)_of the Principal Executive Officer.
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31.2* Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)_or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Principal Financial Officer.

32.1% Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS* Inline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded
within the Inline XBRL document).

101.SCH*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema with Embedded Linkbase Document.

101.CAL*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document.

101.PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL with applicable taxonomy extension information contained in Exhibits 101).

1 Executive compensation plan or arrangement.
* Filed or furnished herewith.

** All schedules and exhibits to the agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulations S-K. A copy of any omitted schedule and/or exhibit
will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

STRIVE, INC.

By: /s/ Matthew Cole
Matthew Cole
Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 14, 2025
By: /s/ Benjamin Pham

Benjamin Pham
Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 14, 2025
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Strive, Inc. Employment Agreement

This Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of September 15, 2025, by and between
Matthew Cole (the “Executive”) and Strive, Inc. (fk.a., Asset Entities Inc.), a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and entirely
amends, restates and replaces any employment agreement between the Executive and the Company or its affiliates, including, but
not limited to, Strive Enterprises, Inc. (“SEI”’), that was made and entered into prior to the date hereof (the “Existing Employment
Agreement”).

WHEREAS the Company desires to employ the Executive through one of its subsidiaries on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company or one of its subsidiaries, which is currently SEI, on such
terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and obligations set forth herein, the parties agree
as follows:

1. Term. The term of this Agreement commenced on September 12, 2025 (the “Effective Date”) and the period during
which the Executive is employed by the Company hereunder is referred to as the “Employment Term.” Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary herein, the Executive and the Company acknowledge and agree that pursuant to this Agreement and any Existing
Employment Agreement, the Executive has been continuously employed by the Company or its affiliates since [DATE]' for all
purposes, including with respect to the vesting of awards granted under the Strive, Inc. Amended and Restated 2022 Equity Incentive
Plan (together with any successor shareholder approved plan, the “Equity Incentive Plan™).

2. Position and Duties.

2.1 Position. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall serve as Chief Executive Officer and report to the
Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”). In such position, the Executive shall have such duties, authority and
responsibilities as may be determined from time to time by the Board, as applicable, provided such duties, authority and
responsibilities are consistent with the Executive’s position. It is understood and agreed that the Executive’s duties may include
providing services to or for the benefit of the Company’s affiliates, including, but not limited to, SEI.

2.2 Duties. During the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of the Executive’s
business time and attention to the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder and will not engage in any other business,
profession or occupation for compensation or otherwise that would conflict or interfere with the performance of such

! Note to Draft: Please confirm.



services either directly or indirectly without the prior written consent of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive
will be permitted to make personal passive investments and manage the Executive’s personal investment portfolio, including
purchasing or owning less than five percent of the publicly-traded securities of any corporation; provided that, such ownership
represents a passive investment and that the Executive is not a controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such
corporation; provided further that, these investments do not interfere with the performance of the Executive’s duties and
responsibilities to the Company as provided hereunder, including, but not limited to, the obligations set forth in Section 2 hereof.

2.3 Place of Performance. The Executive will primarily provide his services remotely, but he will be required to
travel regularly on Company business during the Employment Term.

3. Compensation.

3.1 Base Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Executive an annual base salary of
$800,000 in semimonthly installments in accordance with the Company’s customary payroll practices and applicable wage payment
laws. The Executive’s annual base salary, as in effect from time to time, is hereinafter referred to as the “Base Salary”.

3.2  Annual Bonus Plan.

(a) During the Employment Term, the Executive will be eligible to receive an annual bonus for each fiscal
year of the Company with a target of two hundred percent (200%) of Base Salary (“Target Bonus”) in accordance with the
achievement of performance metrics as determined by the Board (or a committee thereof) within sixty (60) days of the beginning of
the applicable fiscal year pursuant to the Company’s short term cash incentive plan (the “STI Plan”) in consultation with Executive.
The actual amount of the annual bonus for any fiscal year, if any, shall be determined based on actual performance measured against
the performance metrics established pursuant to the STI Plan.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 4, (i) the annual bonus will be subject to the terms of the
Company’s short-term cash incentive plan under which it is granted and (ii) in order to be eligible to receive an annual bonus, the
Executive must be continuously employed by the Company through the end of the applicable performance period.

33 Equity_Incentive Plan. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be eligible to participate in the
Equity Incentive Plan or any successor plan, subject to the terms of such plan, as determined by the Board or the Compensation
Committee, in its sole discretion.

3.4  Fringe Benefits and Perquisites. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to fringe
benefits and perquisites consistent with the practices of the Company and governing benefit plan requirements (including plan
eligibility provisions), and to the extent the Company provides similar benefits or perquisites (or both) to similarly situated
executives of the Company.




3.5 Employee Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in all
employee benefit plans, practices and programs maintained by the Company, as in effect from time to time (collectively, “Employee
Benefit Plans”), on a basis which is no less favorable than is provided to other similarly situated executives of the Company, to the
extent consistent with applicable law and the terms of the applicable Employee Benefit Plans. The Company reserves the right to
amend or terminate any Employee Benefit Plans at any time in its sole discretion, subject to the terms of such Employee Benefit
Plan and applicable law.

3.6  Signing Bonus. Executive will receive a special one-time bonus in an amount equal to $2,000,000, less all
applicable deductions and withholdings, payable on the first administratively practicable payroll date following the Effective Date.

3.7  Signing_Equity Grant. Subject to Executive’s continued employment with the Company through the first
annual shareholders meeting of the Company following the Effective Date and the sharcholder approval of the applicable Equity
Incentive Plan related action, the Company will recommend for approval to the Board (or the Compensation Committee of the
Board) that Executive be granted restricted stock units in respect of the Company’s Class A common stock having a value of
$17,000,000 (the “Special Grant”), with the number of shares underlying the Special Grant to be determined based on the average
closing price of the Company’s common stock for the six month period beginning the day after the Effective Date (as reported on
Bloomberg), which such Special Grant shall vest in five substantially equal instalments on each of the first five anniversaries of the
Effective Date, subject to Executive’s continued employment through each applicable vesting date; provided that, the vesting of the
Special Grant will be accelerated upon (i) a Change in Control (as defined in the Equity Incentive Plan) (ii) a termination of
Executive’s employment by the Company without Cause, (iii) Executive’s death or (iv) Executive’s Disability (as defined below).
The final terms and conditions of the Special Grant will be set forth in a restricted stock unit award agreement reflecting the terms
set forth herein and such other customary terms for restricted stock unit grants to similarly situated executives of the Company.

3.8 Vacation; Paid Time Off. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation on a
basis that is similar to that provided to other executives of the Company. The Executive shall receive other paid time off in
accordance with the Company’s policies for employees as such policies may exist from time to time.

3.9  Life Insurance Policy. During the Employment Term, the Company shall maintain a term life insurance policy
on the Executive’s life, with a death benefit of not less than $4,800,000, naming the Executive’s designated beneficiary or
beneficiaries as the sole beneficiary(ies). The Company shall pay all premiums on such policy. The Company shall provide
reasonable evidence of coverage to the Executive upon request.

3.10 Business Expenses. The Executive shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary out-of-
pocket business, entertainment, and travel expenses incurred by the Executive in connection with the performance of the Executive’s
duties hereunder in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policies and procedures. Business



expenses are subject to audit and the Executive may be required to reimburse the Company for expenses that are determined to be in
violation of the Company’s policies and procedures. The Company may choose to disallow any expenses submitted by the Executive
that do not conform to the Company’s reimbursement policies.

3.11 Personal Security. The Company shall provide, at its expense, appropriate protective services for the
Executive. The Company’s obligation under this Section shall be subject to maximum amount per calendar year of $250,000. To the
extent all or a portion of the costs relating to the protective services provided by the Company is taxable to the Executive, the
Company shall make the necessary payments to the Executive, as determined by a nationally recognized accounting firm, to ensure
that the Executive is in the same tax position as if such protective services were not provided. The Company may, from time to time,
engage an independent security consultant to conduct a security study to assess and recommend the level and type of protective
services appropriate for the Executive and the Executive will cooperate with such study. The Company and the Executive shall
review such protective services on an annual basis, taking into account the results of any security study, to ensure that the level of
protection remains appropriate in light of the Executive’s role and circumstances.

3.12 Clawback Provisions. Any amounts payable under this Agreement are subject to any policy established by the
Company to comply with applicable law or stock exchange rules providing for clawback or recovery of amounts that were paid to
the Executive, including the Strive, Inc. Compensation Recoupment Policy.

4. Termination of Employment. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated
by either the Company or the Executive at any time and for any reason; provided that, unless otherwise provided herein, either party
shall be required to give the other party at least 30 days’ advance written notice of any termination of the Executive’s employment.
On termination of the Executive’s employment during the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to the following
compensation and benefits and will have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits from the Company or any of its
affiliates (collectively, the “Company Group”):

4.1 For Cause or Without Good Reason.

(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason. If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason, the Executive shall be entitled to receive:

(1) any accrued but unpaid Base Salary and accrued but unused vacation which shall be paid on
the pay date immediately following the Termination Date (as defined below) in accordance with the
Company’s customary payroll procedures;



(i1) reimbursement for unreimbursed business expenses properly incurred by the Executive, which
shall be subject to and paid in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policy; and

(iii)  such employee benefits (including equity compensation), if any, to which the Executive may be
entitled under the Company’s employee benefit plans as of the Termination Date; provided that, in no event
shall the Executive be entitled to any payments in the nature of severance or termination payments except as
specifically provided herein (the items described in clauses (i) through (iii), collectively, the “Accrued
Amounts”).

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:

(1) the Executive’s failure to perform Executive’s duties (other than any such failure resulting from
incapacity due to physical or mental illness);

(i1) the Executive’s failure to comply with any valid and legal directive of the Board consistent
with Executive’s position and this Agreement;

(iii)  the Executive’s willful engagement in dishonesty, illegal conduct, or gross misconduct, which
is, in each case, materially injurious to the Company or its affiliates;

(iv)  the Executive’s embezzlement, misappropriation, or fraud, whether or not related to the
Executive’s employment with the Company;

v) the Executive’s conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a crime that constitutes a
felony (or state law equivalent) or a crime that constitutes a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude;

(vi)  the Executive’s material violation of the Company’s written policies or codes of conduct,
including written policies related to discrimination, harassment, performance of illegal or unethical activities,
and ethical misconduct;

(vii) the Executive’s willful unauthorized disclosure of Confidential Information (as defined below);

(viii) the Executive’s material breach of any material obligation under this Agreement or any other
written agreement between the Executive and the Company; or



(ix)  the Executive’s willful engagement in conduct that brings negative publicity or into public
disgrace, embarrassment, or disrepute causing demonstrable financial harm to the Company.

For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act on the part of the Executive shall be considered
“willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company. Any act, or failure to act, based on authority
given pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or on the advice of counsel for the Company shall be
conclusively presumed to be done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company.

Except for a failure, breach or refusal which, by its nature, cannot reasonably be expected to be cured,
the Executive shall have thirty (30) business days from the delivery of written notice by the Company within which to
cure any acts constituting Cause, to the extent curable. The Company may place the Executive on paid leave for up to
sixty (60) days while it is determining whether there is a basis to terminate the Executive’s employment for Cause.
Any such action by the Company will not constitute Good Reason.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following, in
each case during the Employment Term without the Executive’s written consent:

(1) any material reduction in Base Salary or Target Bonus, other than a reduction in Base Salary or
Target Bonus that applies to other similarly situated executives of the Company;

(ii) a material diminution in Executive’s position, title, duties, authorities or responsibilities
(including membership on the Board), excluding any reduction in duties, responsibilities or authority that results
solely from the Company ceasing to be a publicly traded entity;

(iii))  the Executive being required to regularly provide services from a primary place of employment
specified by the Company that is not remote;

(iv)  a material breach by the Company or any of its affiliates of any material agreement with
Executive;

v) the Company’s failure to maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive; or

(vi)  the failure of the Company to require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase,
merger, consolidation or otherwise) to



expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in accordance with its terms.

The Executive cannot terminate employment for Good Reason unless the Executive has provided written notice to the
Company of the existence of the circumstances providing grounds for termination for Good Reason within sixty (60)
days of the initial existence of such grounds and the Company has had at least thirty (30) days from the date on which
such notice is provided to cure such circumstances. If the Executive does not terminate employment for Good Reason
within sixty (60) days after the first occurrence of the applicable grounds, then the Executive will be deemed to have
waived the right to terminate for Good Reason with respect to such grounds.

4.2  Without Cause or for Good Reason. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may
be terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause. In the event of such termination, the Executive
shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance with Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and
Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a release of claims in favor of the Company, its affiliates and their
respective officers and directors in a form provided by the Company (the “Release”) and such Release becoming effective within 30
days following the Termination Date (such 21-day period, the “Release Execution Period”), the Executive shall be entitled to
receive the following:

(a) a lump sum payment equal to two (2) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) any earned but unpaid annual bonus with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding
the Termination Date, which shall be paid on the otherwise applicable payment date (the ‘“Prior Year Bonus™);

(c) a lump sum payment equal to the prorated annual bonus, if any, that the Executive would have earned
for the calendar year in which the Termination Date occurs based on the achievement of applicable performance goals
for such year, which shall be payable on the date that annual bonuses are paid to the Company’s similarly situated
executives, but in no event later than two-and-a-half (2)2) months following the end of the calendar year in which the
Termination Date occurs (the “Prorata Bonus™);

(d) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest solely based on continued service
with the Company shall immediately vest and/or become exercisable (the “Service-Based Equity Acceleration”);



(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting based on actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with actual level of
performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith (the “Performance-
Based Equity Acceleration”); and

) if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (“COBRA”), the Company shall reimburse the Executive for the
monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the Executive’s dependents. Such
reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15™) of the month immediately following the month in
which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be eligible to receive such
reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the Termination Date; (ii) the date
the Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii) the date on which the
Executive becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or other source;
provided, however, that if the continued benefit pursuant to this Section 4.2(f) would otherwise end prior to the
twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the Termination Date as a result of clause (ii) above, subject to the next
sentence, the Company will provide a substantially similar economic benefit through the twenty-four (24) month
anniversary of the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this
Section 4.2(f) would violate the nondiscrimination rules applicable to non-grandfathered plans under the Affordable
Care Act (the “ACA”), or result in the imposition of penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and
guidance promulgated thereunder, the parties agree to reform this Section 4.2(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply
with the ACA, including making payments to the Executive in lieu of providing ongoing coverage.

4.3 Death.

(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate automatically on the Executive’s death during
the Employment Term.

(b) If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Employment Term on account of the
Executive’s death, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and,
subject to the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(1) the Prorata Bonus;
(ii) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iii)  the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;



(iv)  the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for thirty-six (36) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable
lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such thirty-six (36) month period;

v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date, with
terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date; and

(vi)  the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s
organizational documents and applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

4.4  Disability.

(a) Upon Executive’s Disability, Executive will receive the Accrued Amounts, and subject to the
Executive or the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(1) the Prorata Bonus;
(i1) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;
(iii)  the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iv)  the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for twenty four (24) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable
lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such twenty four (24) month period;

v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date, with
terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date; and

(vi)  the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s



organizational documents and applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

(b) In addition to the benefits set forth in Section 4.4(a) above, to the extent that the Executive becomes
entitled to Disability treatment as a result of an intentional violent act of a third party targeting the Executive, the
Executive shall, subject to the execution of a Release by the Executive (or if unable to execute such a Release, his
designee), become entitled to a payment equal to one and one half (1%) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary
and (ii) Target Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date for Disability occurs, which shall be paid in lump
sum within forty-five (45) days following the Termination Date for the Disability; provided that, if the Release
Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another taxable year, payment shall not be made until the
beginning of the second taxable year.

(©) For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” shall mean a condition that entitles the Executive to
receive long-term disability benefits under the Company’s long-term disability plan, or if there is no such plan, the
Executive’s inability, due to physical or mental incapacity, to perform the essential functions of the Executive’s job,
with or without reasonable accommodation, for 180 days out of any three hundred sixty-five (365) day period or one
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days; provided, however, in the event that the Company temporarily replaces the
Executive, or transfers the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to another individual on account of the Executive’s
inability to perform such duties due to a mental or physical incapacity which is, or is reasonably expected to become,
a Disability, then the Executive’s employment shall not be deemed terminated by the Company and the Executive
shall not be able to resign with Good Reason as a result thereof. Any question as to the existence of the Executive’s
Disability as to which the Executive and the Company cannot agree shall be determined in writing by a qualified
independent physician mutually acceptable to the Executive and the Company. If the Executive and the Company
cannot agree as to a qualified independent physician, each shall appoint such a physician and those two physicians
shall select a third who shall make such determination in writing. The determination of Disability made in writing to
the Company and the Executive shall be final and conclusive for all purposes of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, all payments made in connection with the Executive’s
Disability shall be provided in a manner which is consistent with federal and state law.

4.5 Change in Control Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, if the Executive’s
employment hereunder is terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause (other than on account of
the Executive’s death or Disability), in each case within twenty-four (24) months following a Change in Control, the
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Executive shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance with Section 5, Section 6,
Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a Release which becomes effective within 30 days
following the Termination Date, the Executive shall be entitled to receive the following:

(a) a lump sum payment equal to three (3) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) the Prior Year Bonus;
(c) the Prorata Bonus;
(d) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;

(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting at the greater of target and actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with
actual level of performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith; and

) if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under COBRA, the Company
shall reimburse the Executive for the monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the
Executive’s dependents. Such reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15%) of the month
immediately following the month in which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be
eligible to receive such reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the thirty-six (36) month anniversary of the
Termination Date; (ii) the date the Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii)
the date on which the Executive becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or
other source; provided, however, that if the continued benefit pursuant to this Section 4.5(f) would otherwise end
prior to the thirty-six (36) month anniversary of the Termination Date as a result of clause (ii) above, subject to the
next sentence, the Company will provide a substantially similar economic benefit through the thirty-six (36) month
anniversary of the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this
Section 4.5(f) would violate the nondiscrimination rules applicable to non-grandfathered plans under ACA, or result
in the imposition of penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder, the
parties agree to reform this Section 4.5(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply with the ACA.
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4.6  Notice of Termination. Any termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder by the Company or by the
Executive during the Employment Term (other than termination pursuant to Section 4.3(a) on account of the Executive’s death) shall
be communicated by written notice of termination (“Notice of Termination”) to the other party hereto in accordance with Section
24. The Notice of Termination shall specify:

(a) The termination provision of this Agreement relied upon;

(b) To the extent applicable, the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the
Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated; and

(©) The applicable Termination Date.
4.7 Termination Date. The Executive’s “Termination Date” shall be:

(a) If the Executive’s employment hereunder terminates on account of the Executive’s death, the date of
the Executive’s death;

(b) If the Executive’s employment hereunder is terminated on account of the Executive’s Disability, the
date that it is determined that the Executive has a Disability;

(c) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder for Cause, the date the Notice of
Termination is delivered to the Executive;

(d) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder without Cause, the date specified in
the Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date on which the Notice of
Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company shall have the option to provide the Executive with a lump sum
payment equal to thirty (30) days’ Base Salary in lieu of such notice, which shall be paid in a lump sum on the
Executive’s Termination Date and for all purposes of this Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall be the
date on which such Notice of Termination is delivered; provided, that in the event the Company elects to pay in lieu
of notice, the Executive shall (i) continue to receive all employee benefits and equity vesting for such thirty (30) day
period as if actively employed, or (ii) if such continuation is not practicable, receive a cash payment equal to the
value of such benefits and vesting, in each case determined in good faith by the Company; and

(e) If the Executive terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder with or without Good Reason, the
date specified in the Executive’s Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date
on which the Notice of Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company may waive all or any part of the thirty
(30) day notice period for no consideration by
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giving written notice to the Executive and for all purposes of this Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall
be the date determined by the Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the Termination Date shall not occur until the date on which the
Executive incurs a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A.

4.8 Termination Date. On termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder for any reason, the Executive
shall be deemed to have resigned from all positions that the Executive holds as an officer or member of the Board (or a committee
thereof) of the Company Group.

4.9  No Mitigation or Offset. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for
in this Section 4 by seeking or accepting other employment following the Termination Date. The amount of any payment or benefit
provided for in this Agreement shall not be reduced by any compensation or benefit earned by the Executive as the result of
employment by another employer or by retirement or other benefits, except as described in Section 4.2(f) or Section 4.5(f).

4.10  Section 280G.

(a) If any of the payments or benefits received or to be received by the Executive (including, without
limitation, any payments or benefits received in connection with a Change in Control or the Executive’s termination
of employment, whether pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other plan, arrangement, or agreement, or
otherwise) constitute “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and will be subject to
the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), the present value of Executive’s payments
and benefits will be reduced by the minimum amount necessary such that the aggregate present value of such
payments and benefits do not trigger the Excise Tax; provided, however, no such reductions shall be given effect if
Executive would be entitled to greater payments and benefits on an after-tax basis (taking into account the Excise Tax
imposed pursuant to Section 4999 of the Code, any tax imposed by any comparable provision of state law, and any
applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes) than if such reductions were to be implemented.

(b) If payments or benefits are to be reduced, any such reduction in payments and/or benefits shall be
made in accordance with Section 409A and shall occur in the manner that results in the greatest economic benefit to
Executive as determined by an independent accounting firm or independent tax counsel mutually acceptable to the
Company and the Executive (the “Tax Counsel”). All calculations and determinations under this Section 4.10 shall be
made by the Tax Counsel whose determinations shall be conclusive and binding on the Company and the Executive
for all purposes. For purposes of making the calculations and determinations required by this Section 4.10, the Tax
Counsel may rely on
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reasonable, good faith assumptions and approximations concerning the application of Section 280G and Section 4999
of the Code. The Company and the Executive shall furnish the Tax Counsel with such information and documents as
the Tax Counsel may reasonably request in order to make its determinations under this Section 4.10. The Company
shall bear all costs the Tax Counsel may reasonably incur in connection with its services.

5. Cooperation. The parties agree that certain matters in which the Executive will be involved during the Employment
Term may necessitate the Executive’s cooperation in the future. Accordingly, following the termination of the Executive’s
employment for any reason, to the extent reasonably requested by the Board, the Executive shall cooperate with the Company in
connection with matters arising out of the Executive’s service to the Company; provided that, the Company shall make reasonable
efforts to minimize disruption of the Executive’s other activities. The Company shall reimburse the Executive for reasonable
expenses incurred in connection with such cooperation.

6. Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that during the Employment Term, the
Executive will have access to and learn about Confidential Information, as defined below.

6.1 Definition. For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” includes, but is not limited to, all
information not generally known to the public, in spoken, printed, electronic, or any other form or medium, relating directly or
indirectly to: business processes, practices, methods, policies, plans, publications, documents, research, operations, services,
strategies, techniques, agreements, contracts, terms of agreements, transactions, potential transactions, negotiations, pending
negotiations, know-how, trade secrets, computer programs, computer software, applications, operating systems, software design,
web design, work-in-process, databases, device configurations, embedded data, compilations, metadata, technologies, manuals,
records, articles, systems, material, sources of material, supplier information, vendor information, financial information, results,
accounting information, accounting records, legal information, marketing information, advertising information, pricing information,
credit information, design information, payroll information, staffing information, personnel information, employee lists, supplier
lists, vendor lists, developments, reports, internal controls, security procedures, graphics, drawings, sketches, market studies, sales
information, revenue, costs, formulae, notes, communications, algorithms, product plans, designs, styles, models, ideas, audiovisual
programs, inventions, unpublished patent applications, original works of authorship, discoveries, experimental processes,
experimental results, specifications, customer information, customer lists, client information, client lists, manufacturing information,
factory lists, distributor lists, and buyer lists of the Company Group or its businesses, or of any other person or entity that has
entrusted information to the Company Group in confidence.

The Executive understands that the above list is not exhaustive, and that Confidential Information also includes other
information that is marked or otherwise identified as confidential or proprietary, or that would otherwise appear to a reasonable
person to be
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confidential or proprietary in the context and circumstances in which the information is known or used.

The Executive understands and agrees that Confidential Information includes information developed by Executive in
the course of employment by the Company as if the Company furnished the same Confidential Information to the Executive in the
first instance. Confidential Information shall not include information that is generally available to and known by the public at the
time of disclosure to the Executive; provided that, such disclosure is through no direct or indirect fault of the Executive or person(s)
acting on the Executive’s behalf.

The Executive understands and acknowledges that the Executive’s obligations under this Agreement with regard to
any particular Confidential Information shall commence immediately upon the Executive first having access to such Confidential
Information (whether before or after the Executive begins employment by the Company) and shall continue during and after the
Executive’s employment by the Company until such time as such Confidential Information has become public knowledge other than
as a result of the Executive’s breach of this Agreement or breach by those acting in concert with the Executive or on the Executive’s
behalf.

6.2 Company Creation and Use of Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that
the Company has invested, and continues to invest, substantial time, money, and specialized knowledge into developing its
resources, creating a customer base, generating customer and potential customer lists, training its employees, and improving its
offerings in the field of asset or investment management industry. The Executive understands and acknowledges that as a result of
these efforts, the Company has created, and continues to use and create Confidential Information. This Confidential Information
provides the Company with a competitive advantage over others in the marketplace.

6.3 Protected Rights. The following rights set forth in this Section 6.3 shall be referred to herein as the “Protected
Rights.”

(a) Permitted Disclosures. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent disclosure of Confidential Information as
may be required by applicable law or regulation, or pursuant to the valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or
an authorized government agency, provided that the disclosure does not exceed the extent of disclosure required by
such law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary
of the Company. Section 7 of this Agreement does not, in any way, restrict or impede the Executive from exercising
protected rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with any applicable
law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly
provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company.

(b) Permitted Communications. Nothing herein prohibits or restricts the Executive (or the Executive’s attorney)
from initiating communications directly
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with, responding to an inquiry from, or providing testimony before the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC),
the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), any other self-regulatory organization or any other federal or
state regulatory authority.

(c) Notice of Immunity Under the Economic Espionage Act of 1996, as amended by the Defend Trade Secrets Act
of 2016. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Executive will not be held criminally or civilly
liable under any federal or state trade secret law for any disclosure of a trade secret that:

(1) is made (1) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or
indirectly, or to an attorney; and (2) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation
of law; or

(i1) is made in a complaint or other document filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding.

(d) If the Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of
law, the Executive may disclose the Company’s trade secrets to the Executive’s attorney and use the trade secret
information in the court proceeding if the Executive:

(1) files any document containing trade secrets under seal; and
(i1) does not disclose trade secrets, except pursuant to court order.
7. Restrictive Covenants.

7.1 Acknowledgment. The Executive understands that the nature of the Executive’s position gives the Executive
access to and knowledge of Confidential Information and places the Executive in a position of trust and confidence with the
Company. The Executive understands and acknowledges that the intellectual, artistic or services the Executive provides to the
Company are unique, special, or extraordinary. The Executive further understands and acknowledges that, subject to the Protected
Rights, the Company’s ability to reserve these for the exclusive knowledge and use of the Company is of great competitive
importance and commercial value to the Company, and that improper use or disclosure by the Executive is likely to result in unfair
or unlawful competitive activity.

7.2  Non-Competition. Because of the Company’s legitimate business interest as described herein and the good
and valuable consideration offered to the Executive, during the Employment Term and for the one year period beginning on the last
day of the Executive’s employment with the Company, regardless of the reason for the termination and whether employment is
terminated at the option of the Executive or the Company Group, the Executive
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agrees and covenants not to engage in Prohibited Activity within the asset or investment management industry (as limited by the
definition of Prohibited Activity below).

For purposes of this Section 7, “Prohibited Activity” is activity in which the Executive contributes the Executive’s
knowledge, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as an employee, employer, owner, operator, manager, advisor, consultant,
agent, employee, partner, director, stockholder, officer, volunteer, intern, or any other similar capacity to with any business that is (i)
acting as a publicly traded Bitcoin treasury company (i.e., purchasing, holding and managing Bitcoin as a principal treasury reserve
asset) or (ii) a entity or organization in the asset or investment management industry that provide Bitcoin treasury services and the
Executive is employed or engaged with respect to those services, or (iii) or engaging in a business that otherwise constitutes a
defined peer business in the same line of business as the Company. Prohibited Activity also includes activity that may require or
inevitably requires disclosure of trade secrets, proprietary information or Confidential Information.

Nothing herein shall prohibit the Executive from (i) purchasing or owning less than five percent (5%) of the publicly
traded securities of any corporation, provided that such ownership represents a passive investment and that the Executive is not a
controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such corporation, (ii) owning the majority controlling interest in a
privately held company that does not compete with the Company with the prior written approval of the Board (iii) holding interests
through diversified investment vehicles, private equity, hedge funds or other portfolio investments that are not controlled by the
Executive, (iv) serving on the board of directors of a nonprofit organization, (v) serving on one outside for-profit board of directors,
subject to the Company’s prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), or (vi)
engaging in speaking, lecturing, teaching, writing or similar activities, in each of the cases of clauses (i) through (v) above, none of
these activities will interfere with the Executive’s duties set forth in Section 2.2 above.

7.3 Non-Solicitation of Employees. For a period of twelve (12) months following the Termination Date, the
Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit, hire, recruit, attempt to hire or recruit, or induce the termination of employment of
any employee of the Company with whom the Executive worked during the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the
termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.

7.4  Non-Solicitation of Customers. The Executive understands and acknowledges that because of the Executive’s
experience with and relationship to the Company, the Executive will have access to and learn about much or all of the Company’s
customer information. “Customer Information” includes, but is not limited to, names, phone numbers, addresses, email addresses,
order history, order preferences, chain of command, decisionmakers, pricing information, and other information identifying facts and
circumstances specific to the customer and relevant to services.

The Executive understands and acknowledges that loss of this customer relationship and/or goodwill will cause
significant and irreparable harm.
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The Executive agrees and covenants, during the one year period beginning on the last day of the Executive’s
employment with the Company, not to directly or indirectly solicit, contact (including but not limited to e-mail, regular mail, express
mail, telephone, fax, instant message, or social media), attempt to contact, or meet with the Company’s current customers for
purposes of offering or accepting goods or services similar to or competitive with those offered by the Company.

This restriction shall only apply to:
(a) Customers or prospective customers the Executive contacted in any way during the past one year;
(b) Customers about whom the Executive has trade secret or confidential information;
(©) Customers who became customers during the Executive’s employment with the Company; and
(d) Customers about whom the Executive has information that is not available publicly.

In the event of the Executive’s termination without Cause or for Good Reason, the Company and the Executive may
agree to modified terms on any provision of this Section 7, provided such modification is in writing and signed by both Parties as set
forth in Section 16 herein.

8. Non-Disparagement. The Executive agrees and covenants that, the Executive will not at any time make, publish or
communicate to any person or entity or in any public forum any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements
concerning the Company or its businesses, or any of its employees. This Section 8 does not, in any way, restrict or impede the
Executive from exercising Protected Rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with
any applicable law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written
notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company. The Company agrees and covenants that it shall direct its officers and
directors to refrain from making any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements concerning the Executive to any
third parties.

9. Acknowledgment. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the services to be rendered by the Executive to the
Company are of a special and unique character; that the Executive will obtain knowledge and skill relevant to the Company’s
industry, methods of doing business and marketing strategies by virtue of the Executive’s employment; and that the restrictive
covenants and other terms and conditions of this Agreement are reasonable and reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate
business interest of the Company. The Executive further acknowledges that the benefits provided to the Executive under this
Agreement, including the amount of the Executive’s compensation reflects, in part, the Executive’s obligations and the
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Company’s rights under Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement; that the Executive has no expectation of any
additional compensation, royalties or other payment of any kind not otherwise referenced herein in connection herewith; and that the
Executive will not suffer undue hardship by reason of full compliance with the terms and conditions of Section 6, Section 7 and
Section 8 of this Agreement or the Company’s enforcement thereof.

10. Remedies. In the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Executive of Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this
Agreement, the Executive hereby consents and agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek, in addition to other available
remedies, a temporary or permanent injunction or other equitable relief against such breach or threatened breach from any court of
competent jurisdiction, and that money damages would not afford an adequate remedy, without the necessity of showing any actual
damages, and without the necessity of posting any bond or other security. The aforementioned equitable relief shall be in addition to,
not in lieu of, legal remedies, monetary damages, or other available forms of relief.

11. Proprietary Rights.

11.1  Work Product. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that all right, title, and interest in and to all writings,
works of authorship, technology, inventions, discoveries, processes, techniques, methods, ideas, concepts, research, proposals,
materials, and all other work product of any nature whatsoever, that are created, prepared, produced, authored, edited, amended,
conceived, or reduced to practice by the Executive individually or jointly with others during the Employment Term and relate in any
way to the business or contemplated business, products, activities, research, or development of the Company or result from any work
performed by the Executive for the Company (in each case, regardless of when or where prepared or whose equipment or other
resources is used in preparing the same), all rights and claims related to the foregoing, and all printed, physical and electronic copies,
and other tangible embodiments thereof (collectively, “Work Product”), as well as any and all rights in and to US and foreign (a)
patents, patent disclosures and inventions (whether patentable or not), (b) trademarks, service marks, trade dress, trade names, logos,
corporate names and domain names, and other similar designations of source or origin, together with the goodwill symbolized by
any of the foregoing, (c) copyrights and copyrightable works (including computer programs), and rights in data and databases, (d)
trade secrets, know-how, and other confidential information, and (e) all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether
registered or unregistered and including all registrations and applications for, and renewals and extensions of, such rights, all
improvements thereto and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection in any part of the world (collectively, “Intellectual
Property Rights™), shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company.

For purposes of this Agreement, Work Product includes, but is not limited to, Company information.

11.2  Work Made for Hire; Assignment. The Executive acknowledges that, by reason of being employed by the
Company at the relevant times, to the extent permitted by law, all of the Work Product consisting of copyrightable subject matter is
“work made for hire” as defined in 17 U.S.C. § 101 and such copyrights are therefore owned by the Company. To the
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extent that the foregoing does not apply, the Executive hereby irrevocably assigns to the Company, for no additional consideration,
the Executive’s entire right, title, and interest in and to all Work Product and Intellectual Property Rights therein, including the right
to sue, counterclaim, and recover for all past, present, and future infringement, misappropriation, or dilution thereof, and all rights
corresponding thereto throughout the world. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to reduce or limit the
Company’s rights, title, or interest in any Work Product or Intellectual Property Rights so as to be less in any respect than that the
Company would have had in the absence of this Agreement.

11.3  Further Assurances; Power of Attorney. During and after the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to
reasonably cooperate with the Company to (a) apply for, obtain, perfect, and transfer to the Company the Work Product as well as
any and all Intellectual Property Rights in the Work Product in any jurisdiction in the world; and (b) maintain, protect and enforce
the same, including, without limitation, giving testimony and executing and delivering to the Company any and all applications,
oaths, declarations, affidavits, waivers, assignments, and other documents and instruments as shall be requested by the Company.
The Executive hereby irrevocably grants the Company power of attorney to execute and deliver any such documents on the
Executive’s behalf in the Executive’s name and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to transfer the Work Product to the Company
and further the transfer, prosecution, issuance, and maintenance of all Intellectual Property Rights therein, to the full extent permitted
by law, if the Executive does not promptly cooperate with the Company’s request (without limiting the rights the Company shall
have in such circumstances by operation of law). The power of attorney is coupled with an interest and shall not be affected by the
Executive’s subsequent incapacity.

11.4 No License. The Executive understands that this Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, grant the
Executive any license or right of any nature with respect to any Work Product or Intellectual Property Rights or any Confidential
Information, materials, software, or other tools made available to the Executive by the Company.

12.  Security.

12.1  Security and Access. The Executive agrees and covenants (a) to comply with all Company security policies
and procedures as in force from time to time (“Facilities and Information Technology Resources”); (b) not to access or use any
Facilities and Information Technology Resources except as authorized by the Company; and (iii) not to access or use any Facilities
and Information Technology Resources in any manner after the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company,
whether termination is voluntary or involuntary. The Executive agrees to notify the Company promptly in the event the Executive
learns of any violation of the foregoing by others, or of any other misappropriation or unauthorized access, use, reproduction, or
reverse engineering of, or tampering with any Facilities and Information Technology Resources or other Company property or
materials by others.

12.2  Exit Obligations. Upon (a) voluntary or involuntary termination of the Executive’s employment or (b) the
Company’s request at any time during the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall (i) provide or return to the Company any and
all Company
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property and all Company documents and materials belonging to the Company and stored in any fashion, including but not limited to
those that constitute or contain any Confidential Information or Work Product, that are in the possession or control of the Executive,
whether they were provided to the Executive by the Company or any of its business associates or created by the Executive in
connection with the Executive’s employment by the Company; and (ii) delete or destroy all copies of any such documents and
materials not returned to the Company that remain in the Executive’s possession or control, including those stored on any non-
Company Group devices, networks, storage locations, and media in the Executive’s possession or control.

13. Publicity. During the Employment Term and for one year after the Executive terminates employment with the
Company for any reason, the Executive hereby irrevocably consents to any uses and displays, by the Company and its agents,
representatives and licensees, of the Executive’s name, voice, likeness, image, appearance, and biographical information in, on or in
connection with any pictures, photographs, audio and video recordings, digital images, websites, television programs and
advertising, other advertising and publicity, sales and marketing brochures, books, magazines, other publications, CDs, DVDs, tapes,
and all other printed and electronic forms and media throughout the world, at any time during or after the Employment Term, for all
legitimate commercial and business purposes of the Company, subject to reasonable consultation with the Executive (“Permitted
Uses”), without further consent from or royalty, payment, or other compensation to the Executive. The Executive hereby forever
waives and releases the Company and its directors, officers, employees, and agents from any and all claims, actions, damages,
losses, costs, expenses, and liability of any kind, arising under any legal or equitable theory whatsoever at any time during or after
the Employment Term, arising directly or indirectly from the Company Group’s and its agents’, representatives’, and licensees’
exercise of their rights in connection with any Permitted Uses.

14. Governing Law: Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement, for all purposes, shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of Texas without regard to conflicts of law principles. Any action or proceeding by either of the parties to enforce this
Agreement shall be brought only in a state or federal court located in the state of Texas. The parties hereby irrevocably submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction of such courts and waive the defense of inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any such action or
proceeding in such venue.

15. Entire Agreement. Unless specifically provided herein, this Agreement contains all of the understandings and
representations between the Executive and the Company pertaining to the subject matter herecof and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings, agreements, representations, and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to such subject
matter. The parties mutually agree that the Agreement can be specifically enforced in court and can be cited as evidence in legal
proceedings alleging breach of the Agreement.

16. Modification and Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or modified unless such amendment or
modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the Executive and by the Secretary of the Company. No waiver by either of the
parties of any breach by the other party hereto of any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by the other party
hereto shall be deemed a waiver of any similar or dissimilar provision or condition at
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the same or any prior or subsequent time, nor shall the failure of or delay by either of the parties in exercising any right, power, or
privilege hereunder operate as a waiver thereof to preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other such
right, power, or privilege.

17. Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be enforceable
only if modified, or if any portion of this Agreement shall be held as unenforceable and thus stricken, such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remainder of this Agreement, the balance of which shall continue to be binding upon the parties with any such
modification to become a part hereof and treated as though originally set forth in this Agreement.

The parties further agree that any such court is expressly authorized to modify any such unenforceable provision of this
Agreement in lieu of severing such unenforceable provision from this Agreement in its entirety, whether by rewriting the offending
provision, deleting any or all of the offending provision, adding additional language to this Agreement, or by making such other
modifications as it deems warranted to carry out the intent and agreement of the parties as embodied herein to the maximum extent
permitted by law.

The parties expressly agree that this Agreement as so modified by the court shall be binding upon and enforceable against
each of them. In any event, should one or more of the provisions of this Agreement be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in
any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and if such provision or
provisions are not modified as provided above, this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provisions had not been set forth herein.

18. Captions. Captions and headings of the sections and paragraphs of this Agreement are intended solely for
convenience and no provision of this Agreement is to be construed by reference to the caption or heading of any section or
paragraph.

19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

20. Tolling. Should the Executive violate any of the terms of the restrictive covenant obligations articulated herein, the
obligation at issue will run from the first date on which the Executive ceases to be in violation of such obligation.

21.  Section 409A.

21.1  General Compliance. This Agreement is intended to comply with Section 409A or an exemption thereunder
and shall be construed and administered in accordance with Section 409A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
payments provided under this Agreement may only be made upon an event and in a manner that complies with Section 409A or an
applicable exemption. Any payments under this Agreement that may be excluded from Section 409A either as separation pay due to
an involuntary separation from service or as a short-term deferral shall be excluded from Section 409A to the maximum extent
possible. For
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purposes of Section 409A, each installment payment provided under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment. Any
payments to be made under this Agreement upon a termination of employment shall only be made upon a “separation from service”
under Section 409A. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representations that the payments and benefits provided
under this Agreement comply with Section 409A, and in no event shall the Company be liable for all or any portion of any taxes,
penalties, interest, or other expenses that may be incurred by the Executive on account of non-compliance with Section 409A.

21.2  Specified Employees. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any payment or benefit
provided to the Executive in connection with the Executive’s termination of employment is determined to constitute “nonqualified
deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and the Executive is determined to be a “specified employee” as
defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(b)(i), then such payment or benefit shall not be paid until the first payroll date following the six-
month anniversary of the Termination Date or, if earlier, on the Executive’s death (the “Specified Employee Payment Date”). The
aggregate of any payments that would otherwise have been paid before the Specified Employee Payment Date shall be paid to the
Executive in a lump sum on the Specified Employee Payment Date and thereafter, any remaining payments shall be paid without
delay in accordance with their original schedule.

21.3 Reimbursements. To the extent required by Section 409A, each reimbursement or in-kind benefit provided
under this Agreement shall be provided in accordance with the following:

(a) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during each calendar
year cannot affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other calendar
year;

(b) any reimbursement of an eligible expense shall be paid to the Executive on or before the last day of the
calendar year following the calendar year in which the expense was incurred; and

(c) any right to reimbursements or in-kind benefits under this Agreement shall not be subject to liquidation
or exchange for another benefit.

22. Notification to Subsequent Employer. When the Executive’s employment with the Company terminates, the
Executive agrees to notify any subsequent employer of the restrictive covenants sections contained in this Agreement. The Executive
will also deliver a copy of such notice to the Company before the Executive commences employment with any subsequent employer.
In addition, the Executive authorizes the Company to provide a copy of the restrictive covenants sections of this Agreement to third
parties, including but not limited to, the Executive’s subsequent, anticipated, or possible future employer.

23. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is personal to the Executive and shall not be assigned by the Executive. Any
purported assignment by the Executive shall be null and void from the initial date of the purported assignment. The Company shall
use its best efforts to
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assign this Agreement to any successor or assign (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation, or otherwise) to all
or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the Company and permitted
successors and assigns.

24. Notice. Notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by overnight carrier to the parties at the
addresses set forth below (or such other addresses as specified by the parties by like notice):

If to the Company:

Strive, Inc.
200 Crescent Court Suite 1400
Dallas, Texas 75201

If to the Executive:
At Executive’s email or home address as then shown in the Company’s personnel records.

25. Representations of the Executive. The Executive represents and warrants to the Company that:

(a) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not conflict with or result in a violation of, a breach of, or a default under any contract, agreement, or
understanding to which the Executive is a party or is otherwise bound.

(b) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not violate any non-solicitation, non- competition, or other similar covenant or agreement of a prior
employer.

26. Withholding. The Company shall have the right to withhold from any amount payable hereunder any Federal, state,
and local taxes in order for the Company to satisfy any withholding tax obligation it may have under any applicable law or
regulation.

27. Survival. Upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall survive such expiration or other termination to the extent necessary to carry out the intentions of the parties under
this Agreement.

28. Acknowledgment of Full Understanding. THE EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE
EXECUTIVE HAS FULLY READ, UNDERSTANDS AND VOLUNTARILY ENTERS INTO THIS AGREEMENT. THE
EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE EXECUTIVE HAS HAD AN
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OPPORTUNITY TO ASK QUESTIONS AND CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF THE EXECUTIVE’S CHOICE BEFORE
SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT.

[this space left blank intentionally — signature page follows]
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By:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

Strive, Inc.
By:

Name: Benjamin Pham
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Name: Matthew Cole

[Signature Page to Employment Agreement]
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Strive, Inc. Employment Agreement

This Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of September 15, 2025, by and between
Benjamin Pham (the “Executive”) and Strive, Inc. (f.k.a., Asset Entities Inc.), a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and entirely
amends, restates and replaces any employment agreement between the Executive and the Company or its affiliates, including, but
not limited to, Strive Enterprises, Inc. (“SEI”’), that was made and entered into prior to the date hereof (the “Existing Employment
Agreement”).

WHEREAS the Company desires to employ the Executive through one of its subsidiaries on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company or one of its subsidiaries, which is currently SEI, on such
terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and obligations set forth herein, the parties agree
as follows:

1. Term. The term of this Agreement commenced on September 12, 2025 and the period during which the Executive is
employed by the Company hereunder is referred to as the “Employment Term.” Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
the Executive and the Company acknowledge and agree that pursuant to this Agreement and any Existing Employment Agreement,
the Executive has been continuously employed by the Company or its affiliates since March 1, 2022 for all purposes, including with
respect to the vesting of awards granted under the Strive, Inc. Amended and Restated 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (together with any
successor shareholder approved plan, the “Equity Incentive Plan”).

2. Position and Duties.

2.1 Position. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall serve as Chief Financial Officer and report
directly to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQO”). In such position, the Executive shall have such duties, authority and
responsibilities as may be determined from time to time by the CEO or Board of Directors (the “Board”), as applicable, provided
such duties, authority and responsibilities are consistent with the Executive’s position. It is understood and agreed that the
Executive’s duties may include providing services to or for the benefit of the Company’s affiliates, including, but not limited to, SEI.

2.2 Duties. During the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of the Executive’s
business time and attention to the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder and will not engage in any other business,
profession or occupation for compensation or otherwise that would conflict or interfere with the performance of such services either
directly or indirectly without the prior written consent of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive will be
permitted to make personal passive



investments and manage the Executive’s personal investment portfolio, including purchasing or owning less than five percent of the
publicly-traded securities of any corporation; provided that, such ownership represents a passive investment and that the Executive is
not a controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such corporation; provided further that, these investments do not
interfere with the performance of the Executive’s duties and responsibilities to the Company as provided hereunder, including, but
not limited to, the obligations set forth in Section 2 hereof.

2.3 Place of Performance. The Executive will primarily provide his services remotely, but he will be required to
travel regularly on Company business during the Employment Term.

3. Compensation.

3.1 Base Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Executive an annual base salary of
$500,000 in semimonthly installments in accordance with the Company’s customary payroll practices and applicable wage payment
laws. The Executive’s annual base salary, as in effect from time to time, is hereinafter referred to as the “Base Salary”.

3.2  Annual Bonus Plan.

(a) During the Employment Term, the Executive will be eligible to receive an annual bonus for each fiscal
year of the Company with a target of one hundred percent (100%) of Base Salary (“Target Bonus”) in accordance with the
achievement of performance metrics as determined by the Board (or a committee thereof) in consultation with the CEO within sixty
(60) days of the beginning of the applicable fiscal year pursuant to the Company’s short term cash incentive plan (the “STI Plan”).
The actual amount of the annual bonus for any fiscal year, if any, shall be determined based on actual performance measured against
the performance metrics established pursuant to the STI Plan.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 4, (i) the annual bonus will be subject to the terms of the
Company’s short-term cash incentive plan under which it is granted and (ii) in order to be eligible to receive an annual bonus, the
Executive must be continuously employed by the Company through the end of the applicable performance period.

33 Equity_Incentive Plan. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be eligible to participate in the
Equity Incentive Plan or any successor plan, subject to the terms of such plan, as determined by the Board or the Compensation
Committee, in its sole discretion.

34  Fringe Benefits and Perquisites. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to fringe
benefits and perquisites consistent with the practices of the Company and governing benefit plan requirements (including plan
eligibility provisions), and to the extent the Company provides similar benefits or perquisites (or both) to similarly situated
executives of the Company.




3.5 Employee Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in all
employee benefit plans, practices and programs maintained by the Company, as in effect from time to time (collectively, “Employee
Benefit Plans”), on a basis which is no less favorable than is provided to other similarly situated executives of the Company, to the
extent consistent with applicable law and the terms of the applicable Employee Benefit Plans. The Company reserves the right to
amend or terminate any Employee Benefit Plans at any time in its sole discretion, subject to the terms of such Employee Benefit
Plan and applicable law.

3.6  Vacation; Paid Time Off. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation on a
basis that is similar to that provided to other executives of the Company. The Executive shall receive other paid time off in
accordance with the Company’s policies for employees as such policies may exist from time to time.

3.7  Life Insurance Policy. During the Employment Term, the Company shall maintain a term life insurance policy
on the Executive’s life, naming the Executive’s designated beneficiary or beneficiaries as the sole beneficiary(ies). The Company
shall pay all premiums on such policy. The Company shall provide reasonable evidence of coverage to the Executive upon request.

3.8 Business Expenses. The Executive shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary out-of-
pocket business, entertainment, and travel expenses incurred by the Executive in connection with the performance of the Executive’s
duties hereunder in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policies and procedures. Business expenses are subject
to audit and the Executive may be required to reimburse the Company for expenses that are determined to be in violation of the
Company’s policies and procedures. The Company may choose to disallow any expenses submitted by the Executive that do not
conform to the Company’s reimbursement policies.

39 Indemnification.

(a) In the event that the Executive is made a party or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit, or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative (a “Proceeding”), other than any Proceeding initiated by
the Executive or the Company related to any contest or dispute between the Executive and the Company or any of its
affiliates with respect to this Agreement or the Executive’s employment hereunder, by reason of the fact that the Executive is
or was a director or officer of the Company, or any affiliate of the Company, or is or was serving at the request of the
Company as a director, officer, member, employee, or agent of another corporation or a partnership, joint venture, trust, or
other enterprise, the Executive shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company to the maximum extent permitted
under applicable law and the Company’s bylaws from and against any liabilities, costs, claims, and expenses, including all
costs and expenses incurred in defense of any Proceeding (including attorneys’ fees). Costs and expenses incurred by the
Executive in defense of such Proceeding (including attorneys’ fees) shall be paid by the Company in advance of the final
disposition of such litigation upon receipt by the Company of: (i) a written



request for payment; (ii) appropriate documentation evidencing the incurrence, amount, and nature of the costs and expenses
for which payment is being sought; and (iii) an undertaking adequate under applicable law made by or on behalf of the
Executive to repay the amounts so paid if it shall ultimately be determined that the Executive is not entitled to be indemnified
by the Company under this Agreement.

(b) During the Employment Term and for a period of six (6) years thereafter, the Company or any successor to the
Company shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance providing coverage to
the Executive on terms that are no less favorable than the coverage provided to other directors and similarly situated
executives of the Company or any successor.

3.10 Clawback Provisions. Any amounts payable under this Agreement are subject to any policy established by the
Company to comply with applicable law or stock exchange rules providing for clawback or recovery of amounts that were paid to
the Executive, including the Strive, Inc. Compensation Recoupment Policy.

4. Termination of Employment. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated
by either the Company or the Executive at any time and for any reason; provided that, unless otherwise provided herein, either party
shall be required to give the other party at least 30 days’ advance written notice of any termination of the Executive’s employment.
On termination of the Executive’s employment during the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to the following
compensation and benefits and will have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits from the Company or any of its
affiliates (collectively, the “Company Group”):

4.1 For Cause or Without Good Reason.

(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason. If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason, the Executive shall be entitled to receive:

(1) any accrued but unpaid Base Salary and accrued but unused vacation which shall be paid on
the pay date immediately following the Termination Date (as defined below) in accordance with the
Company’s customary payroll procedures;

(ii))  reimbursement for unreimbursed business expenses properly incurred by the Executive, which
shall be subject to and paid in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policy; and

(iii))  such employee benefits (including equity compensation), if any, to which the Executive may be
entitled under the Company’s employee benefit plans as of the Termination Date; provided that, in no event
shall the Executive be entitled to any payments in the nature of



severance or termination payments except as specifically provided herein (the items described in clauses (i)
through (iii), collectively, the “Accrued Amounts”).

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:

(1) the Executive’s failure to perform Executive’s duties (other than any such failure resulting from
incapacity due to physical or mental illness);

(i1) the Executive’s failure to comply with any valid and legal directive of the CEO or the Board
consistent with Executive’s position and this Agreement;

(iii)  the Executive’s willful engagement in dishonesty, illegal conduct, or gross misconduct, which
is, in each case, materially injurious to the Company or its affiliates;

(iv)  the Executive’s embezzlement, misappropriation, or fraud, whether or not related to the
Executive’s employment with the Company;

v) the Executive’s conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a crime that constitutes a
felony (or state law equivalent) or a crime that constitutes a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude;

(vi)  the Executive’s material violation of the Company’s written policies or codes of conduct,
including written policies related to discrimination, harassment, performance of illegal or unethical activities,
and ethical misconduct;

(vii) the Executive’s willful unauthorized disclosure of Confidential Information (as defined below);

(viii) the Executive’s material breach of any material obligation under this Agreement or any other
written agreement between the Executive and the Company; or

(ix)  the Executive’s willful engagement in conduct that brings negative publicity or into public
disgrace, embarrassment, or disrepute causing demonstrable financial harm to the Company.

For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act on the part of the Executive shall be considered
“willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company. Any act, or failure to act, based on authority
given pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or on the advice of counsel for the Company shall be
conclusively



presumed to be done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

Except for a failure, breach or refusal which, by its nature, cannot reasonably be expected to be cured,
the Executive shall have thirty (30) business days from the delivery of written notice by the Company within which to
cure any acts constituting Cause, to the extent curable. The Company may place the Executive on paid leave for up to
sixty (60) days while it is determining whether there is a basis to terminate the Executive’s employment for Cause.
Any such action by the Company will not constitute Good Reason.

(©) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following, in
each case during the Employment Term without the Executive’s written consent:

(1) any material reduction in Base Salary or Target Bonus, other than a reduction in Base Salary or
Target Bonus that applies to other similarly situated executives of the Company;

(i1) a material diminution in Executive’s position, title, duties, authorities or responsibilities
(including membership on the Board), excluding any reduction in duties, responsibilities or authority that results
solely from the Company ceasing to be a publicly traded entity;

(iii)  the Executive being required to regularly provide services from a primary place of employment
specified by the Company that is not remote;

(iv)  a material breach by the Company or any of its affiliates of any material agreement with
Executive;

v) the Company’s failure to maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive; or

(vi)  the failure of the Company to require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase,
merget, consolidation or otherwise) to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in accordance with its
terms.

The Executive cannot terminate employment for Good Reason unless the Executive has provided
written notice to the Company of the existence of the circumstances providing grounds for termination for Good
Reason within sixty (60) days of the initial existence of such grounds and the Company has had at least thirty (30)
days from the date on which such notice is provided to cure such circumstances. If the Executive does not terminate
employment for Good Reason within sixty (60) days after the first occurrence of the applicable grounds,



then the Executive will be deemed to have waived the right to terminate for Good Reason with respect to such
grounds.

4.2 Without Cause or for Good Reason. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may
be terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause. In the event of such termination, the Executive
shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance with Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and
Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a release of claims in favor of the Company, its affiliates and their
respective officers and directors in a form provided by the Company (the “Release”) and such Release becoming effective within 30
days following the Termination Date (such 21-day period, the “Release Execution Period”), the Executive shall be entitled to
receive the following:

(a) a lump sum payment equal to one (1) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) any earned but unpaid annual bonus with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding
the Termination Date, which shall be paid on the otherwise applicable payment date (the “Prior Year Bonus™);

(©) a lump sum payment equal to the prorated annual bonus, if any, that the Executive would have earned
for the calendar year in which the Termination Date occurs based on the achievement of applicable performance goals
for such year, which shall be payable on the date that annual bonuses are paid to the Company’s similarly situated
executives, but in no event later than two-and-a-half (2)%) months following the end of the calendar year in which the
Termination Date occurs (the “Prorata Bonus™);

(d) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest solely based on continued service
with the Company shall immediately vest and/or become exercisable (the “Service-Based Equity Acceleration”);

(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting based on actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with actual level of
performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith (the “Performance-
Based Equity Acceleration”); and

6] if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (“COBRA”), the Company shall reimburse the Executive for the
monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the Executive’s



dependents. Such reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15™) of the month immediately
following the month in which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be eligible to
receive such reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the twelve (12) month anniversary of the Termination Date; (ii)
the date the Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii) the date on which the
Executive becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or other source.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this Section 4.2(f) would violate the
nondiscrimination rules applicable to non-grandfathered plans under the Affordable Care Act (the “ACA”), or result
in the imposition of penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder, the
parties agree to reform this Section 4.2(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply with the ACA, including making
payments to the Executive in lieu of providing ongoing coverage.

4.3 Death.

(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate automatically on the Executive’s death during
the Employment Term.

(b) If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Employment Term on account of the
Executive’s death, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and,
subject to the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(1) the Prorata Bonus;
(i)  the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;
(iii) the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iv) the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for thirty-six (36) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable
lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such thirty-six (36) month period;

(v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date,
with terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date;
and

(vi) the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate



and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s organizational documents and
applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

4.4  Disability.

(a) Upon Executive’s Disability, Executive will receive the Accrued Amounts, and subject to the
Executive or the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(1) the Prorata Bonus;
(i1) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;
(iii)  the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iv)  the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for twenty four (24) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable
lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such twenty four (24) month period;

v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date, with
terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date; and

(vi)  the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s
organizational documents and applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

(b) In addition to the benefits set forth in Section 4.4(a) above, to the extent that the Executive becomes
entitled to Disability treatment as a result of an intentional violent act of a third party targeting the Executive, the
Executive shall, subject to the execution of a Release by the Executive (or if unable to execute such a Release, his
designee), become entitled to a payment equal to one (1) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date for Disability occurs, which shall be paid in lump sum within forty-
five (45) days following the Termination Date for the Disability; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins
in one taxable year and ends in another taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second
taxable year.




() For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” shall mean a condition that entitles the Executive to
receive long-term disability benefits under the Company’s long-term disability plan, or if there is no such plan, the
Executive’s inability, due to physical or mental incapacity, to perform the essential functions of the Executive’s job,
with or without reasonable accommodation, for 180 days out of any three hundred sixty-five (365) day period or one
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days; provided, however, in the event that the Company temporarily replaces the
Executive, or transfers the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to another individual on account of the Executive’s
inability to perform such duties due to a mental or physical incapacity which is, or is reasonably expected to become,
a Disability, then the Executive’s employment shall not be deemed terminated by the Company and the Executive
shall not be able to resign with Good Reason as a result thereof. Any question as to the existence of the Executive’s
Disability as to which the Executive and the Company cannot agree shall be determined in writing by a qualified
independent physician mutually acceptable to the Executive and the Company. If the Executive and the Company
cannot agree as to a qualified independent physician, each shall appoint such a physician and those two physicians
shall select a third who shall make such determination in writing. The determination of Disability made in writing to
the Company and the Executive shall be final and conclusive for all purposes of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, all payments made in connection with the Executive’s Disability
shall be provided in a manner which is consistent with federal and state law.

4.5  Change in Control Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, if the Executive’s
employment hereunder is terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause (other than on account of
the Executive’s death or Disability), in each case within twenty-four (24) months following a Change in Control (as defined in the
Equity Incentive Plan), the Executive shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance
with Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a Release which becomes
effective within 30 days following the Termination Date, the Executive shall be entitled to receive the following:

(a) a lump sum payment equal to two (2) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) the Prior Year Bonus;

() the Prorata Bonus;
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(d) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;

(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting at the greater of target and actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with
actual level of performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith; and

) if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under COBRA, the Company
shall reimburse the Executive for the monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the
Executive’s dependents. Such reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15™) of the month
immediately following the month in which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be
eligible to receive such reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the
Termination Date; (ii) the date the Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii)
the date on which the Executive becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or
other source; provided, however, that if the continued benefit pursuant to this Section 4.5(f) would otherwise end
prior to the twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the Termination Date as a result of clause (ii) above, subject to the
next sentence, the Company will provide a substantially similar economic benefit through the twenty-four (24) month
anniversary of the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this
Section 4.5(f) would violate the nondiscrimination rules applicable to non-grandfathered plans under ACA, or result
in the imposition of penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder, the
parties agree to reform this Section 4.5(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply with the ACA.

4.6  Notice of Termination. Any termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder by the Company or by the
Executive during the Employment Term (other than termination pursuant to Section 4.3(a) on account of the Executive’s death) shall
be communicated by written notice of termination (“Notice of Termination”) to the other party hereto in accordance with Section
24. The Notice of Termination shall specify:

(a) The termination provision of this Agreement relied upon;

(b) To the extent applicable, the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the
Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated; and

(c) The applicable Termination Date.

4.7 Termination Date. The Executive’s “Termination Date” shall be:
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(a) If the Executive’s employment hereunder terminates on account of the Executive’s death, the date of
the Executive’s death;

(b) If the Executive’s employment hereunder is terminated on account of the Executive’s Disability, the
date that it is determined that the Executive has a Disability;

(©) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder for Cause, the date the Notice of
Termination is delivered to the Executive;

(d) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder without Cause, the date specified in
the Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date on which the Notice of
Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company shall have the option to provide the Executive with a lump sum
payment equal to thirty (30) days’ Base Salary in lieu of such notice, which shall be paid in a lump sum on the
Executive’s Termination Date and for all purposes of this Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall be the
date on which such Notice of Termination is delivered; provided, that in the event the Company elects to pay in lieu
of notice, the Executive shall (i) continue to receive all employee benefits and equity vesting for such thirty (30) day
period as if actively employed, or (ii) if such continuation is not practicable, receive a cash payment equal to the
value of such benefits and vesting, in each case determined in good faith by the Company; and

(e) If the Executive terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder with or without Good Reason, the
date specified in the Executive’s Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date
on which the Notice of Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company may waive all or any part of the thirty
(30) day notice period for no consideration by giving written notice to the Executive and for all purposes of this
Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall be the date determined by the Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the Termination Date shall not occur until the date on which the
Executive incurs a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A.

4.8 Termination Date. On termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder for any reason, the Executive
shall be deemed to have resigned from all positions that the Executive holds as an officer or member of the Board (or a committee
thereof) of the Company Group.

4.9  No Mitigation or Offset. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for
in this Section 4 by seeking or accepting other employment following the Termination Date. The amount of any payment or benefit
provided for in this Agreement shall not be reduced by any compensation or benefit earned by the Executive as the
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result of employment by another employer or by retirement or other benefits, except as described in Section 4.2(f) or Section 4.5(f).

5.

4.10 Section 280G.

(a) If any of the payments or benefits received or to be received by the Executive (including, without
limitation, any payments or benefits received in connection with a Change in Control or the Executive’s termination
of employment, whether pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other plan, arrangement, or agreement, or
otherwise) constitute “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and will be subject to
the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax™), the present value of Executive’s payments
and benefits will be reduced by the minimum amount necessary such that the aggregate present value of such
payments and benefits do not trigger the Excise Tax; provided, however, no such reductions shall be given effect if
Executive would be entitled to greater payments and benefits on an after-tax basis (taking into account the Excise Tax
imposed pursuant to Section 4999 of the Code, any tax imposed by any comparable provision of state law, and any
applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes) than if such reductions were to be implemented.

(b) If payments or benefits are to be reduced, any such reduction in payments and/or benefits shall be
made in accordance with Section 409A and shall occur in the manner that results in the greatest economic benefit to
Executive as determined by an independent accounting firm or independent tax counsel mutually acceptable to the
Company and the Executive (the “Tax Counsel”). All calculations and determinations under this Section 4.10 shall be
made by the Tax Counsel whose determinations shall be conclusive and binding on the Company and the Executive
for all purposes. For purposes of making the calculations and determinations required by this Section 4.10, the Tax
Counsel may rely on reasonable, good faith assumptions and approximations concerning the application of Section
280G and Section 4999 of the Code. The Company and the Executive shall furnish the Tax Counsel with such
information and documents as the Tax Counsel may reasonably request in order to make its determinations under this
Section 4.10. The Company shall bear all costs the Tax Counsel may reasonably incur in connection with its services.

Cooperation. The parties agree that certain matters in which the Executive will be involved during the Employment

Term may necessitate the Executive’s cooperation in the future. Accordingly, following the termination of the Executive’s
employment for any reason, to the extent reasonably requested by the Board, the Executive shall cooperate with the Company in
connection with matters arising out of the Executive’s service to the Company; provided that, the Company shall make reasonable
efforts to minimize disruption of the Executive’s other activities. The Company shall reimburse the Executive for reasonable
expenses incurred in connection with such cooperation.
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6. Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that during the Employment Term, the
Executive will have access to and learn about Confidential Information, as defined below.

6.1 Definition. For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” includes, but is not limited to, all
information not generally known to the public, in spoken, printed, electronic, or any other form or medium, relating directly or
indirectly to: business processes, practices, methods, policies, plans, publications, documents, research, operations, services,
strategies, techniques, agreements, contracts, terms of agreements, transactions, potential transactions, negotiations, pending
negotiations, know-how, trade secrets, computer programs, computer software, applications, operating systems, software design,
web design, work-in-process, databases, device configurations, embedded data, compilations, metadata, technologies, manuals,
records, articles, systems, material, sources of material, supplier information, vendor information, financial information, results,
accounting information, accounting records, legal information, marketing information, advertising information, pricing information,
credit information, design information, payroll information, staffing information, personnel information, employee lists, supplier
lists, vendor lists, developments, reports, internal controls, security procedures, graphics, drawings, sketches, market studies, sales
information, revenue, costs, formulae, notes, communications, algorithms, product plans, designs, styles, models, ideas, audiovisual
programs, inventions, unpublished patent applications, original works of authorship, discoveries, experimental processes,
experimental results, specifications, customer information, customer lists, client information, client lists, manufacturing information,
factory lists, distributor lists, and buyer lists of the Company Group or its businesses, or of any other person or entity that has
entrusted information to the Company Group in confidence.

The Executive understands that the above list is not exhaustive, and that Confidential Information also includes other
information that is marked or otherwise identified as confidential or proprietary, or that would otherwise appear to a reasonable
person to be confidential or proprietary in the context and circumstances in which the information is known or used.

The Executive understands and agrees that Confidential Information includes information developed by Executive in
the course of employment by the Company as if the Company furnished the same Confidential Information to the Executive in the
first instance. Confidential Information shall not include information that is generally available to and known by the public at the
time of disclosure to the Executive; provided that, such disclosure is through no direct or indirect fault of the Executive or person(s)
acting on the Executive’s behalf.

The Executive understands and acknowledges that the Executive’s obligations under this Agreement with regard to
any particular Confidential Information shall commence immediately upon the Executive first having access to such Confidential
Information (whether before or after the Executive begins employment by the Company) and shall continue during and after the
Executive’s employment by the Company until such time as such Confidential Information has become public knowledge other than
as a result of the Executive’s breach of this Agreement or breach by those acting in concert with the Executive or on the Executive’s
behalf.

14



6.2  Company Creation and Use of Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that
the Company has invested, and continues to invest, substantial time, money, and specialized knowledge into developing its
resources, creating a customer base, generating customer and potential customer lists, training its employees, and improving its
offerings in the field of asset or investment management industry. The Executive understands and acknowledges that as a result of
these efforts, the Company has created, and continues to use and create Confidential Information. This Confidential Information
provides the Company with a competitive advantage over others in the marketplace.

6.3 Protected Rights. The following rights set forth in this Section 6.3 shall be referred to herein as the “Protected
Rights.”

(a) Permitted Disclosures. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent disclosure of Confidential Information as
may be required by applicable law or regulation, or pursuant to the valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or
an authorized government agency, provided that the disclosure does not exceed the extent of disclosure required by
such law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary
of the Company. Section 7 of this Agreement does not, in any way, restrict or impede the Executive from exercising
protected rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with any applicable
law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly
provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company.

(b) Permitted Communications. Nothing herein prohibits or restricts the Executive (or the Executive’s attorney)
from initiating communications directly with, responding to an inquiry from, or providing testimony before the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), any other self-
regulatory organization or any other federal or state regulatory authority.

(c) Notice of Immunity Under the Economic Espionage Act of 1996, as amended by the Defend Trade Secrets Act
of 2016. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Executive will not be held criminally or civilly
liable under any federal or state trade secret law for any disclosure of a trade secret that:

(1) is made (1) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or
indirectly, or to an attorney; and (2) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation
of law; or

(ii) is made in a complaint or other document filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding.
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(d) If the Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of
law, the Executive may disclose the Company’s trade secrets to the Executive’s attorney and use the trade secret
information in the court proceeding if the Executive:

(1) files any document containing trade secrets under seal; and
(i1) does not disclose trade secrets, except pursuant to court order.
7. Restrictive Covenants.

7.1 Acknowledgment. The Executive understands that the nature of the Executive’s position gives the Executive
access to and knowledge of Confidential Information and places the Executive in a position of trust and confidence with the
Company. The Executive understands and acknowledges that the intellectual, artistic or services the Executive provides to the
Company are unique, special, or extraordinary. The Executive further understands and acknowledges that, subject to the Protected
Rights, the Company’s ability to reserve these for the exclusive knowledge and use of the Company is of great competitive
importance and commercial value to the Company, and that improper use or disclosure by the Executive is likely to result in unfair
or unlawful competitive activity.

7.2  Non-Competition. Because of the Company’s legitimate business interest as described herein and the good
and valuable consideration offered to the Executive, during the Employment Term and for the one year period beginning on the last
day of the Executive’s employment with the Company, regardless of the reason for the termination and whether employment is
terminated at the option of the Executive or the Company Group, the Executive agrees and covenants not to engage in Prohibited
Activity within the asset or investment management industry (as limited by the definition of Prohibited Activity below).

For purposes of this Section 7, “Prohibited Activity” is activity in which the Executive contributes the Executive’s
knowledge, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as an employee, employer, owner, operator, manager, advisor, consultant,
agent, employee, partner, director, stockholder, officer, volunteer, intern, or any other similar capacity to with any business that is (i)
acting as a publicly traded Bitcoin treasury company (i.e., purchasing, holding and managing Bitcoin as a principal treasury reserve
asset) or (ii) a entity or organization in the asset or investment management industry that provide Bitcoin treasury services and the
Executive is employed or engaged with respect to those services, or (iii) or engaging in a business that otherwise constitutes a
defined peer business in the same line of business as the Company. Prohibited Activity also includes activity that may require or
inevitably requires disclosure of trade secrets, proprietary information or Confidential Information.

Nothing herein shall prohibit the Executive from (i) purchasing or owning less than five percent (5%) of the publicly
traded securities of any corporation, provided that such ownership represents a passive investment and that the Executive is not a
controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such corporation, (ii) owning the majority controlling
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interest in a privately held company that does not compete with the Company with the prior written approval of the Board (iii)
holding interests through diversified investment vehicles, private equity, hedge funds or other portfolio investments that are not
controlled by the Executive, (iv) serving on the board of directors of a nonprofit organization, (v) serving on one outside for-profit
board of directors, subject to the Company’s prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed), or (vi) engaging in speaking, lecturing, teaching, writing or similar activities, in each of the cases of clauses (i) through (v)
above, none of these activities will interfere with the Executive’s duties set forth in Section 2.2 above.

7.3 Non-Solicitation of Employees. For a period of twelve (12) months following the Termination Date, the
Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit, hire, recruit, attempt to hire or recruit, or induce the termination of employment of
any employee of the Company with whom the Executive worked during the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the
termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.

7.4  Non-Solicitation of Customers. The Executive understands and acknowledges that because of the Executive’s
experience with and relationship to the Company, the Executive will have access to and learn about much or all of the Company’s
customer information. “Customer Information” includes, but is not limited to, names, phone numbers, addresses, email addresses,
order history, order preferences, chain of command, decisionmakers, pricing information, and other information identifying facts and
circumstances specific to the customer and relevant to services.

The Executive understands and acknowledges that loss of this customer relationship and/or goodwill will cause
significant and irreparable harm.

The Executive agrees and covenants, during the one year period beginning on the last day of the Executive’s
employment with the Company, not to directly or indirectly solicit, contact (including but not limited to e-mail, regular mail, express
mail, telephone, fax, instant message, or social media), attempt to contact, or meet with the Company’s current customers for
purposes of offering or accepting goods or services similar to or competitive with those offered by the Company.

This restriction shall only apply to:
(a) Customers or prospective customers the Executive contacted in any way during the past one year;
(b) Customers about whom the Executive has trade secret or confidential information;

(©) Customers who became customers during the Executive’s employment with the Company; and
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(d) Customers about whom the Executive has information that is not available publicly.

In the event of the Executive’s termination without Cause or for Good Reason, the Company and the Executive may
agree to modified terms on any provision of this Section 7, provided such modification is in writing and signed by both Parties as set
forth in Section 16 herein.

8. Non-Disparagement. The Executive agrees and covenants that, the Executive will not at any time make, publish or
communicate to any person or entity or in any public forum any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements
concerning the Company or its businesses, or any of its employees. This Section 8 does not, in any way, restrict or impede the
Executive from exercising Protected Rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with
any applicable law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written
notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company. The Company agrees and covenants that it shall direct its officers and
directors to refrain from making any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements concerning the Executive to any
third parties.

9. Acknowledgment. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the services to be rendered by the Executive to the
Company are of a special and unique character; that the Executive will obtain knowledge and skill relevant to the Company’s
industry, methods of doing business and marketing strategies by virtue of the Executive’s employment; and that the restrictive
covenants and other terms and conditions of this Agreement are reasonable and reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate
business interest of the Company. The Executive further acknowledges that the benefits provided to the Executive under this
Agreement, including the amount of the Executive’s compensation reflects, in part, the Executive’s obligations and the Company’s
rights under Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement; that the Executive has no expectation of any additional
compensation, royalties or other payment of any kind not otherwise referenced herein in connection herewith; and that the Executive
will not suffer undue hardship by reason of full compliance with the terms and conditions of Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of
this Agreement or the Company’s enforcement thereof.

10. Remedies. In the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Executive of Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this
Agreement, the Executive hereby consents and agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek, in addition to other available
remedies, a temporary or permanent injunction or other equitable relief against such breach or threatened breach from any court of
competent jurisdiction, and that money damages would not afford an adequate remedy, without the necessity of showing any actual
damages, and without the necessity of posting any bond or other security. The aforementioned equitable relief shall be in addition to,
not in lieu of, legal remedies, monetary damages, or other available forms of relief.

11. Proprietary Rights.
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11.1  Work Product. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that all right, title, and interest in and to all writings,
works of authorship, technology, inventions, discoveries, processes, techniques, methods, ideas, concepts, research, proposals,
materials, and all other work product of any nature whatsoever, that are created, prepared, produced, authored, edited, amended,
conceived, or reduced to practice by the Executive individually or jointly with others during the Employment Term and relate in any
way to the business or contemplated business, products, activities, research, or development of the Company or result from any work
performed by the Executive for the Company (in each case, regardless of when or where prepared or whose equipment or other
resources is used in preparing the same), all rights and claims related to the foregoing, and all printed, physical and electronic copies,
and other tangible embodiments thereof (collectively, “Work Product”), as well as any and all rights in and to US and foreign (a)
patents, patent disclosures and inventions (whether patentable or not), (b) trademarks, service marks, trade dress, trade names, logos,
corporate names and domain names, and other similar designations of source or origin, together with the goodwill symbolized by
any of the foregoing, (c) copyrights and copyrightable works (including computer programs), and rights in data and databases, (d)
trade secrets, know-how, and other confidential information, and (e) all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether
registered or unregistered and including all registrations and applications for, and renewals and extensions of, such rights, all
improvements thereto and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection in any part of the world (collectively, “Intellectual
Property Rights”), shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company.

For purposes of this Agreement, Work Product includes, but is not limited to, Company information.

11.2  Work Made for Hire; Assignment. The Executive acknowledges that, by reason of being employed by the
Company at the relevant times, to the extent permitted by law, all of the Work Product consisting of copyrightable subject matter is
“work made for hire” as defined in 17 U.S.C. § 101 and such copyrights are therefore owned by the Company. To the extent that the
foregoing does not apply, the Executive hereby irrevocably assigns to the Company, for no additional consideration, the Executive’s
entire right, title, and interest in and to all Work Product and Intellectual Property Rights therein, including the right to sue,
counterclaim, and recover for all past, present, and future infringement, misappropriation, or dilution thereof, and all rights
corresponding thereto throughout the world. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to reduce or limit the
Company’s rights, title, or interest in any Work Product or Intellectual Property Rights so as to be less in any respect than that the
Company would have had in the absence of this Agreement.

11.3  Further Assurances; Power of Attorney. During and after the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to
reasonably cooperate with the Company to (a) apply for, obtain, perfect, and transfer to the Company the Work Product as well as
any and all Intellectual Property Rights in the Work Product in any jurisdiction in the world; and (b) maintain, protect and enforce
the same, including, without limitation, giving testimony and executing and delivering to the Company any and all applications,
oaths, declarations, affidavits, waivers, assignments, and other documents and instruments as shall be requested by the Company.
The
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Executive hereby irrevocably grants the Company power of attorney to execute and deliver any such documents on the Executive’s
behalf in the Executive’s name and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to transfer the Work Product to the Company and further
the transfer, prosecution, issuance, and maintenance of all Intellectual Property Rights therein, to the full extent permitted by law, if
the Executive does not promptly cooperate with the Company’s request (without limiting the rights the Company shall have in such
circumstances by operation of law). The power of attorney is coupled with an interest and shall not be affected by the Executive’s
subsequent incapacity.

11.4 No License. The Executive understands that this Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, grant the
Executive any license or right of any nature with respect to any Work Product or Intellectual Property Rights or any Confidential
Information, materials, software, or other tools made available to the Executive by the Company.

12.  Security.

12.1  Security and Access. The Executive agrees and covenants (a) to comply with all Company security policies
and procedures as in force from time to time (“Facilities and Information Technology Resources”); (b) not to access or use any
Facilities and Information Technology Resources except as authorized by the Company; and (iii) not to access or use any Facilities
and Information Technology Resources in any manner after the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company,
whether termination is voluntary or involuntary. The Executive agrees to notify the Company promptly in the event the Executive
learns of any violation of the foregoing by others, or of any other misappropriation or unauthorized access, use, reproduction, or
reverse engineering of, or tampering with any Facilities and Information Technology Resources or other Company property or
materials by others.

12.2  Exit Obligations. Upon (a) voluntary or involuntary termination of the Executive’s employment or (b) the
Company’s request at any time during the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall (i) provide or return to the Company any and
all Company property and all Company documents and materials belonging to the Company and stored in any fashion, including but
not limited to those that constitute or contain any Confidential Information or Work Product, that are in the possession or control of
the Executive, whether they were provided to the Executive by the Company or any of its business associates or created by the
Executive in connection with the Executive’s employment by the Company; and (ii) delete or destroy all copies of any such
documents and materials not returned to the Company that remain in the Executive’s possession or control, including those stored on
any non- Company Group devices, networks, storage locations, and media in the Executive’s possession or control.

13. Publicity. The Executive hereby irrevocably consents to any and all uses and displays, by the Company and its agents,
representatives and licensees, of the Executive’s name, voice, likeness, image, appearance, and biographical information in, on or in
connection with any pictures, photographs, audio and video recordings, digital images, websites, television programs and
advertising, other advertising and publicity, sales and marketing brochures, books, magazines, other publications, CDs, DVDs, tapes,
and all other printed and electronic forms and media throughout the world, at any time during or after the Employment Term, for all
legitimate
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commercial and business purposes of the Company (‘“Permitted Uses™) without further consent from or royalty, payment, or other
compensation to the Executive. The Executive hereby forever waives and releases the Company and its directors, officers,
employees, and agents from any and all claims, actions, damages, losses, costs, expenses, and liability of any kind, arising under any
legal or equitable theory whatsoever at any time during or after the Employment Term, arising directly or indirectly from the
Company Group’s and its agents’, representatives’, and licensees’ exercise of their rights in connection with any Permitted Uses.

14. Governing Law: Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement, for all purposes, shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of Texas without regard to conflicts of law principles. Any action or proceeding by either of the parties to enforce this
Agreement shall be brought only in a state or federal court located in the state of Texas. The parties hereby irrevocably submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction of such courts and waive the defense of inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any such action or
proceeding in such venue.

15. Entire Agreement. Unless specifically provided herein, this Agreement contains all of the understandings and
representations between the Executive and the Company pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings, agreements, representations, and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to such subject
matter. The parties mutually agree that the Agreement can be specifically enforced in court and can be cited as evidence in legal
proceedings alleging breach of the Agreement.

16. Modification and Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or modified unless such amendment or
modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the Executive and by the Secretary of the Company. No waiver by either of the
parties of any breach by the other party hereto of any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by the other party
hereto shall be deemed a waiver of any similar or dissimilar provision or condition at the same or any prior or subsequent time, nor
shall the failure of or delay by either of the parties in exercising any right, power, or privilege hereunder operate as a waiver thereof
to preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other such right, power, or privilege.

17. Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be enforceable
only if modified, or if any portion of this Agreement shall be held as unenforceable and thus stricken, such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remainder of this Agreement, the balance of which shall continue to be binding upon the parties with any such
modification to become a part hereof and treated as though originally set forth in this Agreement.

The parties further agree that any such court is expressly authorized to modify any such unenforceable provision of this
Agreement in lieu of severing such unenforceable provision from this Agreement in its entirety, whether by rewriting the offending
provision, deleting any or all of the offending provision, adding additional language to this Agreement, or by making such other
modifications as it deems warranted to carry out the intent and agreement of the parties as embodied herein to the maximum extent
permitted by law.
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The parties expressly agree that this Agreement as so modified by the court shall be binding upon and enforceable against
each of them. In any event, should one or more of the provisions of this Agreement be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in
any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and if such provision or
provisions are not modified as provided above, this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provisions had not been set forth herein.

18. Captions. Captions and headings of the sections and paragraphs of this Agreement are intended solely for
convenience and no provision of this Agreement is to be construed by reference to the caption or heading of any section or
paragraph.

19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

20. Tolling. Should the Executive violate any of the terms of the restrictive covenant obligations articulated herein, the
obligation at issue will run from the first date on which the Executive ceases to be in violation of such obligation.

21.  Section 409A.

21.1  General Compliance. This Agreement is intended to comply with Section 409A or an exemption thereunder
and shall be construed and administered in accordance with Section 409A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
payments provided under this Agreement may only be made upon an event and in a manner that complies with Section 409A or an
applicable exemption. Any payments under this Agreement that may be excluded from Section 409A either as separation pay due to
an involuntary separation from service or as a short-term deferral shall be excluded from Section 409A to the maximum extent
possible. For purposes of Section 409A, each installment payment provided under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate
payment. Any payments to be made under this Agreement upon a termination of employment shall only be made upon a “separation
from service” under Section 409A. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representations that the payments and
benefits provided under this Agreement comply with Section 409A, and in no event shall the Company be liable for all or any
portion of any taxes, penalties, interest, or other expenses that may be incurred by the Executive on account of non-compliance with
Section 409A.

21.2  Specified Employees. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any payment or benefit
provided to the Executive in connection with the Executive’s termination of employment is determined to constitute ‘“nonqualified
deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and the Executive is determined to be a “specified employee” as
defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(b)(i), then such payment or benefit shall not be paid until the first payroll date following the six-
month anniversary of the Termination Date or, if earlier, on the Executive’s death (the “Specified Employee Payment Date”). The
aggregate of any payments that would otherwise have been paid before the Specified Employee Payment Date shall be paid to the
Executive in a lump sum on the Specified Employee Payment
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Date and thereafter, any remaining payments shall be paid without delay in accordance with their original schedule.

21.3 Reimbursements. To the extent required by Section 409A, each reimbursement or in-kind benefit provided
under this Agreement shall be provided in accordance with the following:

(a) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during each calendar
year cannot affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other calendar
year;

(b) any reimbursement of an eligible expense shall be paid to the Executive on or before the last day of the
calendar year following the calendar year in which the expense was incurred; and

() any right to reimbursements or in-kind benefits under this Agreement shall not be subject to liquidation
or exchange for another benefit.

22. Notification to Subsequent Employer. When the Executive’s employment with the Company terminates, the
Executive agrees to notify any subsequent employer of the restrictive covenants sections contained in this Agreement. The Executive
will also deliver a copy of such notice to the Company before the Executive commences employment with any subsequent employer.
In addition, the Executive authorizes the Company to provide a copy of the restrictive covenants sections of this Agreement to third
parties, including but not limited to, the Executive’s subsequent, anticipated, or possible future employer.

23. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is personal to the Executive and shall not be assigned by the Executive. Any
purported assignment by the Executive shall be null and void from the initial date of the purported assignment. The Company shall
use its best efforts to assign this Agreement to any successor or assign (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger,
consolidation, or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of the Company and permitted successors and assigns.

24. Notice. Notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by overnight carrier to the parties at the
addresses set forth below (or such other addresses as specified by the parties by like notice):

If to the Company:

Strive, Inc.
200 Crescent Court Suite 1400
Dallas, Texas 75201

23



If to the Executive:

At Executive’s email or home address as then shown in the Company’s personnel records.

25. Representations of the Executive. The Executive represents and warrants to the Company that:

(a) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not conflict with or result in a violation of, a breach of, or a default under any contract, agreement, or
understanding to which the Executive is a party or is otherwise bound.

(b) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not violate any non-solicitation, non- competition, or other similar covenant or agreement of a prior
employer.

26. Withholding. The Company shall have the right to withhold from any amount payable hereunder any Federal, state,
and local taxes in order for the Company to satisfy any withholding tax obligation it may have under any applicable law or
regulation.

27. Survival. Upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall survive such expiration or other termination to the extent necessary to carry out the intentions of the parties under
this Agreement.

28. Acknowledgment of Full Understanding. THE EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE
EXECUTIVE HAS FULLY READ, UNDERSTANDS AND VOLUNTARILY ENTERS INTO THIS AGREEMENT. THE
EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE EXECUTIVE HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO ASK
QUESTIONS AND CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF THE EXECUTIVE’S CHOICE BEFORE SIGNING THIS
AGREEMENT.

[this space left blank intentionally — signature page follows]
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By:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

Strive, Inc.
By:

Name: Matthew Cole
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Name: Benjamin Pham

[Signature Page to Employment Agreement]
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Strive, Inc. Employment Agreement

This Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of September 15, 2025, by and between B.
Logan Beirne (the “Executive”) and Strive, Inc. (f.k.a., Asset Entities Inc.), a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and entirely
amends, restates and replaces any employment agreement between the Executive and the Company or its affiliates, including, but
not limited to, Strive Enterprises, Inc. (“SEI”’), that was made and entered into prior to the date hereof (the “Existing Employment
Agreement”).

WHEREAS the Company desires to employ the Executive through one of its subsidiaries on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company or one of its subsidiaries, which is currently SEI, on such
terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and obligations set forth herein, the parties agree
as follows:

1. Term. The term of this Agreement commenced on September 12, 2025 and the period during which the Executive is
employed by the Company hereunder is referred to as the “Employment Term.” Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
the Executive and the Company acknowledge and agree that pursuant to this Agreement and any Existing Employment Agreement,
the Executive has been in continuous service with the Company or its affiliates since June 2024, for all purposes, including with
respect to the vesting of awards granted under the Strive, Inc. Amended and Restated 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (together with any
successor shareholder approved plan, the “Equity Incentive Plan”).

2. Position and Duties.

2.1 Position. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall serve as Chief Legal Officer and report directly to
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQO”). In such position, the Executive shall have such duties, authority and
responsibilities as may be determined from time to time by the CEO or Board of Directors (the “Board”), as applicable, provided
such duties, authority and responsibilities are consistent with the Executive’s position. It is understood and agreed that the
Executive’s duties may include providing services to or for the benefit of the Company’s affiliates, including, but not limited to, SEI.

2.2 Duties. During the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of the Executive’s
business time and attention to the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder and will not engage in any other business,
profession or occupation for compensation or otherwise that would conflict or interfere with the performance of such services either
directly or indirectly without the prior written consent of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive will be
permitted to (i) make personal passive



investments and manage the Executive’s personal investment portfolio, including purchasing or owning less than five percent of the
publicly-traded securities of any corporation; provided that, such ownership represents a passive investment and that the Executive is
not a controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such corporation; provided further that, these investments do not
interfere with the performance of the Executive’s duties and responsibilities to the Company as provided hereunder, including, but
not limited to, the obligations set forth in Section 2 hereof and (ii) engage in the previously approved activities set forth on Exhibit
A.

2.3 Place of Performance. The Executive will primarily provide his services remotely, but he will be required to
travel regularly on Company business during the Employment Term.

3. Compensation.

3.1 Base Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Executive an annual base salary of
$500,000 in semimonthly installments in accordance with the Company’s customary payroll practices and applicable wage payment
laws. The Executive’s annual base salary, as in effect from time to time, is hereinafter referred to as the “Base Salary”.

3.2  Annual Bonus Plan.

(a) During the Employment Term, the Executive will be eligible to receive an annual bonus for each fiscal
year of the Company with a target of one hundred percent (100%) of Base Salary (“Target Bonus”) in accordance with the
achievement of performance metrics as determined by the Board (or a committee thereof) in consultation with the CEO within sixty
(60) days of the beginning of the applicable fiscal year pursuant to the Company’s short term cash incentive plan (the “STI Plan”).
The actual amount of the annual bonus for any fiscal year, if any, shall be determined based on actual performance measured against
the performance metrics established pursuant to the STI Plan.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 4, (i) the annual bonus will be subject to the terms of the
Company’s short-term cash incentive plan under which it is granted and (ii) in order to be eligible to receive an annual bonus, the
Executive must be continuously employed by the Company through the end of the applicable performance period.

33 Equity Incentive Plan. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be eligible to participate in the
Equity Incentive Plan or any successor plan, subject to the terms of such plan, as determined by the Board or the Compensation
Committee, in its sole discretion.

3.4  Fringe Benefits and Perquisites. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to fringe
benefits and perquisites consistent with the practices of the Company and governing benefit plan requirements (including plan
eligibility provisions), and to the extent the Company provides similar benefits or perquisites (or both) to similarly situated
executives of the Company.




3.5 Employee Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in all
employee benefit plans, practices and programs maintained by the Company, as in effect from time to time (collectively, “Employee
Benefit Plans”), on a basis which is no less favorable than is provided to other similarly situated executives of the Company, to the
extent consistent with applicable law and the terms of the applicable Employee Benefit Plans. The Company reserves the right to
amend or terminate any Employee Benefit Plans at any time in its sole discretion, subject to the terms of such Employee Benefit
Plan and applicable law.

3.6  Vacation; Paid Time Off. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation on a
basis that is similar to that provided to other executives of the Company. The Executive shall receive other paid time off in
accordance with the Company’s policies for employees as such policies may exist from time to time.

3.7  Life Insurance Policy. During the Employment Term, the Company shall maintain a term life insurance policy
on the Executive’s life, naming the Executive’s designated beneficiary or beneficiaries as the sole beneficiary(ies). The Company
shall pay all premiums on such policy. The Company shall provide reasonable evidence of coverage to the Executive upon request.

3.8 Business Expenses. The Executive shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary out-of-
pocket business, entertainment, and travel expenses incurred by the Executive in connection with the performance of the Executive’s
duties hereunder in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policies and procedures. Business expenses are subject
to audit and the Executive may be required to reimburse the Company for expenses that are determined to be in violation of the
Company’s policies and procedures. The Company may choose to disallow any expenses submitted by the Executive that do not
conform to the Company’s reimbursement policies.

3.9  Clawback Provisions. Any amounts payable under this Agreement are subject to any policy established by the
Company to comply with applicable law or stock exchange rules providing for clawback or recovery of amounts that were paid to
the Executive, including the Strive, Inc. Compensation Recoupment Policy.

4. Termination of Employment. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated
by either the Company or the Executive at any time and for any reason; provided that, unless otherwise provided herein, either party
shall be required to give the other party at least 30 days’ advance written notice of any termination of the Executive’s employment.
On termination of the Executive’s employment during the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to the following
compensation and benefits and will have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits from the Company or any of its
affiliates (collectively, the “Company Group”):

4.1 For Cause or Without Good Reason.



(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason. If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason, the Executive shall be entitled to receive:

(1) any accrued but unpaid Base Salary and accrued but unused vacation which shall be paid on
the pay date immediately following the Termination Date (as defined below) in accordance with the
Company’s customary payroll procedures;

(i1) reimbursement for unreimbursed business expenses properly incurred by the Executive, which
shall be subject to and paid in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policy; and

(iii)  such employee benefits (including equity compensation), if any, to which the Executive may be
entitled under the Company’s employee benefit plans as of the Termination Date; provided that, in no event
shall the Executive be entitled to any payments in the nature of severance or termination payments except as
specifically provided herein (the items described in clauses (i) through (iii), collectively, the “Accrued
Amounts”).

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:

1) the Executive’s failure to perform Executive’s duties (other than any such failure resulting from
incapacity due to physical or mental illness);

(i1) the Executive’s failure to comply with any valid and legal directive of the CEO or the Board
consistent with Executive’s position and this Agreement;

(iii))  the Executive’s willful engagement in dishonesty, illegal conduct, or gross misconduct, which
is, in each case, materially injurious to the Company or its affiliates;

(iv)  the Executive’s embezzlement, misappropriation, or fraud, whether or not related to the
Executive’s employment with the Company;

v) the Executive’s conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a crime that constitutes a
felony (or state law equivalent) or a crime that constitutes a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude;

(vi)  the Executive’s material violation of the Company’s written policies or codes of conduct,
including written policies related to



discrimination, harassment, performance of illegal or unethical activities, and ethical misconduct;
(vii) the Executive’s willful unauthorized disclosure of Confidential Information (as defined below);

(viii) the Executive’s material breach of any material obligation under this Agreement or any other
written agreement between the Executive and the Company; or

(ix)  the Executive’s willful engagement in conduct that brings negative publicity or into public
disgrace, embarrassment, or disrepute causing demonstrable financial harm to the Company.

For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act on the part of the Executive shall be considered
“willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company. Any act, or failure to act, based on authority
given pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or on the advice of counsel for the Company shall be
conclusively presumed to be done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company.

Except for a failure, breach or refusal which, by its nature, cannot reasonably be expected to be cured,
the Executive shall have thirty (30) business days from the delivery of written notice by the Company within which to
cure any acts constituting Cause, to the extent curable. The Company may place the Executive on paid leave for up to
sixty (60) days while it is determining whether there is a basis to terminate the Executive’s employment for Cause.
Any such action by the Company will not constitute Good Reason.

(©) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following, in
each case during the Employment Term without the Executive’s written consent:

6 any material reduction in Base Salary or Target Bonus, other than a reduction in Base Salary or
Target Bonus that applies to other similarly situated executives of the Company;

(i)  a material diminution in Executive’s position, title, duties, authorities or responsibilities
(including membership on the Board), excluding any reduction in duties, responsibilities or authority that results
solely from the Company ceasing to be a publicly traded entity;

(iii)  the Executive being required to regularly provide services from a primary place of employment
specified by the Company that is not remote;



(iv)  a material breach by the Company or any of its affiliates of any material agreement with
Executive;

v) the Company’s failure to maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive; or

(vi)  the failure of the Company to require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase,
merger, consolidation or otherwise) to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in accordance with its
terms.

The Executive cannot terminate employment for Good Reason unless the Executive has provided
written notice to the Company of the existence of the circumstances providing grounds for termination for Good
Reason within sixty (60) days of the initial existence of such grounds and the Company has had at least thirty (30)
days from the date on which such notice is provided to cure such circumstances. If the Executive does not terminate
employment for Good Reason within sixty (60) days after the first occurrence of the applicable grounds, then the
Executive will be deemed to have waived the right to terminate for Good Reason with respect to such grounds.

4.2 Without Cause or for Good Reason. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may
be terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause. In the event of such termination, the Executive
shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance with Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and
Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a release of claims in favor of the Company, its affiliates and their
respective officers and directors in a form provided by the Company (the “Release”) and such Release becoming effective within 30
days following the Termination Date (such 21-day period, the “Release Execution Period”), the Executive shall be entitled to
receive the following:

(a) a lump sum payment equal to one (1) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) any earned but unpaid annual bonus with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding
the Termination Date, which shall be paid on the otherwise applicable payment date (the “Prior Year Bonus™);

(©) a lump sum payment equal to the prorated annual bonus, if any, that the Executive would have earned
for the calendar year in which the Termination Date occurs based on the achievement of applicable performance goals
for such year, which shall be payable on the date that annual bonuses are



paid to the Company’s similarly situated executives, but in no event later than two-and-a-half (2'2) months following
the end of the calendar year in which the Termination Date occurs (the “Prorata Bonus™);

(d) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest solely based on continued service
with the Company shall immediately vest and/or become exercisable (the “Service-Based Equity Acceleration”);

(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting based on actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with actual level of
performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith (the “Performance-
Based Equity Acceleration”); and

) if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (“COBRA”), the Company shall reimburse the Executive for the
monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the Executive’s dependents. Such
reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15™) of the month immediately following the month in
which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be eligible to receive such
reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the twelve (12) month anniversary of the Termination Date; (ii) the date the
Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii) the date on which the Executive
becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or other source. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this Section 4.2(f) would violate the nondiscrimination rules
applicable to non-grandfathered plans under the Affordable Care Act (the “ACA”), or result in the imposition of
penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder, the parties agree to reform
this Section 4.2(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply with the ACA, including making payments to the Executive
in lieu of providing ongoing coverage.

4.3 Death.

(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate automatically on the Executive’s death during
the Employment Term.

(b) If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Employment Term on account of the
Executive’s death, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and,
subject to the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(i)  the Prorata Bonus;



(i)  the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;
(iii) the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iv) the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for thirty-six (36) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable
lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such thirty-six (36) month period;

(v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date,
with terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date;
and

(vi) the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s
organizational documents and applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

4.4  Disability.

(a) Upon Executive’s Disability, Executive will receive the Accrued Amounts, and subject to the
Executive or the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(1) the Prorata Bonus;
(i1) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;
(iii)  the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iv)  the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for twenty four (24) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable
lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such twenty four (24) month period,;

v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date, with
terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date; and



(vi)  the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s
organizational documents and applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

(b) In addition to the benefits set forth in Section 4.4(a) above, to the extent that the Executive becomes
entitled to Disability treatment as a result of an intentional violent act of a third party targeting the Executive, the
Executive shall, subject to the execution of a Release by the Executive (or if unable to execute such a Release, his
designee), become entitled to a payment equal to one (1) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date for Disability occurs, which shall be paid in lump sum within forty-
five (45) days following the Termination Date for the Disability; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins
in one taxable year and ends in another taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second
taxable year.

(©) For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” shall mean a condition that entitles the Executive to
receive long-term disability benefits under the Company’s long-term disability plan, or if there is no such plan, the
Executive’s inability, due to physical or mental incapacity, to perform the essential functions of the Executive’s job,
with or without reasonable accommodation, for 180 days out of any three hundred sixty-five (365) day period or one
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days; provided, however, in the event that the Company temporarily replaces the
Executive, or transfers the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to another individual on account of the Executive’s
inability to perform such duties due to a mental or physical incapacity which is, or is reasonably expected to become,
a Disability, then the Executive’s employment shall not be deemed terminated by the Company and the Executive
shall not be able to resign with Good Reason as a result thereof. Any question as to the existence of the Executive’s
Disability as to which the Executive and the Company cannot agree shall be determined in writing by a qualified
independent physician mutually acceptable to the Executive and the Company. If the Executive and the Company
cannot agree as to a qualified independent physician, each shall appoint such a physician and those two physicians
shall select a third who shall make such determination in writing. The determination of Disability made in writing to
the Company and the Executive shall be final and conclusive for all purposes of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, all payments made in connection with the Executive’s
Disability shall be provided in a manner which is consistent with federal and state law.



4.5  Change in Control Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, if the Executive’s
employment hereunder is terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause (other than on account of
the Executive’s death or Disability), in each case within twenty-four (24) months following a Change in Control (as defined in the
Equity Incentive Plan), the Executive shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance
with Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a Release which becomes
effective within 30 days following the Termination Date, the Executive shall be entitled to receive the following:

(a) a lump sum payment equal to two (2) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) the Prior Year Bonus;
(©) the Prorata Bonus;
(d) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;

(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting at the greater of target and actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with
actual level of performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith; and

() if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under COBRA, the Company
shall reimburse the Executive for the monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the
Executive’s dependents. Such reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15") of the month
immediately following the month in which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be
eligible to receive such reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the
Termination Date; (ii) the date the Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii)
the date on which the Executive becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or
other source; provided, however, that if the continued benefit pursuant to this Section 4.5(f) would otherwise end
prior to the twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the Termination Date as a result of clause (ii) above, subject to the
next sentence, the Company will provide a substantially similar economic benefit through the twenty-four (24) month
anniversary of the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this
Section 4.5(f) would violate the nondiscrimination rules applicable to non-
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grandfathered plans under ACA, or result in the imposition of penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and

guidance promulgated thereunder, the parties agree to reform this Section 4.5(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply
with the ACA.

4.6  Notice of Termination. Any termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder by the Company or by the
Executive during the Employment Term (other than termination pursuant to Section 4.3(a) on account of the Executive’s death) shall
be communicated by written notice of termination (“Notice of Termination™) to the other party hereto in accordance with Section
24. The Notice of Termination shall specify:

(a) The termination provision of this Agreement relied upon;

(b) To the extent applicable, the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the
Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated; and

(c) The applicable Termination Date.
4.7 Termination Date. The Executive’s “Termination Date” shall be:

(a) If the Executive’s employment hereunder terminates on account of the Executive’s death, the date of
the Executive’s death;

(b) If the Executive’s employment hereunder is terminated on account of the Executive’s Disability, the
date that it is determined that the Executive has a Disability;

(©) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder for Cause, the date the Notice of
Termination is delivered to the Executive;

(d) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder without Cause, the date specified in
the Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date on which the Notice of
Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company shall have the option to provide the Executive with a lump sum
payment equal to thirty (30) days’ Base Salary in lieu of such notice, which shall be paid in a lump sum on the
Executive’s Termination Date and for all purposes of this Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall be the
date on which such Notice of Termination is delivered; provided, that in the event the Company elects to pay in lieu
of notice, the Executive shall (i) continue to receive all employee benefits and equity vesting for such thirty (30) day
period as if actively employed, or (ii) if such continuation is not practicable, receive a cash payment equal to the
value of such benefits and vesting, in each case determined in good faith by the Company; and
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(e) If the Executive terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder with or without Good Reason, the
date specified in the Executive’s Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date
on which the Notice of Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company may waive all or any part of the thirty
(30) day notice period for no consideration by giving written notice to the Executive and for all purposes of this
Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall be the date determined by the Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the Termination Date shall not occur until the date on which the
Executive incurs a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A.

4.8 Termination Date. On termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder for any reason, the Executive
shall be deemed to have resigned from all positions that the Executive holds as an officer or member of the Board (or a committee
thereof) of the Company Group.

4.9  No Mitigation or Offset. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for
in this Section 4 by seeking or accepting other employment following the Termination Date. The amount of any payment or benefit
provided for in this Agreement shall not be reduced by any compensation or benefit earned by the Executive as the result of
employment by another employer or by retirement or other benefits, except as described in Section 4.2(f) or Section 4.5(f).

4.10 Section 280G.

(a) If any of the payments or benefits received or to be received by the Executive (including, without
limitation, any payments or benefits received in connection with a Change in Control or the Executive’s termination
of employment, whether pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other plan, arrangement, or agreement, or
otherwise) constitute “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and will be subject to
the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax™), the present value of Executive’s payments
and benefits will be reduced by the minimum amount necessary such that the aggregate present value of such
payments and benefits do not trigger the Excise Tax; provided, however, no such reductions shall be given effect if
Executive would be entitled to greater payments and benefits on an after-tax basis (taking into account the Excise Tax
imposed pursuant to Section 4999 of the Code, any tax imposed by any comparable provision of state law, and any
applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes) than if such reductions were to be implemented.

(b) If payments or benefits are to be reduced, any such reduction in payments and/or benefits shall be

made in accordance with Section 409A and shall occur in the manner that results in the greatest economic benefit to
Executive as determined by an independent accounting firm or independent tax counsel
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mutually acceptable to the Company and the Executive (the “Tax Counsel”). All calculations and determinations
under this Section 4.10 shall be made by the Tax Counsel whose determinations shall be conclusive and binding on
the Company and the Executive for all purposes. For purposes of making the calculations and determinations required
by this Section 4.10, the Tax Counsel may rely on reasonable, good faith assumptions and approximations concerning
the application of Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Code. The Company and the Executive shall furnish the Tax
Counsel with such information and documents as the Tax Counsel may reasonably request in order to make its
determinations under this Section 4.10. The Company shall bear all costs the Tax Counsel may reasonably incur in
connection with its services.

5. Cooperation. The parties agree that certain matters in which the Executive will be involved during the Employment
Term may necessitate the Executive’s cooperation in the future. Accordingly, following the termination of the Executive’s
employment for any reason, to the extent reasonably requested by the Board, the Executive shall cooperate with the Company in
connection with matters arising out of the Executive’s service to the Company; provided that, the Company shall make reasonable
efforts to minimize disruption of the Executive’s other activities. The Company shall reimburse the Executive for reasonable
expenses incurred in connection with such cooperation.

6. Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that during the Employment Term, the
Executive will have access to and learn about Confidential Information, as defined below.

6.1 Definition. For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” includes, but is not limited to, all
information not generally known to the public, in spoken, printed, electronic, or any other form or medium, relating directly or
indirectly to: business processes, practices, methods, policies, plans, publications, documents, research, operations, services,
strategies, techniques, agreements, contracts, terms of agreements, transactions, potential transactions, negotiations, pending
negotiations, know-how, trade secrets, computer programs, computer software, applications, operating systems, software design,
web design, work-in-process, databases, device configurations, embedded data, compilations, metadata, technologies, manuals,
records, articles, systems, material, sources of material, supplier information, vendor information, financial information, results,
accounting information, accounting records, legal information, marketing information, advertising information, pricing information,
credit information, design information, payroll information, staffing information, personnel information, employee lists, supplier
lists, vendor lists, developments, reports, internal controls, security procedures, graphics, drawings, sketches, market studies, sales
information, revenue, costs, formulae, notes, communications, algorithms, product plans, designs, styles, models, ideas, audiovisual
programs, inventions, unpublished patent applications, original works of authorship, discoveries, experimental processes,
experimental results, specifications, customer information, customer lists, client information, client lists, manufacturing information,
factory lists, distributor lists, and buyer lists of the Company Group or its businesses, or of any other person or entity that has
entrusted information to the Company Group in confidence.
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The Executive understands that the above list is not exhaustive, and that Confidential Information also includes other
information that is marked or otherwise identified as confidential or proprietary, or that would otherwise appear to a reasonable
person to be confidential or proprietary in the context and circumstances in which the information is known or used.

The Executive understands and agrees that Confidential Information includes information developed by Executive in
the course of employment by the Company as if the Company furnished the same Confidential Information to the Executive in the
first instance. Confidential Information shall not include information that is generally available to and known by the public at the
time of disclosure to the Executive; provided that, such disclosure is through no direct or indirect fault of the Executive or person(s)
acting on the Executive’s behalf.

The Executive understands and acknowledges that the Executive’s obligations under this Agreement with regard to
any particular Confidential Information shall commence immediately upon the Executive first having access to such Confidential
Information (whether before or after the Executive begins employment by the Company) and shall continue during and after the
Executive’s employment by the Company until such time as such Confidential Information has become public knowledge other than
as a result of the Executive’s breach of this Agreement or breach by those acting in concert with the Executive or on the Executive’s
behalf.

6.2 Company Creation and Use of Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that
the Company has invested, and continues to invest, substantial time, money, and specialized knowledge into developing its
resources, creating a customer base, generating customer and potential customer lists, training its employees, and improving its
offerings in the field of asset or investment management industry. The Executive understands and acknowledges that as a result of
these efforts, the Company has created, and continues to use and create Confidential Information. This Confidential Information
provides the Company with a competitive advantage over others in the marketplace.

6.3 Protected Rights. The following rights set forth in this Section 6.3 shall be referred to herein as the “Protected
Rights.”

(a) Permitted Disclosures. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent disclosure of Confidential Information as
may be required by applicable law or regulation, or pursuant to the valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or
an authorized government agency, provided that the disclosure does not exceed the extent of disclosure required by
such law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary
of the Company. Section 7 of this Agreement does not, in any way, restrict or impede the Executive from exercising
protected rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with any applicable
law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly
provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company.
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(b) Permitted Communications. Nothing herein prohibits or restricts the Executive (or the Executive’s attorney)
from initiating communications directly with, responding to an inquiry from, or providing testimony before the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), any other self-
regulatory organization or any other federal or state regulatory authority.

(¢) Notice of Immunity Under the Economic Espionage Act of 1996, as amended by the Defend Trade Secrets Act

of 2016. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Executive will not be held criminally or civilly
liable under any federal or state trade secret law for any disclosure of a trade secret that:

6 is made (1) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or
indirectly, or to an attorney; and (2) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation
of law; or

(i1) is made in a complaint or other document filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding.

(d) If the Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of
law, the Executive may disclose the Company’s trade secrets to the Executive’s attorney and use the trade secret
information in the court proceeding if the Executive:

6 files any document containing trade secrets under seal; and
(ii) does not disclose trade secrets, except pursuant to court order.

7. Restrictive Covenants.

7.1 Acknowledgment. The Executive understands that the nature of the Executive’s position gives the Executive
access to and knowledge of Confidential Information and places the Executive in a position of trust and confidence with the
Company. The Executive understands and acknowledges that the intellectual, artistic or services the Executive provides to the
Company are unique, special, or extraordinary. The Executive further understands and acknowledges that, subject to the Protected
Rights, the Company’s ability to reserve these for the exclusive knowledge and use of the Company is of great competitive
importance and commercial value to the Company, and that improper use or disclosure by the Executive is likely to result in unfair
or unlawful competitive activity.

7.2  Non-Competition. Because of the Company’s legitimate business interest as described herein and the good
and valuable consideration offered to the Executive, during the Employment Term and for the one year period beginning on the last
day of the Executive’s
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employment with the Company, regardless of the reason for the termination and whether employment is terminated at the option of
the Executive or the Company Group, the Executive agrees and covenants not to engage in Prohibited Activity within the asset or
investment management industry (as limited by the definition of Prohibited Activity below).

For purposes of this Section 7, “Prohibited Activity” is activity in which the Executive contributes the Executive’s
knowledge, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as an employee, employer, owner, operator, manager, advisor, consultant,
agent, employee, partner, director, stockholder, officer, volunteer, intern, or any other similar capacity to with any business that is (i)
acting as a publicly traded Bitcoin treasury company (i.e., purchasing, holding and managing Bitcoin as a principal treasury reserve
asset) or (ii) a entity or organization in the asset or investment management industry that provide Bitcoin treasury services and the
Executive is employed or engaged with respect to those services, or (iii) or engaging in a business that otherwise constitutes a
defined peer business in the same line of business as the Company. Prohibited Activity also includes activity that may require or
inevitably requires disclosure of trade secrets, proprietary information or Confidential Information.

Nothing herein shall prohibit the Executive from (i) purchasing or owning less than five percent (5%) of the publicly
traded securities of any corporation, provided that such ownership represents a passive investment and that the Executive is not a
controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such corporation, (ii) owning the majority controlling interest in a
privately held company that does not compete with the Company with the prior written approval of the Board (iii) holding interests
through diversified investment vehicles, private equity, hedge funds or other portfolio investments that are not controlled by the
Executive, (iv) serving on the board of directors of a nonprofit organization, (v) serving on one outside for-profit board of directors,
subject to the Company’s prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), or (vi)
engaging in speaking, lecturing, teaching, writing or similar activities, in each of the cases of clauses (i) through (v) above, none of
these activities will interfere with the Executive’s duties set forth in Section 2.2 above.

7.3 Non-Solicitation of Employees. For a period of twelve (12) months following the Termination Date, the
Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit, hire, recruit, attempt to hire or recruit, or induce the termination of employment of
any employee of the Company with whom the Executive worked during the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the
termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.

7.4  Non-Solicitation of Customers. The Executive understands and acknowledges that because of the Executive’s
experience with and relationship to the Company, the Executive will have access to and learn about much or all of the Company’s
customer information. “Customer Information” includes, but is not limited to, names, phone numbers, addresses, email addresses,
order history, order preferences, chain of command, decisionmakers, pricing information, and other information identifying facts and
circumstances specific to the customer and relevant to services.
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The Executive understands and acknowledges that loss of this customer relationship and/or goodwill will cause
significant and irreparable harm.

The Executive agrees and covenants, during the one year period beginning on the last day of the Executive’s
employment with the Company, not to directly or indirectly solicit, contact (including but not limited to e-mail, regular mail, express
mail, telephone, fax, instant message, or social media), attempt to contact, or meet with the Company’s current customers for
purposes of offering or accepting goods or services similar to or competitive with those offered by the Company.

This restriction shall only apply to:
(a) Customers or prospective customers the Executive contacted in any way during the past one year;
(b) Customers about whom the Executive has trade secret or confidential information;
(©) Customers who became customers during the Executive’s employment with the Company; and
(d) Customers about whom the Executive has information that is not available publicly.

In the event of the Executive’s termination without Cause or for Good Reason, the Company and the Executive may
agree to modified terms on any provision of this Section 7, provided such modification is in writing and signed by both Parties as set
forth in Section 16 herein.

8. Non-Disparagement. The Executive agrees and covenants that, the Executive will not at any time make, publish or
communicate to any person or entity or in any public forum any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements
concerning the Company or its businesses, or any of its employees. This Section 8 does not, in any way, restrict or impede the
Executive from exercising Protected Rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with
any applicable law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written
notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company. The Company agrees and covenants that it shall direct its officers and
directors to refrain from making any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements concerning the Executive to any
third parties.

9. Acknowledgment. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the services to be rendered by the Executive to the
Company are of a special and unique character; that the Executive will obtain knowledge and skill relevant to the Company’s
industry, methods of doing business and marketing strategies by virtue of the Executive’s employment; and that the restrictive
covenants and other terms and conditions of this Agreement are reasonable and
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reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate business interest of the Company. The Executive further acknowledges that the
benefits provided to the Executive under this Agreement, including the amount of the Executive’s compensation reflects, in part, the
Executive’s obligations and the Company’s rights under Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement; that the Executive has
no expectation of any additional compensation, royalties or other payment of any kind not otherwise referenced herein in connection
herewith; and that the Executive will not suffer undue hardship by reason of full compliance with the terms and conditions of
Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement or the Company’s enforcement thereof.

10. Remedies. In the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Executive of Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this
Agreement, the Executive hereby consents and agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek, in addition to other available
remedies, a temporary or permanent injunction or other equitable relief against such breach or threatened breach from any court of
competent jurisdiction, and that money damages would not afford an adequate remedy, without the necessity of showing any actual
damages, and without the necessity of posting any bond or other security. The aforementioned equitable relief shall be in addition to,
not in lieu of, legal remedies, monetary damages, or other available forms of relief.

11. Proprietary Rights.

11.1  Work Product. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that all right, title, and interest in and to all writings,
works of authorship, technology, inventions, discoveries, processes, techniques, methods, ideas, concepts, research, proposals,
materials, and all other work product of any nature whatsoever, that are created, prepared, produced, authored, edited, amended,
conceived, or reduced to practice by the Executive individually or jointly with others during the Employment Term and relate in any
way to the business or contemplated business, products, activities, research, or development of the Company or result from any work
performed by the Executive for the Company (in each case, regardless of when or where prepared or whose equipment or other
resources is used in preparing the same), all rights and claims related to the foregoing, and all printed, physical and electronic copies,
and other tangible embodiments thereof (collectively, “Work Product”), as well as any and all rights in and to US and foreign (a)
patents, patent disclosures and inventions (whether patentable or not), (b) trademarks, service marks, trade dress, trade names, logos,
corporate names and domain names, and other similar designations of source or origin, together with the goodwill symbolized by
any of the foregoing, (c) copyrights and copyrightable works (including computer programs), and rights in data and databases, (d)
trade secrets, know-how, and other confidential information, and (e) all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether
registered or unregistered and including all registrations and applications for, and renewals and extensions of, such rights, all
improvements thereto and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection in any part of the world (collectively, “Intellectual
Property Rights”), shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company.

For purposes of this Agreement, Work Product includes, but is not limited to, Company information.
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11.2  Work Made for Hire; Assignment. The Executive acknowledges that, by reason of being employed by the
Company at the relevant times, to the extent permitted by law, all of the Work Product consisting of copyrightable subject matter is
“work made for hire” as defined in 17 U.S.C. § 101 and such copyrights are therefore owned by the Company. To the extent that the
foregoing does not apply, the Executive hereby irrevocably assigns to the Company, for no additional consideration, the Executive’s
entire right, title, and interest in and to all Work Product and Intellectual Property Rights therein, including the right to sue,
counterclaim, and recover for all past, present, and future infringement, misappropriation, or dilution thereof, and all rights
corresponding thereto throughout the world. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to reduce or limit the
Company’s rights, title, or interest in any Work Product or Intellectual Property Rights so as to be less in any respect than that the
Company would have had in the absence of this Agreement.

11.3  Further Assurances; Power of Attorney. During and after the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to
reasonably cooperate with the Company to (a) apply for, obtain, perfect, and transfer to the Company the Work Product as well as
any and all Intellectual Property Rights in the Work Product in any jurisdiction in the world; and (b) maintain, protect and enforce
the same, including, without limitation, giving testimony and executing and delivering to the Company any and all applications,
oaths, declarations, affidavits, waivers, assignments, and other documents and instruments as shall be requested by the Company.
The Executive hereby irrevocably grants the Company power of attorney to execute and deliver any such documents on the
Executive’s behalf in the Executive’s name and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to transfer the Work Product to the Company
and further the transfer, prosecution, issuance, and maintenance of all Intellectual Property Rights therein, to the full extent permitted
by law, if the Executive does not promptly cooperate with the Company’s request (without limiting the rights the Company shall
have in such circumstances by operation of law). The power of attorney is coupled with an interest and shall not be affected by the
Executive’s subsequent incapacity.

11.4 No License. The Executive understands that this Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, grant the
Executive any license or right of any nature with respect to any Work Product or Intellectual Property Rights or any Confidential
Information, materials, software, or other tools made available to the Executive by the Company.

12.  Security.

12.1  Security and Access. The Executive agrees and covenants (a) to comply with all Company security policies
and procedures as in force from time to time (“Facilities and Information Technology Resources”); (b) not to access or use any
Facilities and Information Technology Resources except as authorized by the Company; and (iii) not to access or use any Facilities
and Information Technology Resources in any manner after the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company,
whether termination is voluntary or involuntary. The Executive agrees to notify the Company promptly in the event the Executive
learns of any violation of the foregoing by others, or of any other misappropriation or unauthorized access,
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use, reproduction, or reverse engineering of, or tampering with any Facilities and Information Technology Resources or other
Company property or materials by others.

12.2  Exit Obligations. Upon (a) voluntary or involuntary termination of the Executive’s employment or (b) the
Company’s request at any time during the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall (i) provide or return to the Company any and
all Company property and all Company documents and materials belonging to the Company and stored in any fashion, including but
not limited to those that constitute or contain any Confidential Information or Work Product, that are in the possession or control of
the Executive, whether they were provided to the Executive by the Company or any of its business associates or created by the
Executive in connection with the Executive’s employment by the Company; and (ii) delete or destroy all copies of any such
documents and materials not returned to the Company that remain in the Executive’s possession or control, including those stored on
any non- Company Group devices, networks, storage locations, and media in the Executive’s possession or control.

13. Publicity. The Executive hereby irrevocably consents to any and all uses and displays, by the Company and its agents,
representatives and licensees, of the Executive’s name, voice, likeness, image, appearance, and biographical information in, on or in
connection with any pictures, photographs, audio and video recordings, digital images, websites, television programs and
advertising, other advertising and publicity, sales and marketing brochures, books, magazines, other publications, CDs, DVDs, tapes,
and all other printed and electronic forms and media throughout the world, at any time during or after the Employment Term, for all
legitimate commercial and business purposes of the Company (“Permitted Uses™) without further consent from or royalty, payment,
or other compensation to the Executive. The Executive hereby forever waives and releases the Company and its directors, officers,
employees, and agents from any and all claims, actions, damages, losses, costs, expenses, and liability of any kind, arising under any
legal or equitable theory whatsoever at any time during or after the Employment Term, arising directly or indirectly from the
Company Group’s and its agents’, representatives’, and licensees’ exercise of their rights in connection with any Permitted Uses.

14. Governing Law: Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement, for all purposes, shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of Texas without regard to conflicts of law principles. Any action or proceeding by either of the parties to enforce this
Agreement shall be brought only in a state or federal court located in the state of Texas. The parties hereby irrevocably submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction of such courts and waive the defense of inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any such action or
proceeding in such venue.

15. Entire Agreement. Unless specifically provided herein, this Agreement contains all of the understandings and
representations between the Executive and the Company pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings, agreements, representations, and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to such subject
matter. The parties mutually agree that the Agreement can be specifically enforced in court and can be cited as evidence in legal
proceedings alleging breach of the Agreement.

16. Modification and Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or modified unless such amendment or
modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the
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Executive and by the Secretary of the Company. No waiver by either of the parties of any breach by the other party hereto of any
condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by the other party hereto shall be deemed a waiver of any similar or
dissimilar provision or condition at the same or any prior or subsequent time, nor shall the failure of or delay by either of the parties
in exercising any right, power, or privilege hereunder operate as a waiver thereof to preclude any other or further exercise thereof or
the exercise of any other such right, power, or privilege.

17. Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be enforceable
only if modified, or if any portion of this Agreement shall be held as unenforceable and thus stricken, such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remainder of this Agreement, the balance of which shall continue to be binding upon the parties with any such
modification to become a part hereof and treated as though originally set forth in this Agreement.

The parties further agree that any such court is expressly authorized to modify any such unenforceable provision of this
Agreement in lieu of severing such unenforceable provision from this Agreement in its entirety, whether by rewriting the offending
provision, deleting any or all of the offending provision, adding additional language to this Agreement, or by making such other
modifications as it deems warranted to carry out the intent and agreement of the parties as embodied herein to the maximum extent
permitted by law.

The parties expressly agree that this Agreement as so modified by the court shall be binding upon and enforceable against
each of them. In any event, should one or more of the provisions of this Agreement be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in
any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and if such provision or
provisions are not modified as provided above, this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provisions had not been set forth herein.

18. Captions. Captions and headings of the sections and paragraphs of this Agreement are intended solely for
convenience and no provision of this Agreement is to be construed by reference to the caption or heading of any section or
paragraph.

19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

20. Tolling. Should the Executive violate any of the terms of the restrictive covenant obligations articulated herein, the
obligation at issue will run from the first date on which the Executive ceases to be in violation of such obligation.

21.  Section 409A.

21.1  General Compliance. This Agreement is intended to comply with Section 409A or an exemption thereunder
and shall be construed and administered in accordance with Section 409A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
payments provided under this Agreement may only be made upon an event and in a manner that complies with Section
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409A or an applicable exemption. Any payments under this Agreement that may be excluded from Section 409A either as separation
pay due to an involuntary separation from service or as a short-term deferral shall be excluded from Section 409A to the maximum
extent possible. For purposes of Section 409A, each installment payment provided under this Agreement shall be treated as a
separate payment. Any payments to be made under this Agreement upon a termination of employment shall only be made upon a
“separation from service” under Section 409A. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representations that the
payments and benefits provided under this Agreement comply with Section 409A, and in no event shall the Company be liable for
all or any portion of any taxes, penalties, interest, or other expenses that may be incurred by the Executive on account of non-
compliance with Section 409A.

21.2  Specified Employees. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any payment or benefit
provided to the Executive in connection with the Executive’s termination of employment is determined to constitute “nonqualified
deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and the Executive is determined to be a “specified employee” as
defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(b)(i), then such payment or benefit shall not be paid until the first payroll date following the six-
month anniversary of the Termination Date or, if earlier, on the Executive’s death (the “Specified Employee Payment Date”). The
aggregate of any payments that would otherwise have been paid before the Specified Employee Payment Date shall be paid to the
Executive in a lump sum on the Specified Employee Payment Date and thereafter, any remaining payments shall be paid without
delay in accordance with their original schedule.

21.3 Reimbursements. To the extent required by Section 409A, each reimbursement or in-kind benefit provided
under this Agreement shall be provided in accordance with the following:

(a) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during each calendar
year cannot affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other calendar
year;

(b) any reimbursement of an eligible expense shall be paid to the Executive on or before the last day of the
calendar year following the calendar year in which the expense was incurred; and

() any right to reimbursements or in-kind benefits under this Agreement shall not be subject to liquidation
or exchange for another benefit.

22. Notification to Subsequent Employer. When the Executive’s employment with the Company terminates, the
Executive agrees to notify any subsequent employer of the restrictive covenants sections contained in this Agreement. The Executive
will also deliver a copy of such notice to the Company before the Executive commences employment with any subsequent employer.
In addition, the Executive authorizes the Company to provide a copy of the restrictive covenants sections of this Agreement to third
parties, including but not limited to, the Executive’s subsequent, anticipated, or possible future employer.
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23. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is personal to the Executive and shall not be assigned by the Executive. Any
purported assignment by the Executive shall be null and void from the initial date of the purported assignment. The Company shall
use its best efforts to assign this Agreement to any successor or assign (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger,
consolidation, or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of the Company and permitted successors and assigns.

24. Notice. Notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by overnight carrier to the parties at the
addresses set forth below (or such other addresses as specified by the parties by like notice):

If to the Company:

Strive, Inc.
200 Crescent Court Suite 1400
Dallas, Texas 75201

If to the Executive:

At Executive’s email or home address as then shown in the Company’s personnel records.

25. Representations of the Executive. The Executive represents and warrants to the Company that:

(a) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not conflict with or result in a violation of, a breach of, or a default under any contract, agreement, or
understanding to which the Executive is a party or is otherwise bound.

(b) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not violate any non-solicitation, non- competition, or other similar covenant or agreement of a prior
employer.

26. Withholding. The Company shall have the right to withhold from any amount payable hereunder any Federal, state,
and local taxes in order for the Company to satisfy any withholding tax obligation it may have under any applicable law or
regulation.

27. Survival. Upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall survive such expiration or other termination to the extent necessary to carry out the intentions of the parties under
this Agreement.

23



28. Acknowledgment of Full Understanding. THE EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE
EXECUTIVE HAS FULLY READ, UNDERSTANDS AND VOLUNTARILY ENTERS INTO THIS AGREEMENT. THE
EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE EXECUTIVE HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO ASK
QUESTIONS AND CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF THE EXECUTIVE’S CHOICE BEFORE SIGNING THIS
AGREEMENT.

[this space left blank intentionally — signature page follows]
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By:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

Strive, Inc.
By:

Name: Matthew Cole
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Name: B. Logan Beirne

[Signature Page to Employment Agreement]
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STRIVC

Strive, Inc. Employment Agreement

This Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of September 15, 2025, by and between Arshia
Sarkhani (the “Executive”) and Strive, Inc. (f.k.a., Asset Entities Inc.), a Nevada corporation (the “Company”).

WHEREAS the Company desires to employ the Executive through one of its subsidiaries on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Executive desires to be employed by the Company or one of its subsidiaries, which is currently SEI, on such
terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and obligations set forth herein, the parties agree
as follows:

1. Term. The term of this Agreement commenced on September 12, 2025 and the period during which the Executive is
employed by the Company hereunder is referred to as the “Employment Term.”

2. Position and Duties.

2.1 Position. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall serve as Chief Marketing Officer and report
directly to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQO”). In such position, the Executive shall have such duties, authority and
responsibilities as may be determined from time to time by the CEO or Board of Directors (the “Board”), as applicable, provided
such duties, authority and responsibilities are consistent with the Executive’s position. It is understood and agreed that the
Executive’s duties may include providing services to or for the benefit of the Company’s affiliates, including, but not limited to, SEI.

2.2 Duties. During the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to devote substantially all of the Executive’s
business time and attention to the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder and will not engage in any other business,
profession or occupation for compensation or otherwise that would conflict or interfere with the performance of such services either
directly or indirectly without the prior written consent of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive will be
permitted to make personal passive investments and manage the Executive’s personal investment portfolio, including purchasing or
owning less than five percent of the publicly-traded securities of any corporation; provided that, such ownership represents a passive
investment and that the Executive is not a controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such corporation; provided
further that, these investments do not interfere with the performance of the Executive’s duties and responsibilities to the Company as
provided hereunder, including, but not limited to, the obligations set forth in Section 2 hereof.




23 Place of Performance. The Executive will primarily provide his services remotely, but he will be required to
travel regularly on Company business during the Employment Term.

3. Compensation.

3.1 Base Salary. During the Employment Term, the Company shall pay the Executive an annual base salary of
$350,000 in semimonthly installments in accordance with the Company’s customary payroll practices and applicable wage payment
laws. The Executive’s annual base salary, as in effect from time to time, is hereinafter referred to as the “Base Salary”.

3.2 Annual Bonus Plan.

(a) During the Employment Term, the Executive will be eligible to receive an annual bonus for each fiscal
year of the Company with a target of fifty percent (50%) of Base Salary (“Target Bonus”) in accordance with the achievement of
performance metrics as determined by the Board (or a committee thereof) in consultation with the CEO within sixty (60) days of the
beginning of the applicable fiscal year pursuant to the Company’s short term cash incentive plan (the “STI Plan”). The actual
amount of the annual bonus for any fiscal year, if any, shall be determined based on actual performance measured against the
performance metrics established pursuant to the STI Plan.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 4, (i) the annual bonus will be subject to the terms of the
Company’s short-term cash incentive plan under which it is granted and (ii) in order to be eligible to receive an annual bonus, the
Executive must be continuously employed by the Company through the end of the applicable performance period.

33 Equity Incentive Plan. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be eligible to participate in the
Strive, Inc. Amended and Restated 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (together with any successor shareholder approved plan, the “Equity
Incentive Plan”).or any successor plan, subject to the terms of such plan, as determined by the Board or the Compensation
Committee, in its sole discretion.

3.4  Fringe Benefits and Perquisites. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to fringe
benefits and perquisites consistent with the practices of the Company and governing benefit plan requirements (including plan
eligibility provisions), and to the extent the Company provides similar benefits or perquisites (or both) to similarly situated
executives of the Company.

3.5 Employee Benefits. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in all
employee benefit plans, practices and programs maintained by the Company, as in effect from time to time (collectively, “Employee
Benefit Plans”), on a basis which is no less favorable than is provided to other similarly situated executives of the Company, to the
extent consistent with applicable law and the terms of the applicable Employee Benefit Plans. The Company reserves the right to
amend or terminate any Employee Benefit Plans at any



time in its sole discretion, subject to the terms of such Employee Benefit Plan and applicable law.

3.6  Vacation; Paid Time Off. During the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation on a
basis that is similar to that provided to other executives of the Company. The Executive shall receive other paid time off in
accordance with the Company’s policies for employees as such policies may exist from time to time.

3.7  Life Insurance Policy. During the Employment Term, the Company shall maintain a term life insurance policy
on the Executive’s life, naming the Executive’s designated beneficiary or beneficiaries as the sole beneficiary(ies). The Company
shall pay all premiums on such policy. The Company shall provide reasonable evidence of coverage to the Executive upon request.

3.8 Business Expenses. The Executive shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary out-of-
pocket business, entertainment, and travel expenses incurred by the Executive in connection with the performance of the Executive’s
duties hereunder in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policies and procedures. Business expenses are subject
to audit and the Executive may be required to reimburse the Company for expenses that are determined to be in violation of the
Company’s policies and procedures. The Company may choose to disallow any expenses submitted by the Executive that do not
conform to the Company’s reimbursement policies.

3.9  Clawback Provisions. Any amounts payable under this Agreement are subject to any policy established by the
Company to comply with applicable law or stock exchange rules providing for clawback or recovery of amounts that were paid to
the Executive, including the Strive, Inc. Compensation Recoupment Policy.

4. Termination of Employment. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated
by either the Company or the Executive at any time and for any reason; provided that, unless otherwise provided herein, either party
shall be required to give the other party at least 30 days’ advance written notice of any termination of the Executive’s employment.
On termination of the Executive’s employment during the Employment Term, the Executive shall be entitled to the following
compensation and benefits and will have no further rights to any compensation or any other benefits from the Company or any of its
affiliates (collectively, the “Company Group”):

4.1 For Cause or Without Good Reason.

(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason. If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive without Good Reason, the Executive shall be entitled to receive:

6 any accrued but unpaid Base Salary and accrued but unused vacation which shall be paid on
the pay date immediately following the



Termination Date (as defined below) in accordance with the Company’s customary payroll procedures;

(ii))  reimbursement for unreimbursed business expenses properly incurred by the Executive, which
shall be subject to and paid in accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policy; and

(iii)  such employee benefits (including equity compensation), if any, to which the Executive may be
entitled under the Company’s employee benefit plans as of the Termination Date; provided that, in no event
shall the Executive be entitled to any payments in the nature of severance or termination payments except as
specifically provided herein (the items described in clauses (i) through (iii), collectively, the “Accrued
Amounts”).

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” shall mean:

(1) the Executive’s failure to perform Executive’s duties (other than any such failure resulting from
incapacity due to physical or mental illness);

(i1) the Executive’s failure to comply with any valid and legal directive of the CEO or the Board
consistent with Executive’s position and this Agreement;

(iii)  the Executive’s willful engagement in dishonesty, illegal conduct, or gross misconduct, which
is, in each case, materially injurious to the Company or its affiliates;

(iv)  the Executive’s embezzlement, misappropriation, or fraud, whether or not related to the
Executive’s employment with the Company;

v) the Executive’s conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a crime that constitutes a
felony (or state law equivalent) or a crime that constitutes a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude;

(vi)  the Executive’s material violation of the Company’s written policies or codes of conduct,
including written policies related to discrimination, harassment, performance of illegal or unethical activities,
and ethical misconduct;

(vii)  the Executive’s willful unauthorized disclosure of Confidential Information (as defined below);

(viii) the Executive’s material breach of any material obligation under this Agreement or any other
written agreement between the Executive and the Company; or



(ix)  the Executive’s willful engagement in conduct that brings negative publicity or into public
disgrace, embarrassment, or disrepute causing demonstrable financial harm to the Company.

For purposes of this provision, no act or failure to act on the part of the Executive shall be considered
“willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the
Executive’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company. Any act, or failure to act, based on authority
given pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Board or on the advice of counsel for the Company shall be
conclusively presumed to be done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company.

Except for a failure, breach or refusal which, by its nature, cannot reasonably be expected to be cured,
the Executive shall have thirty (30) business days from the delivery of written notice by the Company within which to
cure any acts constituting Cause, to the extent curable. The Company may place the Executive on paid leave for up to
sixty (60) days while it is determining whether there is a basis to terminate the Executive’s employment for Cause.
Any such action by the Company will not constitute Good Reason.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following, in
each case during the Employment Term without the Executive’s written consent:

1) any material reduction in Base Salary or Target Bonus, other than a reduction in Base Salary or
Target Bonus that applies to other similarly situated executives of the Company;

(ii) a material diminution in Executive’s position, title, duties, authorities or responsibilities
(including membership on the Board), excluding any reduction in duties, responsibilities or authority that results
solely from the Company ceasing to be a publicly traded entity;

(iii)  the Executive being required to regularly provide services from a primary place of employment
specified by the Company that is not remote;

(iv)  a material breach by the Company or any of its affiliates of any material agreement with
Executive;

v) the Company’s failure to maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive; or

(vi)  the failure of the Company to require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase,
merger, consolidation or otherwise) to



expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in accordance with its terms.

The Executive cannot terminate employment for Good Reason unless the Executive has provided
written notice to the Company of the existence of the circumstances providing grounds for termination for Good
Reason within sixty (60) days of the initial existence of such grounds and the Company has had at least thirty (30)
days from the date on which such notice is provided to cure such circumstances. If the Executive does not terminate
employment for Good Reason within sixty (60) days after the first occurrence of the applicable grounds, then the
Executive will be deemed to have waived the right to terminate for Good Reason with respect to such grounds.

4.2 Without Cause or for Good Reason. The Employment Term and the Executive’s employment hereunder may
be terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause. In the event of such termination, the Executive
shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance with Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and
Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a release of claims in favor of the Company, its affiliates and their
respective officers and directors in a form provided by the Company (the “Release”) and such Release becoming effective within 30
days following the Termination Date (such 21-day period, the “Release Execution Period”), the Executive shall be entitled to
receive the following:

(a) a lump sum payment equal to one (1) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) any earned but unpaid annual bonus with respect to any completed fiscal year immediately preceding
the Termination Date, which shall be paid on the otherwise applicable payment date (the “Prior Year Bonus™);

(©) a lump sum payment equal to the prorated annual bonus, if any, that the Executive would have earned
for the calendar year in which the Termination Date occurs based on the achievement of applicable performance goals
for such year, which shall be payable on the date that annual bonuses are paid to the Company’s similarly situated
executives, but in no event later than two-and-a-half (2)%) months following the end of the calendar year in which the
Termination Date occurs (the “Prorata Bonus™);

(d) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest solely based on continued service
with the Company shall immediately vest and/or become exercisable (the “Service-Based Equity Acceleration”);



(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting based on actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with actual level of
performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith (the “Performance-
Based Equity Acceleration”); and

) if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (“COBRA”), the Company shall reimburse the Executive for the
monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the Executive’s dependents. Such
reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15™) of the month immediately following the month in
which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be eligible to receive such
reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the twelve (12) month anniversary of the Termination Date; (ii) the date the
Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii) the date on which the Executive
becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or other source. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this Section 4.2(f) would violate the nondiscrimination rules
applicable to non-grandfathered plans under the Affordable Care Act (the “ACA”), or result in the imposition of
penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder, the parties agree to reform
this Section 4.2(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply with the ACA, including making payments to the Executive
in lieu of providing ongoing coverage.

4.3 Death.

(a) The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate automatically on the Executive’s death during
the Employment Term.

(b) If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Employment Term on account of the
Executive’s death, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and,
subject to the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(1) the Prorata Bonus;
(i)  the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;
(iii)) the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iv) the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for thirty-six (36) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable



lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such thirty-six (36) month period;

(v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date,
with terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date;
and

(vi) the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s
organizational documents and applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

4.4  Disability.

(a) Upon Executive’s Disability, Executive will receive the Accrued Amounts, and subject to the
Executive or the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries’ timely execution and non-revocation of the Release:

(1) the Prorata Bonus;
(ii) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;
(iii)  the Performance-Based Equity Acceleration;

(iv)  the Company shall provide continued health coverage for the Executive’s eligible dependents
for twenty four (24) months following the Termination Date, or, at the election of the Company, a taxable
lump-sum cash payment equal to the cost of such coverage for such twenty four (24) month period;

v) the Company shall maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Executive providing coverage for a period of not less than six (6) years following the Termination Date, with
terms and conditions no less favorable than those in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date; and

(vi)  the Company shall continue to indemnify and advance expenses to the Executive and, as
applicable, the Executive’s estate and/or beneficiaries, to the fullest extent provided under the Company’s
organizational documents and applicable law, as in effect on the Termination Date.

(b) In addition to the benefits set forth in Section 4.4(a) above, to the extent that the Executive becomes
entitled to Disability treatment as a result of an



intentional violent act of a third party targeting the Executive, the Executive shall, subject to the execution of a
Release by the Executive (or if unable to execute such a Release, his designee), become entitled to a payment equal to
one (1) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date
for Disability occurs, which shall be paid in lump sum within forty-five (45) days following the Termination Date for
the Disability; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another taxable
year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year.

(©) For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” shall mean a condition that entitles the Executive to
receive long-term disability benefits under the Company’s long-term disability plan, or if there is no such plan, the
Executive’s inability, due to physical or mental incapacity, to perform the essential functions of the Executive’s job,
with or without reasonable accommodation, for 180 days out of any three hundred sixty-five (365) day period or one
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days; provided, however, in the event that the Company temporarily replaces the
Executive, or transfers the Executive’s duties or responsibilities to another individual on account of the Executive’s
inability to perform such duties due to a mental or physical incapacity which is, or is reasonably expected to become,
a Disability, then the Executive’s employment shall not be deemed terminated by the Company and the Executive
shall not be able to resign with Good Reason as a result thereof. Any question as to the existence of the Executive’s
Disability as to which the Executive and the Company cannot agree shall be determined in writing by a qualified
independent physician mutually acceptable to the Executive and the Company. If the Executive and the Company
cannot agree as to a qualified independent physician, each shall appoint such a physician and those two physicians
shall select a third who shall make such determination in writing. The determination of Disability made in writing to
the Company and the Executive shall be final and conclusive for all purposes of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, all payments made in connection with the Executive’s Disability
shall be provided in a manner which is consistent with federal and state law.

4.5  Change in Control Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, if the Executive’s
employment hereunder is terminated by the Executive for Good Reason or by the Company without Cause (other than on account of
the Executive’s death or Disability), in each case within twenty-four (24) months following a Change in Control (as defined in the
Equity Incentive Plan), the Executive shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts and subject to the Executive’s compliance
with Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement and the Executive’s execution of a Release which becomes
effective within 30 days following the Termination Date, the Executive shall be entitled to receive the following:



(a) a lump sum payment equal to two (2) times the sum of Executive’s (i) Base Salary and (ii) Target
Bonus for the year in which the Termination Date occurs, which shall be paid within forty-five (45) days following
the Termination Date; provided that, if the Release Execution Period begins in one taxable year and ends in another
taxable year, payment shall not be made until the beginning of the second taxable year;

(b) the Prior Year Bonus;
(c) the Prorata Bonus;
(d) the Service-Based Equity Acceleration;

(e) with respect to outstanding equity or equity-based awards that vest upon attainment of performance
goals, full vesting at the greater of target and actual level of performance for any open performance period(s), with
actual level of performance for the open performance period(s) to be determined by the Board in good faith; and

® if the Executive timely and properly elects health continuation coverage under COBRA, the Company
shall reimburse the Executive for the monthly COBRA premium paid by the Executive for the Executive and the
Executive’s dependents. Such reimbursement shall be paid to the Executive on the fifteenth (15") of the month
immediately following the month in which the Executive timely remits the premium payment. The Executive shall be
eligible to receive such reimbursement until the earliest of: (i) the twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the
Termination Date; (ii) the date the Executive is no longer eligible to receive COBRA continuation coverage; and (iii)
the date on which the Executive becomes eligible to receive substantially similar coverage from another employer or
other source; provided, however, that if the continued benefit pursuant to this Section 4.5(f) would otherwise end
prior to the twenty-four (24) month anniversary of the Termination Date as a result of clause (ii) above, subject to the
next sentence, the Company will provide a substantially similar economic benefit through the twenty-four (24) month
anniversary of the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company’s making payments under this
Section 4.5(f) would violate the nondiscrimination rules applicable to non-grandfathered plans under ACA, or result
in the imposition of penalties under the ACA and the related regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder, the
parties agree to reform this Section 4.5(f) in a manner as is necessary to comply with the ACA.

4.6  Notice of Termination. Any termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder by the Company or by the
Executive during the Employment Term (other than termination pursuant to Section 4.3(a) on account of the Executive’s death) shall
be communicated by written notice of termination (“Notice of Termination”) to the other party hereto in accordance with Section
24. The Notice of Termination shall specify:
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(a) The termination provision of this Agreement relied upon;

(b) To the extent applicable, the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the
Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated; and

(c) The applicable Termination Date.
4.7 Termination Date. The Executive’s “Termination Date” shall be:

(a) If the Executive’s employment hereunder terminates on account of the Executive’s death, the date of
the Executive’s death;

(b) If the Executive’s employment hereunder is terminated on account of the Executive’s Disability, the
date that it is determined that the Executive has a Disability;

(©) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder for Cause, the date the Notice of
Termination is delivered to the Executive;

(d) If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder without Cause, the date specified in
the Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date on which the Notice of
Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company shall have the option to provide the Executive with a lump sum
payment equal to thirty (30) days’ Base Salary in lieu of such notice, which shall be paid in a lump sum on the
Executive’s Termination Date and for all purposes of this Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall be the
date on which such Notice of Termination is delivered; provided, that in the event the Company elects to pay in lieu
of notice, the Executive shall (i) continue to receive all employee benefits and equity vesting for such thirty (30) day
period as if actively employed, or (ii) if such continuation is not practicable, receive a cash payment equal to the
value of such benefits and vesting, in each case determined in good faith by the Company; and

(e) If the Executive terminates the Executive’s employment hereunder with or without Good Reason, the
date specified in the Executive’s Notice of Termination, which shall be no less than thirty (30) days following the date
on which the Notice of Termination is delivered; provided that, the Company may waive all or any part of the thirty
(30) day notice period for no consideration by giving written notice to the Executive and for all purposes of this
Agreement, the Executive’s Termination Date shall be the date determined by the Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the Termination Date shall not occur until the date on which the
Executive incurs a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A.
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4.8 Termination Date. On termination of the Executive’s employment hereunder for any reason, the Executive
shall be deemed to have resigned from all positions that the Executive holds as an officer or member of the Board (or a committee
thereof) of the Company Group.

4.9  No Mitigation or Offset. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for
in this Section 4 by seeking or accepting other employment following the Termination Date. The amount of any payment or benefit
provided for in this Agreement shall not be reduced by any compensation or benefit earned by the Executive as the result of
employment by another employer or by retirement or other benefits, except as described in Section 4.2(f) or Section 4.5(f).

4.10 Section 280G.

(a) If any of the payments or benefits received or to be received by the Executive (including, without
limitation, any payments or benefits received in connection with a Change in Control or the Executive’s termination
of employment, whether pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other plan, arrangement, or agreement, or
otherwise) constitute “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and will be subject to
the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax™), the present value of Executive’s payments
and benefits will be reduced by the minimum amount necessary such that the aggregate present value of such
payments and benefits do not trigger the Excise Tax; provided, however, no such reductions shall be given effect if
Executive would be entitled to greater payments and benefits on an after-tax basis (taking into account the Excise Tax
imposed pursuant to Section 4999 of the Code, any tax imposed by any comparable provision of state law, and any
applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes) than if such reductions were to be implemented.

(b) If payments or benefits are to be reduced, any such reduction in payments and/or benefits shall be
made in accordance with Section 409A and shall occur in the manner that results in the greatest economic benefit to
Executive as determined by an independent accounting firm or independent tax counsel mutually acceptable to the
Company and the Executive (the “Tax Counsel”). All calculations and determinations under this Section 4.10 shall be
made by the Tax Counsel whose determinations shall be conclusive and binding on the Company and the Executive
for all purposes. For purposes of making the calculations and determinations required by this Section 4.10, the Tax
Counsel may rely on reasonable, good faith assumptions and approximations concerning the application of Section
280G and Section 4999 of the Code. The Company and the Executive shall furnish the Tax Counsel with such
information and documents as the Tax Counsel may reasonably request in order to make its determinations under this
Section 4.10. The Company shall bear all costs the Tax Counsel may reasonably incur in connection with its services.
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5. Cooperation. The parties agree that certain matters in which the Executive will be involved during the Employment
Term may necessitate the Executive’s cooperation in the future. Accordingly, following the termination of the Executive’s
employment for any reason, to the extent reasonably requested by the Board, the Executive shall cooperate with the Company in
connection with matters arising out of the Executive’s service to the Company; provided that, the Company shall make reasonable
efforts to minimize disruption of the Executive’s other activities. The Company shall reimburse the Executive for reasonable
expenses incurred in connection with such cooperation.

6. Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that during the Employment Term, the
Executive will have access to and learn about Confidential Information, as defined below.

6.1 Definition. For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” includes, but is not limited to, all
information not generally known to the public, in spoken, printed, electronic, or any other form or medium, relating directly or
indirectly to: business processes, practices, methods, policies, plans, publications, documents, research, operations, services,
strategies, techniques, agreements, contracts, terms of agreements, transactions, potential transactions, negotiations, pending
negotiations, know-how, trade secrets, computer programs, computer software, applications, operating systems, software design,
web design, work-in-process, databases, device configurations, embedded data, compilations, metadata, technologies, manuals,
records, articles, systems, material, sources of material, supplier information, vendor information, financial information, results,
accounting information, accounting records, legal information, marketing information, advertising information, pricing information,
credit information, design information, payroll information, staffing information, personnel information, employee lists, supplier
lists, vendor lists, developments, reports, internal controls, security procedures, graphics, drawings, sketches, market studies, sales
information, revenue, costs, formulae, notes, communications, algorithms, product plans, designs, styles, models, ideas, audiovisual
programs, inventions, unpublished patent applications, original works of authorship, discoveries, experimental processes,
experimental results, specifications, customer information, customer lists, client information, client lists, manufacturing information,
factory lists, distributor lists, and buyer lists of the Company Group or its businesses, or of any other person or entity that has
entrusted information to the Company Group in confidence.

The Executive understands that the above list is not exhaustive, and that Confidential Information also includes other
information that is marked or otherwise identified as confidential or proprietary, or that would otherwise appear to a reasonable
person to be confidential or proprietary in the context and circumstances in which the information is known or used.

The Executive understands and agrees that Confidential Information includes information developed by Executive in
the course of employment by the Company as if the Company furnished the same Confidential Information to the Executive in the
first instance. Confidential Information shall not include information that is generally available to and known
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by the public at the time of disclosure to the Executive; provided that, such disclosure is through no direct or indirect fault of the
Executive or person(s) acting on the Executive’s behalf.

The Executive understands and acknowledges that the Executive’s obligations under this Agreement with regard to
any particular Confidential Information shall commence immediately upon the Executive first having access to such Confidential
Information (whether before or after the Executive begins employment by the Company) and shall continue during and after the
Executive’s employment by the Company until such time as such Confidential Information has become public knowledge other than
as a result of the Executive’s breach of this Agreement or breach by those acting in concert with the Executive or on the Executive’s
behalf.

6.2  Company Creation and Use of Confidential Information. The Executive understands and acknowledges that
the Company has invested, and continues to invest, substantial time, money, and specialized knowledge into developing its
resources, creating a customer base, generating customer and potential customer lists, training its employees, and improving its
offerings in the field of asset or investment management industry. The Executive understands and acknowledges that as a result of
these efforts, the Company has created, and continues to use and create Confidential Information. This Confidential Information
provides the Company with a competitive advantage over others in the marketplace.

6.3 Protected Rights. The following rights set forth in this Section 6.3 shall be referred to herein as the “Protected
Rights.”

(a) Permitted Disclosures. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent disclosure of Confidential Information as
may be required by applicable law or regulation, or pursuant to the valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or
an authorized government agency, provided that the disclosure does not exceed the extent of disclosure required by
such law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary
of the Company. Section 7 of this Agreement does not, in any way, restrict or impede the Executive from exercising
protected rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with any applicable
law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly
provide written notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company.

(b) Permitted Communications. Nothing herein prohibits or restricts the Executive (or the Executive’s attorney)
from initiating communications directly with, responding to an inquiry from, or providing testimony before the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), any other self-
regulatory organization or any other federal or state regulatory authority.

(c) Notice of Immunity Under the Economic Espionage Act of 1996, as amended by the Defend Trade Secrets Act
of 2016. Notwithstanding any other
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provision of this Agreement, the Executive will not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state
trade secret law for any disclosure of a trade secret that:

6 is made (1) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or
indirectly, or to an attorney; and (2) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation
of law; or

(i1) is made in a complaint or other document filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding.

(d) If the Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of
law, the Executive may disclose the Company’s trade secrets to the Executive’s attorney and use the trade secret
information in the court proceeding if the Executive:

(1) files any document containing trade secrets under seal; and
(i1) does not disclose trade secrets, except pursuant to court order.

7. Restrictive Covenants.

7.1 Acknowledgment. The Executive understands that the nature of the Executive’s position gives the Executive
access to and knowledge of Confidential Information and places the Executive in a position of trust and confidence with the
Company. The Executive understands and acknowledges that the intellectual, artistic or services the Executive provides to the
Company are unique, special, or extraordinary. The Executive further understands and acknowledges that, subject to the Protected
Rights, the Company’s ability to reserve these for the exclusive knowledge and use of the Company is of great competitive
importance and commercial value to the Company, and that improper use or disclosure by the Executive is likely to result in unfair
or unlawful competitive activity.

7.2  Non-Competition. Because of the Company’s legitimate business interest as described herein and the good
and valuable consideration offered to the Executive, during the Employment Term and for the one year period beginning on the last
day of the Executive’s employment with the Company, regardless of the reason for the termination and whether employment is
terminated at the option of the Executive or the Company Group, the Executive agrees and covenants not to engage in Prohibited
Activity within the asset or investment management industry (as limited by the definition of Prohibited Activity below).

For purposes of this Section 7, “Prohibited Activity” is activity in which the Executive contributes the Executive’s
knowledge, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as an employee, employer, owner, operator, manager, advisor, consultant,
agent, employee, partner, director, stockholder, officer, volunteer, intern, or any other similar capacity to with any business
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that is (i) acting as a publicly traded Bitcoin treasury company (i.e., purchasing, holding and managing Bitcoin as a principal
treasury reserve asset) or (ii) a entity or organization in the asset or investment management industry that provide Bitcoin treasury
services and the Executive is employed or engaged with respect to those services, or (iii) or engaging in a business that otherwise
constitutes a defined peer business in the same line of business as the Company. Prohibited Activity also includes activity that may
require or inevitably requires disclosure of trade secrets, proprietary information or Confidential Information.

Nothing herein shall prohibit the Executive from (i) purchasing or owning less than five percent (5%) of the publicly
traded securities of any corporation, provided that such ownership represents a passive investment and that the Executive is not a
controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such corporation, (ii) owning the majority controlling interest in a
privately held company that does not compete with the Company with the prior written approval of the Board (iii) holding interests
through diversified investment vehicles, private equity, hedge funds or other portfolio investments that are not controlled by the
Executive, (iv) serving on the board of directors of a nonprofit organization, (v) serving on one outside for-profit board of directors,
subject to the Company’s prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), or (vi)
engaging in speaking, lecturing, teaching, writing or similar activities, in each of the cases of clauses (i) through (v) above, none of
these activities will interfere with the Executive’s duties set forth in Section 2.2 above.

7.3 Non-Solicitation of Employees. For a period of twelve (12) months following the Termination Date, the
Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit, hire, recruit, attempt to hire or recruit, or induce the termination of employment of
any employee of the Company with whom the Executive worked during the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the
termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.

7.4  Non-Solicitation of Customers. The Executive understands and acknowledges that because of the Executive’s
experience with and relationship to the Company, the Executive will have access to and learn about much or all of the Company’s
customer information. “Customer Information” includes, but is not limited to, names, phone numbers, addresses, email addresses,
order history, order preferences, chain of command, decisionmakers, pricing information, and other information identifying facts and
circumstances specific to the customer and relevant to services.

The Executive understands and acknowledges that loss of this customer relationship and/or goodwill will cause
significant and irreparable harm.

The Executive agrees and covenants, during the one year period beginning on the last day of the Executive’s
employment with the Company, not to directly or indirectly solicit, contact (including but not limited to e-mail, regular mail, express
mail, telephone, fax, instant message, or social media), attempt to contact, or meet with the Company’s current customers for
purposes of offering or accepting goods or services similar to or competitive with those offered by the Company.
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This restriction shall only apply to:
(a) Customers or prospective customers the Executive contacted in any way during the past one year;
(b) Customers about whom the Executive has trade secret or confidential information;
(c) Customers who became customers during the Executive’s employment with the Company; and
(d) Customers about whom the Executive has information that is not available publicly.

In the event of the Executive’s termination without Cause or for Good Reason, the Company and the Executive may
agree to modified terms on any provision of this Section 7, provided such modification is in writing and signed by both Parties as set
forth in Section 16 herein.

8. Non-Disparagement. The Executive agrees and covenants that, the Executive will not at any time make, publish or
communicate to any person or entity or in any public forum any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements
concerning the Company or its businesses, or any of its employees. This Section 8 does not, in any way, restrict or impede the
Executive from exercising Protected Rights to the extent that such rights cannot be waived by agreement or from complying with
any applicable law or regulation or a valid order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an authorized government agency, provided
that such compliance does not exceed that required by the law, regulation, or order. The Executive shall promptly provide written
notice of any such order to the Secretary of the Company. The Company agrees and covenants that it shall direct its officers and
directors to refrain from making any defamatory or disparaging remarks, comments, or statements concerning the Executive to any
third parties.

9. Acknowledgment. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the services to be rendered by the Executive to the
Company are of a special and unique character; that the Executive will obtain knowledge and skill relevant to the Company’s
industry, methods of doing business and marketing strategies by virtue of the Executive’s employment; and that the restrictive
covenants and other terms and conditions of this Agreement are reasonable and reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate
business interest of the Company. The Executive further acknowledges that the benefits provided to the Executive under this
Agreement, including the amount of the Executive’s compensation reflects, in part, the Executive’s obligations and the Company’s
rights under Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Agreement; that the Executive has no expectation of any additional
compensation, royalties or other payment of any kind not otherwise referenced herein in connection herewith; and that the Executive
will not suffer undue hardship by reason of full compliance with the terms and conditions of Section 6, Section 7 and Section § of
this Agreement or the Company’s enforcement thereof.
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10. Remedies. In the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Executive of Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this
Agreement, the Executive hereby consents and agrees that the Company shall be entitled to seek, in addition to other available
remedies, a temporary or permanent injunction or other equitable relief against such breach or threatened breach from any court of
competent jurisdiction, and that money damages would not afford an adequate remedy, without the necessity of showing any actual
damages, and without the necessity of posting any bond or other security. The aforementioned equitable relief shall be in addition to,
not in lieu of, legal remedies, monetary damages, or other available forms of relief.

11. Proprietary Rights.

11.1  Work Product. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that all right, title, and interest in and to all writings,
works of authorship, technology, inventions, discoveries, processes, techniques, methods, ideas, concepts, research, proposals,
materials, and all other work product of any nature whatsoever, that are created, prepared, produced, authored, edited, amended,
conceived, or reduced to practice by the Executive individually or jointly with others during the Employment Term and relate in any
way to the business or contemplated business, products, activities, research, or development of the Company or result from any work
performed by the Executive for the Company (in each case, regardless of when or where prepared or whose equipment or other
resources is used in preparing the same), all rights and claims related to the foregoing, and all printed, physical and electronic copies,
and other tangible embodiments thereof (collectively, “Work Product”), as well as any and all rights in and to US and foreign (a)
patents, patent disclosures and inventions (whether patentable or not), (b) trademarks, service marks, trade dress, trade names, logos,
corporate names and domain names, and other similar designations of source or origin, together with the goodwill symbolized by
any of the foregoing, (c) copyrights and copyrightable works (including computer programs), and rights in data and databases, (d)
trade secrets, know-how, and other confidential information, and (e) all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether
registered or unregistered and including all registrations and applications for, and renewals and extensions of, such rights, all
improvements thereto and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection in any part of the world (collectively, “Intellectual
Property Rights”), shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company.

For purposes of this Agreement, Work Product includes, but is not limited to, Company information.

11.2  Work Made for Hire; Assignment. The Executive acknowledges that, by reason of being employed by the
Company at the relevant times, to the extent permitted by law, all of the Work Product consisting of copyrightable subject matter is
“work made for hire” as defined in 17 U.S.C. § 101 and such copyrights are therefore owned by the Company. To the extent that the
foregoing does not apply, the Executive hereby irrevocably assigns to the Company, for no additional consideration, the Executive’s
entire right, title, and interest in and to all Work Product and Intellectual Property Rights therein, including the right to sue,
counterclaim, and recover for all past, present, and future infringement, misappropriation, or dilution thereof, and all rights
corresponding thereto throughout the world. Nothing contained in
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this Agreement shall be construed to reduce or limit the Company’s rights, title, or interest in any Work Product or Intellectual
Property Rights so as to be less in any respect than that the Company would have had in the absence of this Agreement.

11.3  Further Assurances; Power of Attorney. During and after the Employment Term, the Executive agrees to
reasonably cooperate with the Company to (a) apply for, obtain, perfect, and transfer to the Company the Work Product as well as
any and all Intellectual Property Rights in the Work Product in any jurisdiction in the world; and (b) maintain, protect and enforce
the same, including, without limitation, giving testimony and executing and delivering to the Company any and all applications,
oaths, declarations, affidavits, waivers, assignments, and other documents and instruments as shall be requested by the Company.
The Executive hereby irrevocably grants the Company power of attorney to execute and deliver any such documents on the
Executive’s behalf in the Executive’s name and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to transfer the Work Product to the Company
and further the transfer, prosecution, issuance, and maintenance of all Intellectual Property Rights therein, to the full extent permitted
by law, if the Executive does not promptly cooperate with the Company’s request (without limiting the rights the Company shall
have in such circumstances by operation of law). The power of attorney is coupled with an interest and shall not be affected by the
Executive’s subsequent incapacity.

11.4 No License. The Executive understands that this Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, grant the
Executive any license or right of any nature with respect to any Work Product or Intellectual Property Rights or any Confidential
Information, materials, software, or other tools made available to the Executive by the Company.

12.  Security.

12.1  Security and Access. The Executive agrees and covenants (a) to comply with all Company security policies
and procedures as in force from time to time (“Facilities and Information Technology Resources”); (b) not to access or use any
Facilities and Information Technology Resources except as authorized by the Company; and (iii) not to access or use any Facilities
and Information Technology Resources in any manner after the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company,
whether termination is voluntary or involuntary. The Executive agrees to notify the Company promptly in the event the Executive
learns of any violation of the foregoing by others, or of any other misappropriation or unauthorized access, use, reproduction, or
reverse engineering of, or tampering with any Facilities and Information Technology Resources or other Company property or
materials by others.

12.2  Exit Obligations. Upon (a) voluntary or involuntary termination of the Executive’s employment or (b) the
Company’s request at any time during the Executive’s employment, the Executive shall (i) provide or return to the Company any and
all Company property and all Company documents and materials belonging to the Company and stored in any fashion, including but
not limited to those that constitute or contain any Confidential Information or Work Product, that are in the possession or control of
the Executive, whether they were provided to the Executive by the Company or any of its business associates or created by the
Executive in connection with the Executive’s employment by the Company; and (ii) delete or
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destroy all copies of any such documents and materials not returned to the Company that remain in the Executive’s possession or
control, including those stored on any non- Company Group devices, networks, storage locations, and media in the Executive’s
possession or control.

13. Publicity. The Executive hereby irrevocably consents to any and all uses and displays, by the Company and its agents,
representatives and licensees, of the Executive’s name, voice, likeness, image, appearance, and biographical information in, on or in
connection with any pictures, photographs, audio and video recordings, digital images, websites, television programs and
advertising, other advertising and publicity, sales and marketing brochures, books, magazines, other publications, CDs, DVDs, tapes,
and all other printed and electronic forms and media throughout the world, at any time during or after the Employment Term, for all
legitimate commercial and business purposes of the Company (‘“Permitted Uses”) without further consent from or royalty, payment,
or other compensation to the Executive. The Executive hereby forever waives and releases the Company and its directors, officers,
employees, and agents from any and all claims, actions, damages, losses, costs, expenses, and liability of any kind, arising under any
legal or equitable theory whatsoever at any time during or after the Employment Term, arising directly or indirectly from the
Company Group’s and its agents’, representatives’, and licensees’ exercise of their rights in connection with any Permitted Uses.

14. Governing Law: Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement, for all purposes, shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of Texas without regard to conflicts of law principles. Any action or proceeding by either of the parties to enforce this
Agreement shall be brought only in a state or federal court located in the state of Texas. The parties hereby irrevocably submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction of such courts and waive the defense of inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any such action or
proceeding in such venue.

15. Entire Agreement. Unless specifically provided herein, this Agreement contains all of the understandings and
representations between the Executive and the Company pertaining to the subject matter herecof and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings, agreements, representations, and warranties, both written and oral, with respect to such subject
matter. The parties mutually agree that the Agreement can be specifically enforced in court and can be cited as evidence in legal
proceedings alleging breach of the Agreement.

16. Modification and Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended or modified unless such amendment or
modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the Executive and by the Secretary of the Company. No waiver by either of the
parties of any breach by the other party hereto of any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by the other party
hereto shall be deemed a waiver of any similar or dissimilar provision or condition at the same or any prior or subsequent time, nor
shall the failure of or delay by either of the parties in exercising any right, power, or privilege hereunder operate as a waiver thereof
to preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other such right, power, or privilege.

17. Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be enforceable
only if modified, or if any portion of this Agreement shall be held as unenforceable and thus stricken, such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remainder of this Agreement, the balance of which shall continue to be binding upon the parties
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with any such modification to become a part hereof and treated as though originally set forth in this Agreement.

The parties further agree that any such court is expressly authorized to modify any such unenforceable provision of this
Agreement in lieu of severing such unenforceable provision from this Agreement in its entirety, whether by rewriting the offending
provision, deleting any or all of the offending provision, adding additional language to this Agreement, or by making such other
modifications as it deems warranted to carry out the intent and agreement of the parties as embodied herein to the maximum extent
permitted by law.

The parties expressly agree that this Agreement as so modified by the court shall be binding upon and enforceable against
each of them. In any event, should one or more of the provisions of this Agreement be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in
any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and if such provision or
provisions are not modified as provided above, this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provisions had not been set forth herein.

18. Captions. Captions and headings of the sections and paragraphs of this Agreement are intended solely for
convenience and no provision of this Agreement is to be construed by reference to the caption or heading of any section or
paragraph.

19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

20. Tolling. Should the Executive violate any of the terms of the restrictive covenant obligations articulated herein, the
obligation at issue will run from the first date on which the Executive ceases to be in violation of such obligation.

21.  Section 409A.

21.1 General Compliance. This Agreement is intended to comply with Section 409A or an exemption thereunder
and shall be construed and administered in accordance with Section 409A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
payments provided under this Agreement may only be made upon an event and in a manner that complies with Section 409A or an
applicable exemption. Any payments under this Agreement that may be excluded from Section 409A ecither as separation pay due to
an involuntary separation from service or as a short-term deferral shall be excluded from Section 409A to the maximum extent
possible. For purposes of Section 409A, each installment payment provided under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate
payment. Any payments to be made under this Agreement upon a termination of employment shall only be made upon a “separation
from service” under Section 409A. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representations that the payments and
benefits provided under this Agreement comply with Section 409A, and in no event shall the Company be liable for all or any
portion of any taxes, penalties, interest, or other expenses that may be incurred by the Executive on account of non-compliance with
Section 409A.

21



21.2  Specified Employees. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any payment or benefit
provided to the Executive in connection with the Executive’s termination of employment is determined to constitute “nonqualified
deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and the Executive is determined to be a “specified employee” as
defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(b)(i), then such payment or benefit shall not be paid until the first payroll date following the six-
month anniversary of the Termination Date or, if earlier, on the Executive’s death (the “Specified Employee Payment Date”). The
aggregate of any payments that would otherwise have been paid before the Specified Employee Payment Date shall be paid to the
Executive in a lump sum on the Specified Employee Payment Date and thereafter, any remaining payments shall be paid without
delay in accordance with their original schedule.

21.3 Reimbursements. To the extent required by Section 409A, each reimbursement or in-kind benefit provided
under this Agreement shall be provided in accordance with the following:

(a) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during each calendar
year cannot affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other calendar
year;

(b) any reimbursement of an eligible expense shall be paid to the Executive on or before the last day of the
calendar year following the calendar year in which the expense was incurred; and

(c) any right to reimbursements or in-kind benefits under this Agreement shall not be subject to liquidation
or exchange for another benefit.

22. Notification to Subsequent Employer. When the Executive’s employment with the Company terminates, the
Executive agrees to notify any subsequent employer of the restrictive covenants sections contained in this Agreement. The Executive
will also deliver a copy of such notice to the Company before the Executive commences employment with any subsequent employer.
In addition, the Executive authorizes the Company to provide a copy of the restrictive covenants sections of this Agreement to third
parties, including but not limited to, the Executive’s subsequent, anticipated, or possible future employer.

23. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is personal to the Executive and shall not be assigned by the Executive. Any
purported assignment by the Executive shall be null and void from the initial date of the purported assignment. The Company shall
use its best efforts to assign this Agreement to any successor or assign (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger,
consolidation, or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of the Company and permitted successors and assigns.

24. Notice. Notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return
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receipt requested, or by overnight carrier to the parties at the addresses set forth below (or such other addresses as specified by the
parties by like notice):

If to the Company:

Strive, Inc.
200 Crescent Court Suite 1400
Dallas, Texas 75201

If to the Executive:

At Executive’s email or home address as then shown in the Company’s personnel records.

25. Representations of the Executive. The Executive represents and warrants to the Company that:

(a) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not conflict with or result in a violation of, a breach of, or a default under any contract, agreement, or
understanding to which the Executive is a party or is otherwise bound.

(b) The Executive’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of duties
hereunder will not violate any non-solicitation, non- competition, or other similar covenant or agreement of a prior
employer.

26. Withholding. The Company shall have the right to withhold from any amount payable hereunder any Federal, state,
and local taxes in order for the Company to satisfy any withholding tax obligation it may have under any applicable law or
regulation.

27. Survival. Upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall survive such expiration or other termination to the extent necessary to carry out the intentions of the parties under
this Agreement.

28. Acknowledgment of Full Understanding. THE EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE
EXECUTIVE HAS FULLY READ, UNDERSTANDS AND VOLUNTARILY ENTERS INTO THIS AGREEMENT. THE
EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE EXECUTIVE HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO ASK
QUESTIONS AND CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF THE EXECUTIVE’S CHOICE BEFORE SIGNING THIS
AGREEMENT.

[this space left blank intentionally — signature page follows]
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By:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

Strive, Inc.
By:

Name: Matthew Cole
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Name: Arshia Sarkhani

[Signature Page to Employment Agreement]



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Matthew Cole, certify that:

1.

[ have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Strive, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 14, 2025 /s/ Matthew Cole

Matthew Cole
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Benjamin Pham, certify that:

1.

[ have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Strive, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 14, 2025 /s/ Benjamin Pham

Benjamin Pham
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Strive, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarter ended September 30, 2025, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: November 14, 2025 /s/ Matthew Cole

Matthew Cole
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: November 14, 2025 /s/ Benjamin Pham

Benjamin Pham
Chief Financial Officer



